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June 28, 2000 

D EPA RTM EN T O F FIN AN CE 

The H onorable M ayor and the City Council 
City of New O rleans, Louisiana 

I am pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of New Orleans for 
the year ended Decem ber 31, 1999. 

The CAFR has been prepared in conform ance with generally accepted accounting principles as prom ulgated 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The City's basis of accounting and its various 
funds are explained in the notes to the accompanying general purpose financial statem ents. 

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and com pleteness and fairn ess of the presentation, 
including all disclosures rests with the City. W e believe the data, as presented is accurate in all m aterial 
respects; that it is presented in a m anner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and results of 
operations of the City as m easured by the financial activity of its various funds, and that all disclosures 
necessary to enable the reader 1o gain the m axim um understanding of the City 's financial affairs have been 
included. 

The accom par, ying financial statem ents have been audited by the City's certified public accountants and their 
opinion resulting from their audit is included in this Com prehensive Annual Financial Report. 

Our Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is divided into three sections 

~ The Introductory Section includes a list of principal offi cials, the City's organizational chart, and 
information about the organizational structure of the City, its accounting and budgetary system s, and 
fund structure. It also has sum m arized data reflecting the financial condition of the City including an 
analysis of general governm ent operations and debt adm inistration. 

~ The Financial Section is prepared using the pyram id approach of the GASB. It includes the General 
Purpose Financial Statements which presents the combined statements as an overview of the City's entire 
financial operation. Next, com bining and individual fund statem ents present each of the m aterial 
separate funds and account groups of the City. Schedules provide certain other information and details 
of data sum m arized in the financial statem ents. The statem ents and schedules included in this section 
pertain to those operations which, when taken together, m ake up the reporting entity of the City. 

~ The Stalisfical Section includes tables containing historical financial data, debt stalislics, and selected 
financial and dem ographic inform ation of the City that are of interest to potential investors in our bonds 
and other readers, including ten-year revenue and expenditure inform ation. 
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TItE REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES 

New Orleans, the largest city in Louisiana, was founded in 1718 and incorporated in 1805. The City's 
system of governm ent is established by its Hom e Rule Charter which becam e effective in 1954. The 
Louisiana Constitution prohibits the state legislature from enacting any law affecting the structure, 
organization, or distribution of the powers and functions of any local subdivision which operates under a 
Home Rule Char~er. "/'he City 's Home Rule Charter may be amended only by the vote of a majority of the 
qualified voters in the City , voting at an election called by the City Council on its own initiative, or upon 
receipt of a petition of not less than ten thousand registered voters. 

2'he City has a M ayor-Council form of govern m ent. Th e M ayor is elected for a four year term and is lim ited 
to two consecutive term s. Th e M ayor appoints the Chief Adm inistrative Officer, who is his principal 
assistant and budget officer for the City. The Chief Adm inistrative Officer appoints all departm ent heads, 
subject to the M ayor's approval, except the City Attorney, who is appointed by the lvlayor, and the Personnel 
Director, the City Civil Service Departm ent, who is appointed by the Civil Serv ice Com m ission. Th e City 
has thirteen executive departments and numerous affiliated boards and comm ission,,;, and provides a full 
range of ser')ices including police and fire protection, sanitation services, the construction and m aintenance 
of streets, infrastructure, and recreational activities and cultural events. 

The Council is the legislative body of the City governm ent, com prised of five Council m em bers elected fr6m 
five geographic districts and two elected at large, all for four-year term s. Laws are enacted through Council 
ordinance. The Council adopts the City 's annual capital and operating budgets. Ordinances of the Council 
m ay be vetoed by the M ayor. Vetoes m ay be overridden by a two-third vote of the Council. 

The financial statements & the reporting entity include those of the City (the primary government) and its 
com ponent units in conform ity with GASB Statem ent N o. 14, "The Financial Reporting Entity." Component 
units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the City are financially accountable, 
or the relationship to the City is such that exclusion w ould cause the City's financial statem ents to be 
m isleading ol incom plete. The com ponent units discussed below are included in the City's reporting entity 
because of the significance of their operational or financial relationships with the City. 

Com ponent Units - In conformity with GAAP, the financial statem ents of component units have been 
included in the financial reporting entity either as blended component units or discretely presented 
com ponent units. Each blended and discretely presented component unit has a Decem ber 31 year end. 
Complete financial statem ents for each of the individual component units m ay be obtained at the enlity 's 
adm inistrative offices. 

Blended Component Units - For financial reporting purposes, the following entities are included (blended) 
in the operations and activities of the City because these entities provide serv ices substantially for the benefit 
of the City: Board of Liquidation, City Debt and the Rivergate Developm ent Corporation. Com plete 
financial statem ents for these blended com ponent units m ay be obtained at the entity's adm inistrative offices 
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Discretely Presented Com ponent Units - The general purpose financial statements of the City include all 
govern m ent activities, organizations and functions for which the City is financially accountable, or the 
relationship to the City is such that exclusion would cause the City 's financial statements to be m isleading or 
incomplete. Based upon the foregoing criteria, the financial statem ents of the following associated 
organizations are included in the general purpose financial statem ents: 

Audubon Com m ission 
Canal Street Developm ent Corp oration 
D owntown D evelopm ent D istrict 
French M aiket Corp oration 
M unicipal Yacht Harbor M anagem ent Corp oration 
New Orleans Intern ational Airp ort 
New Orleans Econom ic Developm ent Corp oration 
N ew Orleans Tourism M arketing Corp oration 
Orleans Palish Com m unication District 
Upper Pontalba Building Restoration Corp oration 
Sewerage and W ater Board of N ew Orleans 

Curt'cut Louisiana law provides for creation of several districts and independently elected public offi ces for 
the provision of certain services at the parish level. Exam ples w ould include the Orleans Parish School 
Board, Assessors, Civil and Crim inal Sheriff and Clerk of Court. These offi cials prepare their own budgets 
and operate independently of the City. The results of operations of those offi ces are not included in this 
report because there is a lack of financial accountability for these offi ces on the part of the City's elected 
offi cials. 

YEAR IN REVIEW  

The City of New Orleans has enjoyed a relatively successful 1999. The general fund ended fiscal year 1999 
w ith a fund balance of $32 m illion on a GAAP basis. Som e of the factors that helped to m ake 1999 a 
successful year for New Orleans were growth and expansion in the tourism business and increased tax 
incom e from the Tax-Free shopping program for foreigners. In considering those factors m ore closely, they 
are illustrated as follows: 

The Office of International Relations and Trade Developm ent has expanded trade w ith m issions to Ecuador 
Haiti, M exico and South Africa. International trade pumps $6 billion in to the New Orleans economy, and 
New Orleans is building a national reputation for international trade successes, particularly with our Latin 
Am erican neighbors. 

By its culture, industry and proxim ity, New Orleans is truly the "Gateway to the Am ericas", and through 
innovative profit-sharing program s and new equipm ent at the Port of New Orleans, the City has established a 
major presence in W estern Hemisphere Trade. The Port of New Orleans continues 1o see record levels of 
cargo. 

The City is continuing its expansion efforts at the New Orleans Intern ational Airp ort and announced $170 
m illion in additional im provem ents as part of continuing efforts to build a first-class international airp ort to 
serve M etro N ew Orleans and the Gulf South. 

This $170 m illion comm itment comes as the airport enters the final phase of completing an $850 m illion 
building, renovation and expansion program . In the rebuilt facilities, the number of new non-stop and direct 
flights that have been dram atically increased in the last six years and passenger volum e has increased by 
ahrrost 30 percent and will likely reach 10 m illion this year. 
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The $170 m illion rebuilding program , includes the construction of a consolidated rental car facility, the 
reconfiguration of two concourses, construction of a truck m arshaling yard designed to increase the flow of 
cargo at the airp ort, a new employee and passenger parking lot, a new firehouse to serve the gr owing number 
of activities on the Airport's North Side, constru ction of a third passenger bridge from the covered parking 
garage to the expanded W est Term inal and resurfacing and repairing of the Airport's east-west runway. 
Additionally, the Airport plans for the future include a new 3,000-parking space covered garage and 300 
room luxury hotel built on Airport properly. 

Airp ort constru ction will add economic growth for the region and will exceedS1 billion over eight ears, 
beginning in ] 994. 

The Ern est N . M ortal Convention Center is ranked third among U .S. Convention centers and has experienced 
a 20% increase in business. The $247 m illion Phase III expansion, which has increased exhibit space by 
nearly 60% , has put N ew Orleans in an elite class for large scale conventions. A kilom eter long, the M ortal 
Convention Center has the m ost contiguous floor space in the country and is expected to increase attendance 
by 28%  in the first year. It will continue to fund new hotel developm ents and renovations throughout the 
city. 

New Orleans' historic culture and colorful landscape draw visitors from all over the world. Failing crim e 
and an im proved econom y have bolstered the city's reputation as a m ecca for lovers of culture, m usic and 
food. 

Th e annual M ardi Gras celebration, which generates nearly $1 billion, the Jazz and tleritage Festival and the 
Sugar Bowl are percnnial attractions. Complem ented with the sum m er ESSENCE Festival and Bayou 
Classic, New Orleans has becom e the leader in m ulti-eullural tourism and a national m odel for hosting large- 
scale special events. 

V arious program s and governm ental agencies have been set up throughout the City of N ew O rleans to 
im prove the city's econom ic outlook. They are as follow s: 
The City Business Center is guiding new businesses through City perm its, licenses, zoning regulations and 
tax obligations for start up or expansion. 

"Fine New O rleans Business Retention and Expansion Program is working with an advisory comm ittee of 
local business leaders to prom ote New Orleans to potential corporations and ensure that businesses stay in 
N ew Orleans. 

The O ffice of Sm all, M inority, and Disadvantaged Business sponsors ongoing m anagem ent workshops 
and training sem inars for sm all business owners and entrepreneurs to identify procurem ent opportunities for 
sm all business citywide. 

ECONOM IC O UTLO OK 

The New Orleans economy is on the rebound with impressive job growth, and the City is taking advantage of 
opportunities for econom ic developm ent. Th e City's new approach of com m unication and coordination with 
the national and state legislatures is bringing significant results in m aintaining funding levels. 

Two stars of the N ew Orleans' econom y - tourism and the port - w ill continue in their roles through the rcst 
of the century. The Port of N ew Orleans is one of the largest industries in New Orleans and Louisiana. The 
Port of N ew Orleans together with the South Louisiana Port Com m ission ranks as one of the top world ports 
in tonnage ofcargo handled. Already, som e organizations are interested in establishing distribution centers 
in N ew Orleans for cargoes to and from M exico. 

Vnl 



International tourism is on the rise. Louisiana Tax Free Shopping has been a real incentive to internationa 
tourists. International tourism m arkets are showing an increase in business between 5% and 10% . 

The New Orleans International Airport has experienced a 25%  increase in passenger flights and a 32%  
increase in passenger traffic. The airport has non-stop and direct scheduled passenger service to over 40 
cities across the United States and internationally. The synergy between tourism and the airp ort has been 
helping both the hospitality and air travel industries launch program s of expansion that are already paying off 

in thousands of new jobs for the metro New Orleans economy. 

The attractions, charm and history of New Orleans m ake it a natural place to grow a new and viable 
entertainmen! industry . The combined econom ic impact of the film and m usic industries in New Orleans is 
over $2 billion annually. New Orleans hosts m any large sporting events including the Sugar Bowl, the 
Bayou Classic and the Louisiana Gam es. 

M ajor events, like M ardi Gras, the Louisiana Jazz and Iteritage Festival, and file Essence Festival generate 
over $1 billion in econom ic impact. W orldwide, event organizers know that New Orleans is the prem iere 
city to host an event. 

Additionally, the city has a comprehensive capital facilities plan which includes projects that are catalysts for 
econom ic developm ent. Som e exam ples are: 

Earhart Expressway/Tchoupitoulas Corridor - $209 m illion 
LSU Clinical Science Building - $40 m illion 
Port of New Orleans - $33.5 m illion 
Renovation to the Custom House, Federal Building, U.S. - $11 m illion 

M AJO R INITIATIVES 

Young people me the City's m ost important asset and the key to our future growth and success. Recreational 
and educational program ming enhance the development of the city's youth. As a result, city government has 
focused considerable attention on children. The New Orleans Recreation Department (NORD) has been 
revitalized w ith expanded program s, im provem ents to facilities and increased com m unity partnerships. The 
im provem ents m ade have enabled NORD to serve m ore boys and girls in every neighborhood in New 
Orleans. NORD  is now providing children and teenagers a full range of activities including recreation, art 

and cultural enrichment as well as social and job skills preparation for future employment. Th e City's young 
people also need the opportunity to learn employment skills on the job. The NORD Team Summer Job 
Initiative has im pacted 2,500 young people. O ver 30 parks and playgrounds have been renovated through the 
City's Rebuild Capital Im provem ent Program , and a record 18 public swim m ing pools are now open to the 
public for the sum m er. 

Ilom e ov,~aership is the key to strengthening New Orleans neighborhoods. Public, private and non-profit 
organizations are com ing to New Orleans by providing program s that assist low and m iddle incom e fam ilies 
in purchasing a new hom e. 

Innovative partnerships with the city , other govern m ent agencies, comm unity development corp orations and 
lenders are rebuilding the neighborhoods of N ew Orleans by providing incentives to purchase new hom es or 
renovate existing hom es. 

In the last five years, over 10,000 people have become homeowners in New Orleans, and the rental- 
ownership ratio continues to im prove. Today, ahout 50 percent of N ew Orleans fam ilies own their own 
hom es. 



The M ayor's Division of Housing and Neighborhood Development is a national leader in form ing innovative 
partnership to generate m oney for m ore hom e ownership and historic restorations. The M ayor's O ffice 
received awards from the U.S. Conference of M ayors for public/private partnerships w ith the AFL-CIO, 
Fannie-M ae and Freddie M ac. "House New Orleans" with Fannie M ae win generate up to $535 m illion in 
new hom e pulchases, and "At Home in New Orleans" with Freddie M ac will generate $25 m illion in blight 
redevelopm ent. 

Other initiatives targeting historic neighborhoods, like the $15 m illion Central City Initiative with Bank One 
and the $10 million Project Renaissance with ltibemia Bank, are all part of the M ayor's Impact 
N eighborhoods Strategy. 

The historic corridors and neighborhoods of New Orleans are com ing back to life through m ulti-faceted 
approaches of encouraging hom e ownership and redevelop residential and com m ercial properties throughout 
the city. 

The results of our investm ents in the New Orleans Police Departm ent are the m ost striking. Through 
innovative program s and reorganization of the NOPD, murders in our community have decreased by over 
63%  and violent crim e is down  nearly 60% since 1994. Lower crim e is m aking our city a m ore attractive 
place to live and work, which translates into rising property values and increased tax revenues for city 
governm ent. In a recent survey, N ew Orleans had the fifth highest appreciation rate in the country, and from 
1998-1999, the City's assessed property values rose 10% . 

M ore police officers and a reorganized department have enabled Superintendent Richard Pennington to target 
high crime areas. W eekly COM STAT (Computer Statistics) meetings allow NOPD officers to identify and 
saturate hot-spot areas to stay pro-active in the fight against erim e. 

Youth development and juvenile crime prevention programs have reduced juvenile erime five-percent to ten 
percent a year since 1995. Program s such as Safe ttarbor after school program s, Safe-N ight, and W eed and 
Seed school program s on gun violence and responsibility have helped to steer young, people away from a 
path of destructiveness with the help of the Covenant House of New Orleans and the St. M ark Community 
Center has also been expanded to continue to provide guidance for youth. 

New Orleans' dramatic success in reducing crime and increasing public safety has become the model for 
large police departm ents around the world. W ith innovative thinking, the NOPD and partnering organizing 
are building a foundation of confidence in the growing overall quality of the life in New Orleans. 
City govern m ent is m oving forw ard and looking to the filture. To m ake govern m ent work effectively into 
the 21 st century, revisions to the City's Hom e Rule Charter and a com prehensive zoning and land use plan 
m ust be tim ely im plem ented. 

To plan for the next century, City leaders and citizens are working together to foster responsible growth that 
w ill enhance the City's environm ent and quality of life. A citizen com m ittee is helping the City adm inister 
the Brown sfield Program to encourage developm ent of abandoned industrial sites. A M aster Plan Advisory 
Com m ittee will synchronize an effective long-range m aster plan with an updated com prehensive zoning 
ordinance. New Orleanians have learned that in building for the future, we can also preserve what is m ost 
uniquely New Orleans and the environm ent that expresses who we are. 



 

DEPARTM ENT FO CUS 

The Fire Departm ent, headed by the Superintendent of Fire, shall: 

Organize, adm inister, supervise and discipline the fire force of the City; 
Extinguish fires and investigate their causes; 

Operate and maintain the communication systems, either separately or in conjunction with others; 
Administer and enforce ordinances, regulations and laws relating to fire prevention and safety of 
persons; 
Respond either separately or in conjunction with others to situations involving hazardous materials and 
to other em ergency situations involving the safety of person or property; and 
Perform such other duties required by this Charter or assigned in writing by the M ayor. 

In the past five years the New Orleans Fire Departm ent has m ade great strides and provided various new and 
innovating program s including: 

~ Safety awareness fire education targeting youth (safety) program. The program is designed to identify 
evaluate and treat the juvenile fire setter to prevent recurrence of the fire setting behavior. 

~ Physical Fitness Program . The City developed com prehensive fitness program that structures a com plete 
program for enhancing the fitn ess of city firefighters. This program takes into consideration the current 
condition of each firefighter, his/her "lifestyle" and reasonable goals to increase fitness through exercise 
and training. 

~ Arson sniffer dog. The arson squad has been chosen by the Bureau & Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearm s to 
participate in the "canine aecelerant detection training" program . Th is program is sponsored by ATF, the 
Connecticut State Poliee and the Aetna Insurance Company. An arson investigator was trained and 
team ed w ith the sniffer dog. These team s have proven to he the m ost effective m eans available to locate 
and identify accelerants used by arsonist in the com m ission of their crim e. 

~ Safe House. Safe house is a m obile classroom with real life hazards like sm oke and heal. This creates 
an environm ent that provides children with the knowledge needed and the steps to follow if they find 
lhem selw :s in a fire situation. A non-toxic sm oke system allows children to practice "crawling low" in a 
fire, a healed door dem onstrates the need to feel closed doors, a log-light fireplace is the focal point of 
the living room , and an escape ladder is used to exit from the bedroom . 

~ Learn  not to burn is a nationally tested and proven fire safety education program . It is life affi rming in 
its emphasis. Through a joint venture of the New Orleans Fire Department, the Orleans Parish Public 
Schools System , Archdiocese of N ew Orleans Schools, area private schools and the National Fire 
Protection Association, this program is taught in all parish public elem entary schools, grades Pre-K 
through 'Itfird. It will reach over 30,000 students and will seek to involve their parents in fire safe 
practices. This program is a proven life saver. 

~ Sm oke Detector Progr am . This progr am has been funded by various com panies. The Fire Departm ent 
encourages companies to donate sm oke detectors so that they can be given to citizens who cannot afford 
them . The detectors are then installed by m embers of the NOFD . 
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FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

The City's administration is responsible for establishing and m aintaining an intern al control structure 
design ed to ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft or m isuse and to ensure that 
adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial staten'tents in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, 

but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes 
that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of 
costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. 

All internal control evaluations occur within the above fram ework. W e believe that the City's internal 
accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of 
financial transactions. 

The City is required to undergo an annual single audit in conform ity with the provisions of the Single Audit 
Act of 1984 and U.S. Office of M anagement and Budget Circular A-128, "Audits of State and Local 
Govern m ents." Inform ation related to this single audit, including the schedule of federal financial assistance 
findings and recom m endations, and auditors' reports on the internal control structure and com pliance with 
applicable laws and regulations, can be found in the separate report on the single audit of file City of New 
Orleans. 

BUDGETARY PROCEDURES 

The City's Charter requires the annual preparation of a balanced operating budget. It prohibits the 
Depam nent of Finance from approving any expenditure under any portion of the annual operating budget 
unless sufficient revenues have been appropriated by the City Council to finance the proposed expenditure. 
The City Council is required to appropriate the necessary tax and other revenue m easures to produce a 
balanced budget. In addition, no budgeted expenditures m ay be m ade unless authorized by the M ayor or the 
Chief A dm inistrative O fficer through an allotm ent system . 

The City m onitors revenues and expenditures closely during the year. Transfers within the budget are 
adopted by lhe City Council when necessary to increase or curtail budgeted expenditures to ensure a 
balanced budget. 

~lq~e City maintains budgetary controls at the departmental level by cost object classification and allocates 
appropriations on a quarterly basis. These cost object classifications were originally specified as four by the 
City's Home Rule Charter (the Charter): personal service.s of officials and employees; contractual services; 
supplies; and equipm ent and property, tlowever, charter am endm ents adopted late in 1995 am ended those 
classifications to three classifications for 1996 which are classified as: personal services, other operating 
expenses, and debt service. Although all expenditures are recorded at the individual line item level, they are 
sum m arized tor reporting purposes to these three expenditure classifications. 

Encum brances are recorded via the Bureau of A ccounting through a an on-line processing system before the 
requisitions arc electronically transm itted to the Bureau of Purchasing. If sufficient funds are not available to 

cover a purchase, the requisition is rejected and returned to the originating department for appropriation or 
allotm ent changes, transfer of funds or cancellation. Appropriations are allowed to be am ended through 
councilm anic action during the year and all unencumbered appropriations lapse at year end. The City 
Charter, as well as state law, does not allow deficit spending. The Departm ent of Finance is able to control 
all of the above lhrough a com puterized financial m anagem ent system initiated in 1997 and uses a program 
budget. "lqae basic concept of program budgeting rests in the tenet that public expenditures should be 
justified by their impact on public goals and not measured solely by the criteria of efficiency and economy. 
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CAPITAL BUI)G ET 

The M ayor annually recom mends to the City Council a capital improvem ent program for the next five years 
and a capital budget by project for the first year of the program. The City Council is obligated to approve a 
capital budget program and adopt a capital budget before it adopts the annual operating budget. Th e capital 
program and hudget must show the amounts and sources of money of each separate project. The amounts 
budgeted constitute appropriations from the funds indicated when they becom e available. Expenditures for 
capital projects are made through the capital projects fund. 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL REPORTING 

The fund structure by which the financial transactions of the City of New Orleans are recorded is defined in 
the 1954 Hom e Rule Charter and does not conform to the current standards of the Govern m ental Accounting 

Standard Board (GASB). For purposes of explication, however, the accompanying combined financial 
statem ents, which are presented in the financial section of this report, have been structured to substantially 
conform with the GASB's prom ulgated standards. Prim arily all general govern m ental functions other than 
debt service and capital im provem ents are accounted for in the general fund. 

Encumbrances of the current year are recorded as obligations against budgetary appropriations and are 
included in the colum ns titled "actual on a budgetary basis" in the statem ents in the financial section of this 
report. Appropriations neither encumbered nor expended lapse at the end of the fiscal year. 

GENERAL FUND 

Revenues and other financing sources for the general fund in 1999 totaled approxim ately $382,436,000. 
These revenues represent a $1.5 m illion decrease from 1998, since revenues for 1998 totaled $383,966,000 
Factors contribuling to significant changes in revenues from the prior year include the following: 

Taxes increased $9.1 m illion in 1999 over 1998. This increase was due to improved collection of sales taxes 
and property laxes. 

Licenses and perm its decreased $1.4 m illion in 1999 from 1998. This decrease was due to the receipt of one 
tim e revenues from audit of Bell South. 

Intergovem m ental revenues decreased $2.9 m illion in 1999 from 1998. Th is decrease was due to a reduction 
in funding fi'om Parish Transportation funds. 

Contributions, gifts, and donations decreased by $5.4 m illion from 1998. This reduclion was due to a receipt 
of a settlem ent fiom M cFrugals in 1998. 
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The accompanying table/chart shows the amount (in thousands) of general fund revenues by source for 1999 
and 1998. 

R evenues and O ther 
Financing Sources 

Taxes 
License & perm ils 
lntcrgovem m cntal 
Charges for services 
Fines and Forfeits 
Interest incom e 
Contributions, gifts, 
and donations 

M iscellaneous 
Other financing source 

(3%) Interest I 

(4%) Intergo 

1999 
A ctual 

$221,915 
53,672 
18,548 
44,039 
10,803 
8,229 

1,128 
14,506 
9,596 

$382,436 

%  of 
Total 

58 
14 
5 
12 
3 
2 

0 
4 

Increase 
(Decrease) 
O ver 1998 

$9,194 
(1,494) 

34 
865 

(712) 
(582) 

(5,486) 
(2,063) 
(1,286) 
$(1,53o) 

1998 
A ctual 

$212,721 
55,166 
18,514 
43,174 
11,515 
8,811 

6,614 
16,569 

_ _ ..!0 8_0~_~ _8~ 
~&~3 9_~9.b_6~ 

12%) Charges for Services 

3%) Other Financing Source 

%) Miscellaneous 

Fre es & Forfeits 

(14%) Licenses& Permits 
(0%) Contnbutions, Gifts & Donalions 
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Factors contributing to significant changes in expenditures from the prior year include the following 

The decrease in general governm ent expenses w as prim arily due to a reduction in other operating 
expenditures in this category since during 1998 there w ere som e one tim e only expenditures. 

Public Safety expenditures increased slightly due to additional personnel expenditures 

Public W orks expenditures increased slightly due additional personnel expenditures am ong these 
departm ents. 

Health and W elfare expenditures increased slightly due to increased personnel costs for this function 

Culture and recreation expenditures increase slightly due to increased personnel expenditures am ong al 
departm ents. 

Urban Developm ent increased expenditures reflects an increase in grants allowed for this purpose 
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The fund balances of the General Fund at Decem ber 31, 1995 through Decem ber 31, 1999 are as follows 
(amounts in thousands): 

Reserved for encum brances 
Designated 
Undesignated 

Total 

1995 

$37,257 
7,936 
14,213 

$59,406 

1996 

$21,859 
5,966 
34,690 

$62,515_ 

1997 

$27,907 
2,008 
5,319 

$35,234 

SPECIAl, REVENUE FUNDS 

1998 

$22,471 
2,218 
13_~ 082 

$37~772 

1999 

25,946 
1,717 
5,578 

$33,241 

The Special Revenue Funds are used for certain revenue sources which are restricted by law or other form al 
action to expenditures for specific purposes. 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

"/'he Debt Sen'ice Fund is used to account for the accum ulation of resources for, and the paym ent of, genera 
long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. Total fund balance for the Debt Service Fund was 
$32,605,000 at December 31, 1999. 

CAPITAL PR O JECT FUND S 

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for all resources and expenditures in connection with the 
acquisition of capital facilities other than those accounted for in the Com ponent U nits. Expenditures for 

capital improvement projects in 1999 totaled $48,275,000 a decrease of $7,165,000 from the 1998 total. 

CO M PONENT UNITS 

The City operates three major Component Units: the Sewerage and W ater Board, the New Orleans 
Intern ational Airport and the Audubon Park Com m ission. Other Com ponent Units include the French 
M arket Corporation, the M unicipal Yacht Harbor, the Upper Pontalba Building Restoration Corp oration, the 
Orleans Parish Com m unication District, the Canal Street Developm ent Corp oration, the Downtown 
D evelopm ent D istrict, the N ew Orleans Tourism M arketing Corporation, and the N ew Orleans Developm ent 
Corp oration. 

The Sewerage and W ater Board reported 1999 operating revenues and net incom e of $127,695,000 and 
$7,303,000, respectively. Operating expenses increased 2% to $125,849,000 in 1999 from $123,283,000 in 
1998. 

New Orleans Intern ational Airp ort is the air carrier airport serving the New Orleans m etropolitan area - the 

largest metropolitan area in the slate of Louisiana, The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) classifies 
N ew Orleans as a m edium air traffic hub. The airport prim arily serves passengers whose travel originates or 
term inates in New Orleans. 

The airporl is located on approxim ately 1,500 acres of land in Jefferson and St. Charles parishes and the city 
of Kenner, Louisiana. The term inal building com plex consists of about 760,000 square feet and 
accom m odates a total of 44 aircraft parking positions. 
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The airport's 1999 operating revenue am ounted to $56,132,000, which permitted the airp ort to m eet its 
current operating expenses and pay current debt service and reserve requirem ents as they becam e due. 

The Audubon Commission (the Commission), a 24 member body appointed by the M ayor with the approval 
of the City Council, is entrusted with the m anagem ent and control of Audubon Zoo, .Audubon Golf Course, 
the Aquarium , and the Species Survival Center. 

Th e Com m ission receives its financing from a dedicated special ad valorem tax, which is pledged as security 
for $3,160,000 in bonds issued in 1979 and 1986; admission fees to the zoo; concession rentals and fees; 
donations; and other m iscellaneous sources. In 1986 the voters approved a special ad valorem tax pledged as 
security for $25,000,000 in bonds issued in April 1988 to construct the Riverfront Aquarium . All operations 
of the Audubon ('omm ission are administered by the Audubon Institute, a private development associated 
with the Com m ission. 

TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS 

Trust and Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent for 
individuals, plivate organizations, other governm ental units and/or other funds. The City's Pension Trust 
Funds are used to account for the accum ulation of resources to be used for retirem ent annuities and death and 
disability benefits to em ployees. 

G ENERAL FIXED ASSETS 

Th e general fixed assets of the City are those fixed assets used in the perform ance of general govern m ental 
functions and exclude the fixed assets of the Proprietary Funds and infrastructure items such as roads, 
bridges and drainage canals. As of December 31, 1999, the general fixed assets (excluding construction in 
progress) of the City amounted to $290,458,000. 

DEBT ADM INISTRATION 

The ratio of general bonded debt to assessed value of taxable property and the am ount of general bonded debt 
per capita are useful indicators of the City's debt position to m unicipal m anagem ent, citizens and investors. 
This data for the City at the end of the 1999 fiscal year was as follows: 

A m ount 

Ratio of general 
debtto assessed 
value oftaxable 

property 

General bonded debt $485,156,000 21.93% 

Bonded D ebt 
per capita 

$976 

Outstanding general obligation bonds at December 31, 1999 totaled $485,156,000 all of which are 
considered to be net, direct-tax supported debt. There are no special assessm ent bonds outstanding. Tables 8 
through 12 in the statistical section of this report present m ore detailed inform ation about the debt position of 
the city. 

The Louisiana Legislature, in Act 1 of 1994, increased the City's general obligation bond debt lim it to an 
amount equal to the greater of(l) $500,000,000 or (it) 35% of total assessed valuation of the City. Under Act 
No. 1 of the City's debt lim it, based on the m ost recent assessed valuations, is $1,969,443,000 as of 
D ecem ber 31, 1999. 
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As of the end of 1999, the City's general obligation bonds were rated "BAA" from M oody's Investor Service 
and "BBB+" fiom Standard and Poor's Corporation. 

CASH M ANAGEM ENT 

The Finance Departm ent strives to keep abreast of current trends and procedures for cash m anagem ent and 
forecasting so as to ensure the m ost efficient and profitable use of the City's cash resources. W hile efforts 
are m ade to m axim ize the return  on the City's investm ent dollar, our prim ary concern in achieving this goa 
is to always ensule the return of principal. 

Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in certificates of deposit, reverse repurchase agreem ents, 
and U.S. Government securities. All investm ent decisions are based upon time periods to m aturity and 
m aximum yields by competitive bids. Th e total interest income earned by the City ill the General Fund for 
the year ended December 31, 1999 on a non-GAAP budgetary basis was $8,229,000 compared to $8,811,000 
in 1998. 

RISK M ANAGEM ENT 

The City m aintains a self-insurance program for its m otor vehicle fleet, general liability, and police 
departm ent excessive force losses. Prem ium s are charged to the City's various funds for the unem ploym ent 
and worker's compensation self-insurance programs and to employees and the City 's various funds for the 
hospitalization self-insurance program s. In addition, the City's Risk M anagem ent D ivision works toward 
reducing the num ber of claim s which proceed to lawsuit, shorten length of tim e in which a claim is processed 
or resolved, and provides investigations and support services and em ploys various risk control techniques. 

1NDEPENDENT AUD1T 

The City Charter requires an audit of the financial statem ents of all accounts of the City by an independent 
certified public accountant selected by the CJly Council. A ccordingly, this year's audit was completed by 
Deloitte & Touche LLP with assistance from Bruno and Tervalon, CPA's, Luther Speighl, CPA's, and 
Duplanticr, 11rapm ann, Hogan and M aher, LLP, anaong others. 

AW ARD FO Il DISTING UISIIED BUDGET PRESENTATIO N 

Th e Govennnent Finance Offi cers Association (GFOA) award a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence 
in Financial Reporting to govern m ents for their com prehensive annual financial reports. In order to be 
awarded a Certificate of Achievem ent, govern m ents are required to publish an easily readable and efficiently 
organized com prehensive annual financial report. In 1994, 1996, 1997, and 1998 the City was awarded the 
Certificate of A chievem ent for Excellence in Financial Reporting. 

W e believe that our current annual financial report meets the Certificate & Achievem ent Program 's 
requirem ents, and we are subm itting it to the GFOA to determ ine its eligibility for a certificate. 
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Deloitte & 
Touche 

Deloitte & Touche LLP 
Suite 3700 
One Shell Square 
701 Poydras Street 
New Orleans, Louisiana 70139-3700 

INDEPENDENT AUDITO RS' REPORT 

The Honorable M ayor and M embers 
of the City Council of the City of New Orleans, Louisiana 

Telephone: (504) 581-2727 
Facsim ile: (504) 561-7293 

W e have audited the accom panying general purpose financial statem ents of the City of New Orleans, 
Louisiana ("the City") as of December 31, 1999 and for the year then ended, listed in the foregoing 
tablc of contents. These general purpose financial statem ents are the responsibility of the City's 
m anagem ent. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial 
statements based on our audit. W e did not audit the financial statem ents of the Downtown 
Developm ent District, the New Orleans Tourism M arketing Corporation, and the N ew Orleans 
Econom ic I)evelopm ent Corp oration, which are shown as the Governm ental Com ponent Units; the 
A udubon Com m ission, the Sew erage and W ater Board of N ew Orleans, the French M arket 
Corp oration, the Upper Pontalba Building Restoration Corp oration and the (.'anal Street Developm ent 
Corporation, which represent 74 percent and 74 percent, respectively, of the assets and operating 
revenues of the Proprietary Com ponent Units; the Fire Fighters' Old System , the Fire Fighters' New 
System , the Police Old System and the Em ployees' Retirem ent System , which represent 86 percent of 
the assets of the Trust and Agency Funds and 100 percent of the Pension Trust Funds; and the 
financial statem ents of the Board of Liquidation, City Debt, which are shown as the Debt Service 
Fund and replesent 60 percent of the liabilities of the General Long-Term Debt Account Group. 
Those financial statem ents were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, 
and our opinion on the general purpose financial statem ents, insofar as it relates to the am ounts 
included for the Downtown Developm ent District, the New Orleans Tourism M arketing Corporation, 
the New Orleans Econom ic Developm ent Corporation, the Audubon Com m ission, the Sewerage and 
W ater Board of N ew Orleans, the French M arket Corporation, the Upper Pontalba Building 
Restoration Corporation, the Canal Street D eve]opm ent Corp oration, the FiJe Fighters' Old System , 
the Fire Fightcrs' New System , the Police Old System , the Employees' Retirem ent System and the 
Board of I_.iquidation, City Debt, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. 

W e conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stales 
of Am erica and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermnent Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Com ptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we 
plan and pe.rform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial 
statem ents are free of m aterial m isstatem ent. An audit includes exam ining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the am ounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statem ents. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estim ates m ade by m anagem ent, as 
w ell as evaluating the overall general purpose financial statem ent presentation. W e believe that our 
audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, such general purpose financial 
slatem enls piesent fairly, in all m aterial respects, the financial position of lhe City as of December 31 
1999, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its nonexpendable trust fund and sim ilar 
discretely presented com ponent units, and changes in plan net assets of its pension trust funds for the 
year then ended in conform ity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
Am erica. 

OeloitteTol,che 
Tohmatsu 

- 1-. 



O ur audit was conducted for the purpose of form ing an opinion on the general purp ose financial 
statem ents taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund and account group financial 
statem ents and schedules listed in the foregoing table of contents, are presented fi)r the purp ose of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purp ose financial statem ents of the City 
These financial statem ents and schedules are also the responsibility of the m anagem ent of the City 
Such additional information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the 
general purp ose financial statem ents and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all m aterial respects when 
considered in relation to the general purp ose financial statem ents taken as a whole. 

The s'ta'tislical lab'Jes, listed in "the ~'oregoing 'table of con'ten~.s, are presen'te6 for pua'poses of a66ifioa~al 
analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial statem ents of the City. Such 
additional information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
gencral pulposc financial statem ents, and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them . 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 27, 
2000 on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws and regulations. That report is an integral part of an audit and should 
be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit. 

~ >_Lg&o c.c.p 
N ew Orleans, Louisiana 
June 27, 2000 
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CITY O F N EW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET 
ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT G RO UPS AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COM PO NENT UNITS 

DECEMBER 31, 1999 (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

ASSETS 

Cash (Note 2) 
Investments (N ote 2) 
Receivables (net, whine applicable, 
of allowances for uncollectibles): 
Sales taxes 
Property taxes (Note 3) 
Franchise taxes 
A ccounts 
Grantee loans (N ote 4) 
Accrued interest 
G rants 
O ther 
Due from other funds (Note 8) 
Due from component units (N ote 8) 
Due from other governm ents 
Due from primary government (N ote 8) 
Inventory of supplies 
Prepaid expenses and deposits 
Advances to other funds (Note 8) 
Advance to primary government (Note 8) 
Restricted assets - cash and investm ents, 
at cost or am orlized cost 
Fixed assets (net, where applicable, of 
accumulated depreciation) (Note 5) 
Other assets 
Am ounts available in debt service fund 
Am ounts available in general fund 
Am ounts to be provided for: 
Retirem ent of gcnenfl long term debt 

(N ote 6) 
Claims and judgments (Note 11) 
Landfill closing costs (N ote 11) 
A ccrued annual and sick leave 
Paym ent to ItUD for Section 108 loan 

(Note 6) 
Certificates of indebtedness (Note 6) 
Payment to Audubon Commission (N ote 6) 
Paym ents to HUD and DOL for disallowed 
costs (Note 6) 

G overnm ental Fund "r 

General 

$ 13,168 
9,596 

10,788 
21,602 
6,100 
8,110 

898 

35,048 
3,051 
1,473 

252 

Special 
Revenue 

$ 11,029 
30,466 

794 
35,049 

676 
106 

24,874 

Debt 
Service 

$ 77 
33,073 

Capital 
Projects 

$ 624 
117,327 

106 
9,111 

Fiduciary 
EJ, U1 d Typ~ 

Trustand 
Agency 

$ 35,958 
626,824 

231 

3,559 

1,194 
5,150 

12 
8O2 

750 

TOTAL ASSETS $ ] 10,086 $102,994 $ 33,150 $127,168 $ 684,480 

Sce notes to 15nancia] statem ents. 
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Totals 
Account Groups Prim ary 

General G e ni~ra-f'~--- Governm ent 
Fixed Long Term (Memorandum 
Assets Debt Only) 

$497,805 

$ 32,605 
500 

463,931 
128,268 
12,777 
50,788 

30,230 
102,330 
1.571 

3.212 

$ 60,856 
817,286 

10,788 
21,602 
6,100 
9,135 
35,049 
4,457 

1,194 
50,874 
3,275 
36,260 

252 

Com ponent Units 

EXHIBIT A-1 
Page 1 of 2 

G overnm ental Proprietary  

$ 2,140 
3,331 

938 

39 

497,805 
750 3,046 

32,605 
500 

463,931 
128,268 
12,777 
50,788 

30,230 
102,330 
1,571 

_  
3~212 

$ 9,074 
195,979 

153 

20,250 

2,103 
3,610 
2,365 

475 

2,979 
6,148 
1,958 

5,371 

219,606 

1,405,965 
26,137 

(Restated - 
Note 1) 

$ 72,070 $ 53,735 
1,016,596 961,580 

10,788 
21,755 
6,100 
30,323 
35,049 
6,599 
3,610 
3,559 
50,874 
3,750 
37,603 
2,979 
6,148 
1,958 
252 

5.371 

13,310 
6,630 
2,868 
29,736 
34,968 
6,828 
1,145 
2,944 
39,282 
2,252 
27,887 
1,298 
6,319 
1,487 
252 

5,037 

219.606 239,682 

1,903,770 
29,933 
32,605 

500 

463,931 
128,268 
12,777 
50,788 

30,230 
102,330 
1.571 

3.212 

1,848,399 
28,572 
33,362 

454,314 
126,947 
13,021 
53,840 

30,125 
109,475 
1.644 

7,223 

$497,805 $826,212 $ 2,381,895 $10,837 $1,902,173 $,1,294,905 $4,144,162 
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CITY OF NEW  O RLEANS, LO UISIANA 

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET 
ALL FUND TYPES, ACCO UNT GROUPS AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COM PONENT UNITS 

DECEMBER 31, 1999 (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

LIABILITIES, EQUITY 
A ND OTHER CRErtlTS 

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts payable 
Retainages payable 
Other payables and accruals (Note 6) 
Due to other funds (Note 8) 
Due to primary government (Note 8) 
Due to other goverlllnents 
Due to component units (Note 8) 
Deferred revenues (Notes 3 and 4) 
Payable flom restricted assets: 
Rctainages payable 

Capital projects payable 
Accrued interest 
Limited tax bonds (Nole 12) 
Bonds payable, cunent portion 
Revenue bonds 
Deposits and other 
Claims payable (Notes 6 and 11) 
Advances from other thnds (Note 8) 
Advances from component units (Note 8) 
Certificates of indebtedness (Note 6) 
Loans payable 
Bonds payable: 
Genera| obligation (Note 6) 
Limited tax (Note 12) 
Revenue, less unamortized discount of$1,346 
P.elhnding 
Other 

EQUJTY AND OTJJER CREDITS: 
Contributed capital (Note 12) 
Investment in general lixed assets (Note 5) 
Retained eanfings: 
Reserv ed for: 
Pt operty, plant and equipm ent 
Bond debt service 
Capital im provem ents 
Unreserved 
Total retained earnings 

Fund balance: 
Reserved (Note 9) 
Unreserv ed: 
Designated for subsequent years' expenditures 
Undesignated 

Total fund balance 

Total equity and oilier credits 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY 
AND OTIIER CREI)ITS 

See notes to financial statements. 

G overnm ental Fund Types 

G eneral 
Special 
Revenue 

$ 46,231 $ 2,558 

5,684 

607 
2,584 
21,739 

26,876 

59 
135 

35.049 

252 

Debt 
Service 

$ 545 

Capital 
Projects 

$ 4,800 
1.762 

2,719 

5,37 

Fiduciary 
~ P~ 

Trust and 
A gency 

9,047 

42,640 
18.314 

15,625 
260 

76,84! 64,929 545 14,652 85,886 

25.946 

1,717 

_ _  
5~5"1

_
8 

104 

15~968 
21~993 

32.605 20,419 589,865 

92.097 
8,729 

_ _
33

_~ 24[ 38,065 _ 326~05 1_12,516 598,594 

_
3~ 324~ 38,065 3226L~ 505 112,516 598,594 

$110,086 $102,994 $ 33 ,150 $
.
1
...
27r168 $ 684,480 

- 6 



EXHIBIT A -1 

Page 2 of 2 

Account Groups 
General G e n b'7"g'l~  
Fixed Long -term 
Assets Debt 

$ 497,805 

497.805 

$ 98,578 

128,268 

485,156 
11.880 

826.212 

Totals 
Prim ary 

G overnm ent 
(Memorandum 

Only) 

62,636 
1,762 

41,763 
50,874 

19,010 
2,979 
56,788 

28,268 
252 

5,371 
02,330 

485,156 
11,880 

1.069.069 

497.805 

668,939 

109,782 
36~300 

815.021 

1,312,826 

Com ponent Units Totals 
Reporting Entity 

(Memorandum Only) 
Governm ental Proprietary  -- 1999 t998 

(Restated - 
Note 11 

$ 903 
61 

1,273 

$ 19,195 
506 

36,761 

2,002 

475 
21 

1,914 
3,237 
2,019 
1,417 
13,511 

839 
9,191 
4,698 

4,867 

56,139 
83,112 
201,181 

971 

$ 82,734 
2,329 

178,524 
50,874 
3,275 
19,010 
3,454 
57,873 

1,914 
3,237 
2,019 
1,417 
13,511 
839 

9,191 
132,966 

252 
5,371 

102,330 
4,867 

485,156 
68,019 
83,112 
2(11,181 

971 

_ ~_ 3~_301. 442,056 ~ _44~ _26 

845 

3,725 

1,659 
__ L3o_7 

. 6=~69j. 

7,536_ 

,
$10~837 

- 7 - 

355,840 

697,827 
25,400 
64,837 
144~379 
932,443 

355,840 
498.650 

697,827 
;!5,400 
64,837 
144~379 
932.443 

171,834 844,498 

111,441 
37.607 

171,834 

1.460,117 

9!:13.546 

2.780.479 

$ 60,915 
4,272 

178,905 
40,290 
1,244 
13,193 
1,298 

41.872 

1,783 
1,741 
1,825 
4,852 
7,948 
2,061 
7,734 

132,690 
252 

5,037 
109,475 
6,191 

474,421 
74,084 
84,607 
221,387 

946 
1.479.023 

343,367 
478.481 

688,616 
25,607 
62,977 
133.160 
910.360 

811,189 

77,661 
44.081 

932.931 

2.665.139 

$ 1,902,173 $4,294,905 $4 144 162 

(Concluded) 



CITY O F NEW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

CO M BINED STATEM ENT O F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES A ND CHANG ES IN FUND BALANCES 
ALL GOVERNM ENTAL FUND TYPES, EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS AND SIM ILAR DISCRETELY 
PRESENTED CO M PO NENT UNITS 
YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31, 1999 fAM OUNTS IN THOUSANDS) 

REVENUES: 
Taxes (Note 3) 
Licenses and pem rits 
lntergovcrlrurenta] 
Charges for services 
Progranl inconle 
Fines and forlifits 
Interest income (Note 10) 
Contributions, gilts and donations 
M iscellaneous 

Total levenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 
General govenmlen 
Public safety 
Public works 
tlealth and hunrao services 
Cultm c and recreatiou 
Urban developm ent and housing 
Econom ic deve]opnlent and assistance 
Capital projects 
Debt service: 
Principal retirem ent 
Interest and fiscal charges 
Bond issuance costs 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (DF.FICIENCY) OF RFVENUES 
OVER EXPENDI'I URES 

OTHER FINANCING SO't.JRCES (USES) 
Operating translers in (Note 8) 
Transfer in from component unit (Note 8) 
Operating transfers out (Note 8) 
Proceeds from bond issuance 
Proceeds of refunding bonds 
Paym ent to refunded bond escrow agent 
Other. net 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES 
AND OTtlER FINANCING USES 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR (Restated Note 1) 

FUN D BALANCES. END OF YEAR 

See notes to financial statem ents -8- 

Governm ental Fund Types 

G enera 

$ 221,915 
53,672 
18,548 
44.039 

Special 
Revenue 

Debt 
Service 

Capital 
Projects 

$ 5,402 $ 41,031 

37,733 $ 24.719 

3,258 
10,803 3,635 
8,229 470 
1,128 474 
14~506 11,936 

372.840 

127,823 
155,136 
54,645 
12,877 
22,213 

239 

7,145 
5.059 

62,908 

2,920 

877 

44.828 

15,896 746 
7,240 
617 

7,218 
1,522 
2,737 
12.372 

23,040 
21.799 

(248) 

933 

25,404 

48,275 

385,137 47,602 
__  

45~585 48~275 

(12,297) _ 15,306 __ (757) (22,871) 

8,596 
1,000 
(1,830) 

1,830 

(8,596) 

7,766 
_ _~6,76~ 

32.400 

32~400 

(4,531) 8,540 (757) 9,529 

37,772 29,525 33,362 102,987 

$ 33,241 $ 38,065 $ 32,605 $112,516 



EXHIBIT A -2 

Fiduciary 
Fund TyJ~ , 

Expendable 
Trust 

$ 516 
632 

Totals 
Prim ary 

G overnm ent 
(Memorandum 

Only) 

$ 268,348 
53,672 
81,000 
44,039 
3,258 
14,438 
11,887 
2,234 
28,252 

1,148 507 1~28 

146 
638 

144,465 
162,376 
55,262 
20,241 
24,373 
2,976 
12,372 
48,275 

30,185 
26.858 

784 527,383 

364 2(~  

364 

8,365 

$ 8,729 

10,426 
1,000 
10,426) 
32.400 

33~400 

13,145 

2 12 o~ !u1. 

Com ponentJ.{nRs 

G overnm enta 

$ 8.077 

333 

_  2~ _o 

_  10~ 0 

6,883 

805 

3,389 

11,077 

_ _ L3_37j 

(337) 

7,028 

Totals 
Reporting Entity 

(Memorandum 
1999 1998 

(Restated = 
Note 1) 

$ 276,425 
53,672 
81,000 
44,039 
3,258 
14,438 
12,220 
2,234 
30~582 

517~868 

151,348 
162,376 
56,067 
20,241 
27,762 
2,976 
12,372 
48,275 

30,185 
26.858 

$ 265,537 
55,166 
99,864 
43,174 

520 
13,754 
14,185 
9,218 

529.665 

144,155 
159,904 
56,(101 
21,856 
25,635 
32,498 
9,727 
55,440 

23,096 
26,096 

145 

538~460 
.~5:5~ ;53 

(20,592) __(24,88_89 

10,426 
1,000 
10,426) 
32A00 

12,097 
900 

(12,097) 
40,000 
106,520 
(106,520) 

885 

33~400 41"185 

12,808 

219.039 

16,897 

202.142 

- 9 - 



CITY O F NEW  O RLEANS, LO UISIA NA 

COM BINED STATEM ENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

ACTUAL (ADJUSTED 10 BUDGETARY BASIS) AND BUDGET - GENERAL FUND 

EXHIBIT A-3 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

REVENUES: 
Taxes 
Licenses and perm its 
Inlergovernm ental 
Charges for sen,ices 
Fines and forfeits 
Interest incom e 
Contributions, gifts and donations 
M iscellaneous 
Total revenues 

I?;XPENDITURES: 
Current: 
General governnrent 
Public safety 
Public works 
11ealth and hum an services 
Culture and recreation 
Urban developm ent and housiug 
Debt service: 
Principal letilem cnt 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Total expenditures 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTtlER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 
Transfer in from component unit 
F.eduction in prior year's 
outstanding eucumbrallces 
Other. uet 
Total other fiuancillg sources 

Adjusted to Budgetary Variance 
Budgetary Basis Revised Favorable 

Actual Basis (Non-GAAP) Budget (Unfavorable) 

$ 221,915 
53,672 
18,548 
44,039 
10,803 
8,229 
1,128 
14,506 

372,840 

127,823 
155,136 
54,645 
12,877 
22,213 

239 

7,145 

_ _ ~ 0_59_ 
_
3
_ ~ 37 

(3) 

1,000 
997 

1,557 

(563) 
2,667 

(12) 
54 

(17) 

3,686 

$ 221,915 
53,672 
18,545 
44,039 
10,803 
8,229 
1,128 
15~506 

. 
373~8377 

129,380 
154,573 
57,312 
12,865 
22,269 

222 

7,145 
5~059

. 

388,823 

$ 218,644 
51,580 
18,332 
45,308 
12,308 
8,400 
11,962 
23,205 
389,739 

133,934 
154,577 
57,346 
12,866 
22,309 

222 

7,145 

_ ~ 059 
393,458 

$ 3,271 
2,092 
213 

(1,269) 
(1,505) 
(171) 

(10,834) 
~ 7,699) 

4,554 
4 
34 
1 

42 

4,635 

_ (~ 29Z) (2,68~ ) (14,986) ._~[3,7I 9) 

8,596 

(1,830) 
1,000 

_
7,766 

210 
(81_q) 
(600) 

8,596 
(1,830) 
1,000 

210 
(_8Y 9 
7,16(; 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES AND 
OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES OVER 
EXPEND1TURFS AND OTIIER FINANCING 
USES (4,531) (3,289) (7,820) 

I:UND BALANCES, BF.GINNING OF YEAR 
_ _ ~ 7_72 (22,92~ 14,849_ 

:UND BALANCES. END OF YEAR 

See IIOIeS to financial statem ents. 

$ 33,241 $ (26,212) $ 7z029 

- 10 - 

1,404 

2,315 

3,719 

7,192 
(1,830) 
(1,315) 

210 
(810) 
3,447 



CITY O F NEW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA EXHIBIT A-4 

COMBINED STATEIVIENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES 
NONEXPENDABLE TRLIST FUND AND SIMILAR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 IAMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS) 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services 
Tax revenues (Note 1) 
Other 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPFNSES 
Benefit payments 
Personal services 
Contractual services 
M aterials and supplies 
Depreciation and amollization 
Other 

Total operating expenses 

OPERATING LOSS 

NONOPERATING REVENUES 
(EXPENSES): 
Interest levenue 
Interest expense 
Dedicated taxes 
Grants 
Olhcr 
Unrealized gain 

Total nonoperating levenues 

NCOM E BEFORE "IRANSF[ RS 

TRANSFER OUT TO PRIM ARY 
GOVERNM ENT 

NET INCOM E 

I)EPRECIATION ON FIXED ASSETS 
ACQUIRED BY CONTRIBUTIONS 

NCREASE IN RETAI NEI) 
EARNINGS/FUND 13ALANCES 

RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND 
BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR, 
AS RESTATED 

RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND 
BALANCES. END OF' YEAR 

See notes tO financial statenlenls 

Total Prim ary Com ponent Totals 
Non- Government Units Reporting Entity 

expendable (Memorandum ~ "- (Memorandum Only) 
Trust Fund Only) Funds -- -t"999 1998 

$3_o! 

$ 2 0
._ .~5 

8 205 

$
_
2o
_2 

$ 182,930 
32,857 
1.635 

217.422 

62,862 
94,891 
1,757 
57,016 
8.673 

225.199 

$ 182,930 
32,857 
1.635 

217.422 

62,862 
94,891 
1,757 
57,016 
8.673 

225.199 

$ 173,404 
32,120 
1~775 

207.299 

59,786 
88,128 
1,753 
54,896 
8.345 

(7,777) (7,777) (5,609) 

14,797 
(23,730) 
9,051 
3,785 
18.186 

22.089 

14,312 

(I ,90~ ) 

13,312 

8.771 

14,797 
(23,730) 
9,051 
3,785 
18.186 

13,323 
(22,282) 
8,g81 
1,677 
14.098 

_
22~ 089 16,297 

14,312 10,688 

_ ~ hO0~  (900) 

13,312 9,788 

8.771 8.948 

22,083 22,083 18,736 

910.360 910.565 891.829 



CITY O F NEW  O RLEANS, LO UISIANA 

CO M BINED STATIEM ENT O F CASH FLOW S - 
NO NEXPENDA BLE TRUST FUND A ND SIM ILAR DISCRETELY 
PRESENTED CO M PO NENT UNITS 
YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31, 1999 ('AM OUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

CASH FLOW S FROM  OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES: 
Operating loss 
Adjustments to reconcile operating 
loss to net cash provided by 
operating activities: 
Depreciation and am oJlization 
Gain on disposal of property 
Provision lor claims 
Provision for doubtful accounts 

Changes ill current assets and 
liabilities: 
]'axes receivable 
Accounts receivable 
Other receivables 
Due from othel funds 
Due from prim ary govenlnlent 
Inventory 
Prepaid expenses and deposits 
Other assets 
Capital projects payable 
Accounts payable 
Other payables and accru als 
D ue to other lhnds 
D ue to prim al2/governm ent 
Advances from other liands, net 
Deferred revenues 
Increase in inventory of m aterials 
and supplies 
Other 
Increase in accrued salary/ 
com pensation 

Net cash provided by operating 
activities 

EXHIBIT A -5 
Page 1 of 3 

Totals 
Non- Prim ary Com ponent Totals 

expendable G overnm ent Units Reporting Entity 

Trust (Memorandum ~ t'-~ - (Memorandum Only) 
Fund Only) Funds -- 1999 1998 

$ (7,777) $ (7,777) $ (5,609) 

34 34 

7,016 
302 

7,165 
1,027 

(19) 
(4,449) 

8 
(143) 
(273) 
221 
(583) 
(86) 

1,623 
(1,695) 
239 
152 

(1,013) 

10 

41 
(6,488) 

__ _~_029 

7,016 
302 

7,165 
1,027 

(19) 
(4,449) 

8 
(143) 
(273) 
221 
(583) 
(86) 

1,623 
(1,661) 
239 
152 

(1,013) 

10 

41 
(6,488) 

54,896 

7,200 
17 

112 
1,141 
(923) 

(472) 
(426) 
767 
101 
(587) 
4,629 
203 
50 
200 
(119) 
(4) 

(5,528) 
(131) 

_ __ ~  (1o7) 

34 34 
. 

4
_5~0_076 __

45,110 

- 12 - 

557410 

(Continued) 



CITY O F NEW  O RLEANS, LO UISIA NA 

COM BINED STATEM ENT OF CASH FLOW S - 
NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND AND SIMILAR DISCRETELY 
PRESENTED CO M PONENT UNITS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

EXHIBIT A-5 
Page 2 of 3 

CASII FLOW S FROM NONCAPITAL 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Paym ent of loans payable 
Residual equity transfer 
Other revenues 
Dedicated taxes 

Net cash provided by uoncapita 
finauciug activilies 

CAStt FLOW S FROM  CAPITAl. AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Acquisition and COltStruction of 
property and equipm ent 
Decrease (increase) in restricted assets 
Decrease (increase) in restricted 
liabilities 
Proceeds from property taxes 
dedicated to construction 
l'rincipal paid on bonds 
State and federal grants 
Interest paid on bonds 
Grants from Audubon Institute 
Proceeds from issuance of bonds 
Bond issuance costs 
Passenger facilities charges 
Other 

Net cash used in capital and 
related financing activities 

CASI] FLOW S FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES: 
Purchase of investm ents 
Proceeds from sale and m aturity 
of investm ents 
Interest and dividends received 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
investing activities 

Totals 
Non- Prim ary Com ponent 

expendable Governm ent Units 
Trust (Memorandum Proprietary 
Fund Only) Funds 

- 13 - 

(100) 
(200) 
1,988 

~ A8.8 

(90,962) 
1,941 

(425) 

6,624 
(13,667) 
24,607 
(21,54o) 
3,785 
35,OOl 
0,032) 
12,611 

_ _~ m 29 

Totals 
Reporting Entity 

(Memorandum Only) 
1999 1998 

(ioo) 
(200) 
1,988 

(394) 

2,814 
__  

2,371 

1.688 4,791 

(90,962) 
1,941 

(425) 

6,624 
(13,667) 
24,607 
(21,540) 
3,785 
35,001 
(1,032) 
12,611 

_ X47 s=!g) 

(76,086) 
2,425 

(146) 

6,510 
(14,778) 
] 1,644 
(20,447) 
1,677 
51,148 
(474) 

12,233 
__  020) 

__ (~  8~_69) _~9() 8~ 9) ~ 26,414) 

(296,767) 

254,139 
14 3~ 996 

(296,767) (364,127) 

254,139 374,179 
15.068 

25,120 

(Continued) 



CITY O F NEW  O RLEANS, LO UISIANA 

COM BINED STATEM ENT O F CASH FLOW S - 
NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND AND SIM ILAR DISCRETELY 
PRESENTED COM PO NENT UNITS 
YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31. 1999 (AM OUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

EXHIBIT A -5 
Page 3 of 3 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASIt 
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASlt EQUIVALENTS, 
BEGINN ING OF YEAR 

CASII AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
END OF YEAR (Nole 1) 

See noles to finallcJal statelllents 

Totals 
Non- Prim ary Com ponent 

expendable Governm ent Units 
Trust (Memorandum Proprietary 
Fund Only) Funds 

34 

3 

$ 37 

34 

$ 37 

- 14 .. 

(72,337) 

91.733 

Totals 
Reporting Entity 
Mem orandum Only 
1999 1998 

(72,303) 

__ _
9
_  
1,736 

58,907 

32.829 

(Concluded) 



CITY O F NEW  O RLEANS, LO UISIANA 

COMBINED STATEM ENT OF CHANGES IN pLAN NET ASS~TS 
PENSION TRUST FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,1999 (IN THOUSANDS) 

EXHIBIT A-6 

Additions 

CONTRIBUTIONS: 
Employer 
M embers 
l)rivers' and chauffers' licenses 
}:ire insurance rebate 
Oilier 

Fire Fighters 

System System 

Proprietary 
Totals Com ponent 
Prim ary Unit 

Police Employees' Government -Sewera-~i- 
Old Retirement (Memorandum and W ater 

System System Only) Board 

Total Reporting Entity 
(Memorandum Only) 

987 
624 
184 
875 
252 

$ 33,781 
5,548 
],070 

71 

3otal contributions 17,626 4,396 815 9,906 32,743 6,179 38,922 40,470 

INVESTM ENT INCOM [ : 
Net appreciation in fair ~alue 
of investments 

Interest and dividends 
Other investment income 
Less investment expense 

Net investment income 

O'] 11ER INCOM E 

Total additions 

Deductions 

129 
337 

(7) 

459 

3 

8,088 

Pens/on bencfils 17,558 
Reflmds of member corer ibulions 
Administrative expenses 334 
q ransfers 24 

NE] INCREASE 

9,110 
7,117 

17 
(1,140) 

15,104 

18 

19,518 

6,609 
106 
276 

6,99 

106 

(I) 

105 

16 

936 

519 

122 
23 

664 

16,377 
11,734 
164 

(1,660) 

26,615 

36,52 

5,240 
1,523 

143 

6.906 

72 12,527 272 19,615 

25,722 
19,188 
181 

(2,808) 

42,283 

37 

75,063 

39,926 
1,629 
732 
190 

42,477 

0,216 
5,901 

(147 

22.149 

5,463 
352 
1.114 

35,938 
25,089 

181 
(2,955) 

58,253 

37 

97,212 

45,389 
1,981 
1,846 
190 

49.406 

16,782 
25,595 
28,492 
(2,490) 

6~,379 

5 

08,854 

42,353 
1,448 
1,349 
153 

63.55 

NE] ASSETS llEl II IN 
1 RLIS] FOI~. PI NSION 
BI-NI flq S - B} GINNING 
OF YEAR 9,251 189,793 2,464 355,566 557,074 156,613 713,687 650,136 

NEq ASS['I S IIELD IN 
3 RUSq IOR PENSION 
BINI117S-ENI) OF'f[AR $ 9,423 $202,320 $2,736 $375,181 $589,660 $ 761,493 
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C ITY O F N FW  O R LEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

NOTES TO FINA NCIA L STATEM ENTS 
YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31, 1999 

SUM M ARY O F SIG NIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of the City of New Orleans, Louisiana (the "City") have been prepared in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") for local governmental units as 
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB"). The most significant 
accounting and reporting policies of the City are described in the following notes to the financial 
statem ents. 

The City was incorporated in 1805. The City's system of governm ent was established by its lIom e Rule 
Charier which becam e effective in 1954 and was am ended effective January 1, 1996. The City operates 
under a M ayor-Council form of governm ent and provides the following types nf services as authorized 
by its charter: public safety, health, streets, sanitation, water and sewerage, planning and zoning, 
recreation, and general adm inistrative smwices. Education and welfare are adm inistered by other 
governntental entities. 

The financial statements of the reporting entity include those of the City (the primary government) and 
its component units in conform ity with GASB Statement No. 14, "The Financial Reporting Entity." 
Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the City are 
financially accountable, or the relationship to the City is such that exclusion would cause the City's 
financial statem ents to be m isleading or incomplete. The com ponent units discussed below are 
included in the City's reporting entity because of the significance of their operational or financial 
relationships w ith the City. 

Comlwnent Units - In conform ity with GAAt', the financial statem ents of component units have been 
in cluded in the financial reporting entity either as blended com ponent units or discretely presented 
com ponent units. Each blended and discretely presented component unit has a I)ecembcr 31 year end 
Com plete financial statem ents for each of the individual component units m ay be obtained at the 
entity's adm inistrative offices. 

Blended Component Units - For financial reporting purp oses, the following entities are included 
(blended) in the operations and activities of the City because these entities provide services 
substantially for the benefit of the City : Board of Liquidation, City Debt which handles all m atters 
relating to the bonded debt & the City and the Rivergate Developm ent Corporation whose sole 
responsibility Js to account for and oversee the developm ent of the land-based casino. Complete 
financial statem ents for these blended com ponent units m ay be obtained at the entity's adm inistrative 
offices. 

- 19- 



Discretely Presented Component Units - The general purpose financial statem ents of the City include all 
government activities, organizations and functions for which the City appoints a voting majority of the 
organizations governing body, the City is financially accountable, or the relationship to the City is such that 
exclusion would cause the City 's financial statements to be m isleading or incomplete. The City believes that 
the exclusion nfthe financial statem ents of the following associated organizations would cause the City's 
financial slalem em s to be m isleading or incom plete. 

Audubon Com m ission 
Canal Street Developm ent Corporation 
D owntown D evelopm ent D istrict 
French M arket Corporation 
M unicipal Yacht Harbor M anagem ent Corporation 
New Orleans Intern ational A irp ort 
New Orleans Tourism M arketing Corp oration 
Orleans Parish Com m unication D istrict 
Upper Pontalba Building Restoration Corp oration 
Sewerage and W ater Board of N ew Orleans 
N cw Orleans Econom ic D evelopm ent Corporation 

Condensed Financial Statements - Th e following are condensed financial statements of discretely presented 
com poncnl units disclosed above. Com plete financial statem ents of the individual component units can be 
obtained directly from their adm inistrative offices. 

Condensed Balance Sheet (amounts in thousands) 

Assets: 
Current assets 
Due from ethel govelnm ents 
Ocher assets 

Liabilities: 
Current liabilities/deferred revenues 
Due to prim ary governm ent 

Equity and othel credits: 
lnvesnllent in general fixed assets 
Fund balance 

Total equity and other credits 

Total liabilities, equity and 
other credits 

New Orleans 

Downtown Tourism 
Developm ent Marketing 

District Corporation 

56,014 

844 

L6,858 

S 1,538 
_ _
1,27

_
3 

_ _
27811 

759 
3,288 

_
4~047 

$6,858 
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$ 423 
1,343 
102 

$1,868 

$ 490 

490 

86 

1
._L~37g 

$1 ~868 

New Orleans 
Econom ic 

Developm ent 
Corporation Tota 

$ 6,448 
1,343 

_  
3,046 

$ 10,837 

$ 2,028 
_  

1,273 

3~301 

845 
6,691 

7,536 

$ 10,837 



Condensed Balance Sheet (amounts in thousands) 

Assets: 
Current assets 
Due from primary govern m ent 
Properly, net 
Other assets 
Due from oilier conlponent units 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 
Current liabilities/ 
deferred revenues 
Long-term bonds payable 
Due to otbel component units 
Due 1o prim aW  governm ent 
Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

New Orleans Sewerage 
Audubon International and 

Commission Airport W ater Board Other Total 

33,116 $ 197,858 
1,261 200 
77,593 883,221 
74,801 146,394 

135 

$ 8,800 
1,518 
28,636 
12,065 

33 

$136,542 $ 486,771 $1,227,808 $ 5~ . $1,902,173 

8,304 
55,063 

307 

971 

64,645 

Equity and other credits: 
Contributed capital 
Retained earnings, reserved 
Retained earnings, unreserved 71,897 
N et assets - Pension Trust Fund 

218.573 

196,247 
12,400 
59,551 

Total equily and tuber credits 
__ ~ 97_ 2681~898 

57,539 $ 
80,485 

135 
256 

4.698 

143.113 

148,117 
764.744 

171,834 

1.084~95 

1,530 $ 88,611 
8,583 340,432 

33 475 
712 2,002 

4.867 10.536 

5.725 

1,476 
0,92(I 
2,931 

35.327 

442.056 

355,840 
788,064 
144,379 
171.834 

1.460.117 

Total liabilities, equity and 
other credits $ 136,542 $ 486,771 $1,227,808 $ .~;1,05___.2a $1,902,173 

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (amounls in thousands) 

New Orleans 
Dow ntow n Tourism 
Developm ent Marketing 

District Corporation 

Revenues $ 4,231 
Expenditures 5,028 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expe (797) 
Fund balance, beginning of year 

. 
4,085 

Fund balance, end of year 

$ 6,483 
6,022 
461 
831 

New Orleans 
Econom ic 

Developm ent 
Corporation 

$ 26 
27 

(1) 
2,112 

Total 

$10,740 
11,077 

(337) 
7,028 
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Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings (amounts in thousands) 

Operating revenues 
Ta~ revenues 
Operating and other expenses 
Depreciation 

Operating income (loss) 
Nonoperatin8 revenues, net 
Specific grants 
Transfer out to prim ary govem n'Jent 

Nel income (loss) 
Depreciation on fixed assets 
acquired by contribution 
Retained earltings, beginning 
of year 

New Orleans Sewerage 
Audubon International and 

Com m ission Airport W ater Board 

$ 23,314 $ 56,132 

(26,583) 
_ _  5~ .58D 

(8,854) 
8,966 
3,785 

3,897 

(35,426) 
(22,211) 

(1,505) 
1.864 

$ 94,838 
32,857 

(98,220) 
.~ 629) 

1,846 
5.457 

359 7,303 

8,771 

Other 

S 10,281 

(7,954) 
._  1~ 9_0 

736 
2.017 

._  1~.~0_0) 

1.753 

_  
68~

_Q0 _0 62,821 7._~57 441 ._22~ 009_8_ 

Tota 

$ 184,565 
32,857 

(168,183) 
(57~016) 

(7,777) 
18,304 
3,785 

(1 ~000) 

13,312 

8,771 

910.360 

Retained earnings, end of year $
.._
71,

_897 $ 71,951 $ 764,744 ~; 23r851 $ 932,443 

Related and Jointly Governed Organizations 

Related organizations and jointly governed organizations provide services within the City that are administered 
by separate boards or com m issions, but the City is not financially accountable, and such organizations are 
therefore not com ponent units of the City, even though the M ayor and/or City Council m ay appoint a voting 
majority of an or~ganization's board. Consequently, financial information for the following entities is not 
included within the scope of these financial statem ents. 

Related Oiganizations - For the following organizations, the M ayor and/or City Council appoints a voting 
maj ority of the members of the respective boards. 

Community Improvement Agency 
Housing Authority of N ew Orleans 
N ew Orleans H om e M ortgage Authority 
Public Belt Railroad Com m ission 
New Orleans Affordable ltome Ownership, Inc 

Jointly Governed Organizations - The City is a participant in other jointly gow,rned organizations. The 
M ayor and/or City Council appoints m embers of the boards for the following m ganizations. Such 
al)pointments represent less than a voting majority of the respective boards. 

N ew Orleans Regional Loan Corporation 
New Orleans City Park Improvem ent Association 
New Orleans Exhibition Hall Authority 
Regional Transit Authority 
Regional Planning Com m ission 
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Basis of Presentation - The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds or account groups, 
each of which is considered a separate accounting entity and is m aintained for the purpose of carrying 
on spccific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions 
or limitalions. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing 
accounts that com prise its assets, liabilities, fund balance, revenues and expenditures. 

The City's charter establishes eight categories of funds to record the City's financial transactions. For 
financial reporting purposes, the following fund categories (further divided by fund type) and account 
groups are used by the City: 

G overnm ental Funds 

Governm ental funds are those through which m ost governm ental functions of the City are financed. 
The acquisition, use and balances of the City's expendable financial resources and the related liabilities 
are accountcd for through governm ental funds. The m easurem ent focus is upon detern fination of 
changes in financial position, rather than upon net incom e determ ination. The following are the City's 
governm ental funds: 

General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account 
for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in other funds 

Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific 

revenue sources (other than expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted 
to cxpenditures for specified purp oses. 

Debt Service Funds - Debt se~wice funds are used to account for the accum ulation of resources 
for, and the paym ent of, general long-term  debt principal, interest and related costs. 

Capital Projects Funds - Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources to be 
used for the acquisition or construction & major capital facilities (other than those financed by 
trust fimds). 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent for 
individuals, private organizations, other govern m ental units and/or other funds. 

Trust and Agency Funds - Trust and agency funds include expendable, nonexpendable, pension 
trust and agency funds. Nonexpendable and pension trust funds are accounted for in essentially 
the same manner as proprietary funds (see discussion of proprietary funds under "Component 
Units" below) since capital maintenance is critical. Expendable trust funds and agency funds are 
accounted for in essentially the sam e m anner as governm ental funds except that agency funds are 

custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of 
operations. 
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A ccount G roups 

Account groups are used to establish accounting control and accountability for the City's general fixed 
assets and general long-term debt. They are self-balancing groups of accounts ~.hat are concerned only 
w ith the m easurem ent of financial position, not w ith the m easurem ent of results of operations. The 
follow ing are the City's account groups: 

General Fixed Assets Account Group - This account group is established to account for fixed 

assets of the City (primary government only). 

General Long-Ternt D ebt Account Group - ']'his account group is established to account for al 
long-term debt of the City (primary government only). 

Com ponent U nils 

Com ponent units of the City are accounted for in either govern m ental funds or proprietary funds bascd 
upon their activities and m easurem ent focus. 

Gm,ernm ental Funds - Governm ental funds are those through which m ost govern m ental 
functions are financed. Th e m easurem ent focus is upon determ ination of changes in financia 
position, rather than determ ination of net incom e. 

Proprietary Funds - Proprietary  funds are used to account for ongoing activities which are sim ilar 
to those found in the private sector. Such funds are used (a) where the intent of the governing 
body is that the cost (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the 
general public be financed and recovered through user charges; or (b) where the goveruing body 
has decided that periodic determ ination of revenues earn ed, expenses incurred, and/or net incom e 
is appropriate for capital m aintenance, public policy, m anagement control, accountability or other 

Prior Period Restatem ent - During 1999, the New Orleans Econom ic Developm ent Corporation 
became a component unit of the City . The beginning fund balances of the component units - 
governmental and the 1998 total reporting entity (memorandum only) have been increased by 
$2,112,000 to reflect the corporation's equity balance at the beginning of 1999. 

The beginning balance of the General Long-Term Debt Account Group has been restated to reflect an 
issuance of $109,960,000 of certificates of indebtedness during 1998. Th is debt issuance refunded the 
City's Series 1992 certificates of indebtedness and lhe debt incurred under the m erger agreem ent 
between M unicipal Police Em ployee's Retirem ent System and the City's Board of']~ustees of the 
Police Pension Fund. Th e im pact of this refunding had the effect of increasing general long-term debt 
by $11,047,000 at December 31, 1998. 

In 1998, $25,000,000 relating to the Jazzland Theme Park grantee loan receivable (see Note 4) was 
recorded as revenue in the special revenue fund. During 1999, it was determ ined that this revenue 
should have been deferred and recognized as revenue as the receivable is liquidated and accordingly, 
this anaount has been reclassified as deferred revenue. The com bined balance sheet reflects an increase 
in defen ed revenues and a decrease in fund balance in this am ount in the 1998 reporting entity totals 

(memorandum only). Intergovernmental revenues reflected in the Totals Reporting Entity 
(M emorandum Only) for 1998 as reported in the combined statement of revenues, expenditures and 
changes in fund balance - all governm ental fund types, expendable trust funds and sim ilar discretely 
presented component units have been reduced by $25,000,000 to reflect the correction referred to 
above. 
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Basis ofAecountlng - All governmental funds (including governmental component units), expendable 
trust and agency funds are accounted for using the m odified accrual basis of accounting. Their 
revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., both measurable and available). Available 
m eans cun'ently due and expected to be collected within the next two m onths for property taxes and 
generally the next twelve m onths for other revenues. Revenues not considered available are recorded as 
deferred revenues. Significant revenues which are considered susceptible to accru al include sales and 
franchise tax revenues which are based upon actual collections of December taxes m ade during January 
and February  of the following year, property taxes, interest, certain charges for services and 
in~ergoveru m enta'l revenues. Anticipated refunds of taxes are recorded as 'fiabilities and reductions of 
revenue when they are m easurable and their validity is reasonably assured. Expenditures are generally 
recognized under the m odified accrual basis of accounting when the related fund liability is incurred, if 
m easurable, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, vacation and sick leave and 

claims and judgments which are recognized when paid. Prepaid insurance and similar items are not 
norm ally recorded as assets. 

Licenses and pernfits, certain charges for services, fines and forfeits and m iscellaneous other reventJes 
(except investment earnings) are recorded as revenues when received in cash because they are generally 
not m easurable or available until actually received. Investm ent earn ings are recorded as earned since 
they are m easurable and available. 

In applying the "sosceptible to accrual" concept to intergovem m ental revenues, the legal and 
contractual requirem ents of the individual program s are used as guidance. There are essentially two 

types of such revenues. In one, monies must be expended for the specific purpose or project before any 
am ounts will be reimbursed to the City; therefore, revenues are recognized based upon the expenditures 
recorded. In the other, m onies are virtually unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and are usually 
revocable only for failure to com ply with prescribed compliance requirem ents. Such revenues are 
recognized at the tim e of receipt or earlier if the "susceptible to accru al" criteria are m et. 

All proprietary  funds and nonexpendable trust funds and pension trust funds are accounted for on the 
flow of econom ic resources m easurem ent focus and use the accrual basis of accounting. Th eir revenues 
are recogn ized when earn ed, and their expenses are recognized when incmled. Unbilled utility service 
receivables of the Sewerage and W ater Board of New Orleans are not recorded in the general purpose 
financial statem ents as m anagem ent considers the effect of not recording such unbilled receivables to 
be insignificant in relation to the proprietary  com ponent unit financial statem ents. Under the provisions 
of GA SB Statem ent No. 20, "A ccounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary  Fund Accounting," 
the City has elected not to follow Financial Accounting Standards Board guidance issued subsequent to 
Novem ber 30, 1989. 

BudgetaO, Data - The procedures used by the City in establishing the budgetary  data recorded in the 
general purpose financial statem ents are as follows: 

(1) Not later than November 1, the M ayor submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget 
for the fiscal year com m encing the following January 1. The operating budget includes proposed 
expenditures and the m eans of financing them . 

(2) t'ublic hearings are conducted, after proper official public notification, to obtain taxpayer 
conqm ents. 

(3) Not later than December l, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance 
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(4) The City's budget ordinance is structured such that revenues are budgeted by source and 
expenditures are budgeted by department and by principal object classification within a 
departm ent. The City's Charter provides that expenditures m ay not legally exceed appropriations 
either at a departmental level or at the principal object classification within a department. 

Budgetary comparisons are presented in the individual fund financial statem ents at this level of 
detail. The M ayor's office is allowed to authmize the transfer of budgeted am ounts from one 

budget activity to another within a principal object classification within the same department. 
Budgetary transfers between principal object classifications of the same department or between 
departm ents m ust be approved by the City Council. Throughout the year several am endm ents to 
the budget were m ade by the City Council. The total effect of these am endm ents was im m ateria 
Budgeted am ounts reflected in Exhibit A-3 are as finally am ended by the City Council. Th ere 
were no supplem ental appropriations necessary during the current year. 

(5) The City utilizes formal budgetmy integration as a management control device during the year for 
~be general and capital projects funds. The capital budget ordinances which encompass the eapJlal 
prqiccts fund present cumulative budgets by project as opposed to annual budget amounts; thus, 
budget and actual com parisons are not reported in the general purpose financial statem ents for 
those funds. Form al budgetary integration is not employed for the debt service and special 
revenue funds because effective budgetary control is alternatively achieved through other 
provisions. 

(6) The budget, non-GAAP budgetary basis, and actual comparisons presented in Exhibit A-3 in the 
general purp ose financial statem ents include the general fund. The budget for the general fund is 
included in the operating budget which is legally adopted by the (.'it5' Council. 

(7) 

(8) 

The Combined Statem ent of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Actual and 
Budget (Exhibit A-3) presents comparisons of the legally adopted budget (non-G AAP basis) with 
actual data on a budgetary basis. In the general fund, accounting principles applied for purposes 
of developing data on the budgetary basis differ from those used to present financial statements in 
conform ity with GAAP. A reconciliation of this basis and tim ing differences is presented below 
(amounts in thousands): 

Deficiency of revenues and other financing sources over 
expenditures and other financing uses (budgetary basis) 
Adjustments: 
"I'o adjust revenues for accruals and deferrals 
'I'o reverse December 31, 1999 encumbrances recorded 
as expenditures on the budgetary basis in 1999 
Reduction in prior year's outstanding encum brances 
To add back prior year's encumbrances paid in 1999, 
but not recorded as expenditures on the budgetary  basis 
m 1999 
To adjust expenditures tbr accruals 
Deficiency of revenues and other financing sources over 
expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP basis) 

$ (7,820) 

(997) 

14,465 
(210) 

(11,422) 
1 ~453 

Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year end. Current year transactions which are directly 
related to a prior year's budget are not rebudgeted in the current year. 
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Encum brances - In accordance with the City's Charter, an encumbrance is established when a valid 
requisition is properly approved. Encum brance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, 
and other comm itments for the expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the 
applicable appropriation, is employed in the general, special revenue and capital projects funds. 
Appropriations are valid only for the year in which m ade. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are 
reported as reservations of fund balances since the com m itm ents will be honored through subsequent 
years' budget appropriations. Encumbrances do not constitute expenditures or liabilities on a GAAP 
basis. 

lnvesOnents - Investments are stated at fair value 

Component Unit htvetttory - Inventory of supplies of the proprietary component units is staled at the 
lower of cost or m arket as determ ined by the first-in, first-out m ethod. Such invenlory  of supplies is 
charged to expense when consum ed. 

Advances to Other Funds- Long-term advances to other funds are recorded as a receivable and as a 
reserv ation of fund balance in the governmental fund types to indicate that these assets do not constitute 
"expendable available financial resources." 

Component Unit Restricted Assets" - Restricted assets are established in the com ponent unit proprietary 
funds in accordance with bond indentures. 

General FLvedAssets - General fixed assets have be.en acquired for general governm ental purposes of 
the City as a w hole. Assets purchased are recorded as expenditures in the general, special revenue and 

capital projects funds and are capitalized in the general fixed assets account group. All purchased fixed 
assets are stated at historical cost or estim ated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. 
Contributed fixed assets are recorded at estimated fair m arket value at the tim e received. 

Public dom ain general fixed assets, consisting of certain im provem ents other than buildings, including 
roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks and lighting system s, are not capitalized, and are 
not included in the general fixed assets account group. Such assets normally are imm ovable and of 
value only to the Cily; therefore, the purp ose of stewardship for these capital expenditures is satisfied 
w ithout recording such assets. 

No depreciation has been provided on general fixed assets, and interest has not been capitalized due to 
insignificance. 

Component Unit Property, Plant andEqMpm ent - Property, plant and equipm ent associated with the 
activities of the proprietary  com ponent unit funds are recorded as assets of those funds and are stated at 
historical cost, if purchased, or at fair m arket value at date of gift, if donated. 

Additions, improvem ents and expenditures that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are 
capitalized. The interest cost of borrowed fimds used to finance construction projects is capitalized 
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For the N ew Orleans International Airport, depreciation recognized on property, plant and equipm ent 
acquired through intergovernm ental grants, entitlem ents, or shared revenues externally restricted to capital 
acquisitions, is included as an operating expense and a reduction of contributed eapitah 

Depreciation is provided over the estim ated useful lives using the straight-line m ethod. The estim ated useful 

lives (in years) used for computing depreciation for the City's proprietary component units are as follows: 

Orleant, 

Communl. 
cation 
District 

Piers and boat launch 
Canals 
Runways, aprons, 
etc. 
Buildings and 
improvclllenls 
M achinery and 
cquipmc~t 3-25 
Utility systems 

Municipal 
~e~ ~ we~a~e ~~cb, t 

Orleans and Harbor 
Audubon International W ater Management 
Commission Alrporl Board Corporation 

10-35 

3-15 

5-15 

3-25 

3-10 
10-25 

00 

25-57 

12-40 
50-75 

00 

25-100 

3 

Upper 
French Pontatba Caiaal 
Market Building Street 
Corpo- Restoration Development 
ration Corporation Corporation 

10-50 

3-10 

25-40 50 

3-5 

Fully depreciated fixed assets are included in the property, plant and equipm ent accounts until their disposal. 
The cost of a ssets sold or retired and the related am ounts of accumulated depreciation are elim inated from the 
accounts in the year of sale or retirem ent, and any resulting gain or loss is recorded in the general purpose 
financial statem ents. 

Long-Term Liabilities - Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from govern m ental funds are 
accounted for in the get~eral long-term debt account group. 

Annual and Sick Leave - All full-tim e classified employees of the City hired piior to January l, 1979 arc 
permitted to accrue a maximum of 90 days of vacation (annual leave) and an unlimited number of days of 
sick leave (accumulated at a maximum of 24 days per year). Employees hired after l)ecember 31, 1978 can 
accrue a m axinm m of 45 days of annual leave and an unlim ited number of days of sick leave. Upon 
term ination of em ploym ent, an employee is paid for accrued annual leave based upon his or her current 
hourly rate of pay and for accrued sick leave on a form ula basis. If termination is the result ofretirenlent, the 
em ployee has the optiorl of converting accru ed sick leave to additional years of service. 

For govern m ental funds, annual and sick leave expenditures are recorded when paid, and any unpaid current 
liability is considered to be im m aterial to the related governm ental funds. Accordingly, the liability related 
to govern mental funds, which am ounted to $50,788,000 at December 31, 1999, is reported in the general 
long-term debt account group. 

Litigation - Governmental funds recognize claims and judgments as expenditures according to Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards No. 5, "Accounting for Contingencies," and National Council on 
Governm ental Accounting Statem ent N o. 4, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Claim s and Judgm ents 
and Compensated Absences." Therefore, the amount of expenditures for claims and judgments recorded is 
the amount accrued during the year that would norm ally be liquidated with expendable available financial 
resources. Other liabilities not expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are 
reported as liabilities in the general long-term debt account group. Estimates of claims and judgment 
liabilities (both incurred and reported and incurred but not reported) are made throush a case-by-case review 
of all claim s and the application of historical experience to the outstanding claitns. 
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Reserves - Reserves are reported in the various funds to indicate that a portion of the fund balance/retained 
earnings is not appropriable for expenditure/expense or is legally segregated for a specific future use. 

Component Unit Tax Revenues - The Sewerage and W ater Board of N ew Orleans includes the operations of 
the City's drainage system . Because of the peculiar geography of the City, the provision for drainage service 
is essential for the operation of the water and sewerage system s. The drainage system is financed by property 
tax levies (recorded as operating revenues), not by user charges, the usual revenue source for a proprietary 
fund activity. However, because of the unique character of services provided by the drainage system, 
proprietary fund accounting is necessary  to provide m eaningful m easurem ent of cost of serv ices and capital 
m aintenance of the system . 

Statement of (?ash Flows - For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the nonexpendable trust fund and 
all discretely presented proprietary  com ponent units consider all highly liquid investm ents with an original 
m aturity of ninety days or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. Th e nonexpendable trust fund cash 
and cash equiwdents consists of $37,000 in cash. The discretely presented proprietary component unit 
accounls are as follows at December 31, 1999 (amounts in thousands): 

Cash and cash 
equivalents $ t ,035 
Certificates of 
deposit 

Restricled cash 
Cash and cash 

New 
Orleans 

Audubon Internatlona 
Com mission Airport 

$128 $ 2,40t $2,966 $ 57 

6,887 
3,195 24(I 

equivalents per 
Statcm enl of 

Cash V,o,,,~ LSozbs_ $12_....28 

French 
Market 
Corpo- 
ration 

Canat 
Street 

Development 
Corporation Total 

$ 896 $ 9,074 

6,887 
3~435 

M enlorandum Totals - Total columns on the general purp ose financial statements are captioned 
"M em orandum Only" to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these 
columns do not present financial position, results of operations, or cash flows in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. Such data is not comparable to a consolidation. Interfund elim inations have 
not been m ade in the aggregation of this data. 

New Accounting Pronouncement - The Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") has adopted 
new requirem ents for annual financial statem ents of state and local govern m ent. GASB Statem ent No. 34, 
"Basic Financial Statem ents and M anagem ent's D iscussion and Analysis for State and Local Governm ents" 
w ill significantly change the way governm ents report their finances to the public. The financial reports 
prepared under the new system will provide financial information from a total govennnent prospective and 

will include the following: (1) a financial's manager's discussing the City of New Orleans' (the "City") 
financial position and results of previous year's operations, (2) a statement of net assets and a statement of 
activities disclosing all of its assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses, (3) disaggregated information about 
the most important or major funds, including the general fund, and (4) a supplementary schedule comparing 
original, final, and actual information on the budgetary basis for general fund and major special revenue 
funds. GASB Statem ent N o. 34 will becom e effective for the City's fiscal year ending December 31,2002. 
The City is currently in the process of evaluating the im pact of GASB Statem ent N o. 34 on its financial 
statem ents. 
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2. DEPOSITS, CASII EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTM ENTS 

D eposits - The City is authorized by state statute to open depositories in only those banks with branch offi ces 
w ithin the City's lim its. 

Cash Equivalents - Cash equivalents consist of governm ent backed pooled funds and com m ercial paper 
The funds are held by tile fund's custodian's trust department in the fund's name. 

At December 3 l, 1999, the carrying amount of the City's (primary government only) deposits and cash 
equivalents were $185,341,000, and the bank balance was $181,539,000. The City's bank balance is 
categorized below (amounts in thousands) to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the City at 
year end. Category I includes insured or collateralized cash with securities held by the City or by its agent in 
the City's nam e. Category 2 includes collateralized cash with securities held by the pledging financial 
institution's trn st departm ent or agent in the City's nam e. Category  3 includes uncollateralized cash, 
including any bank balance that is collateralized w ith securities held by the pledging financial institution, or 
by its trust departm ent or agent but not in the City's nam e. 

Bank balance: 
Cash 
Cash equivalents 
Certificates of deposit 

Category 
2 3 Tota 

$31,390 $ 25,664 $ - 
63,216 
61,269 

$31 392 3150,149 $ 

$ 57,054 
63,216 
61,269 

$181,539 

havestm ents - Investm ents in certificates of deposit can be placed with Louisiana state banks or w ith national 
banks having their principal offices in the state. State statutes authorize the City, except for the pension trust 
funds, to invest in U .S. bonds, treasury  notes and other federally-insured investm ents. The City also m ay 
invest in repurchase agreem ents secured by U .S. Governm ent obligations. Iu addition to the above securities, 
the pension trust funds are authorized under State statutes to invest in annuity contracts, equity securities and 
certain other insured investm ents. 

The City's investments (primary government only) are categorized below (amounts in thousands) to give an 
indication of the level of risk assum ed by the City at year end. Category 1 includes investments that are 
insured or registered, or held by the City or its agent in the City's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and 
unregistered investm ents for which the securities are held by the financial institution's trust departm ent or 
agent in the City's nam e. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investm ents for which the 
securities are held by the fiuancial institution or by its trust departm ent, or agent, but not in the City's nam e. 

U .S. Governm ent securities 
and instrum entalities 
Corporate bonds 
Equity securities 
N otes receivable 

M utual funds 
M o~gages 

Totalinvestm ents 

Category 
1 2 

$245,944 $ 
107,454 
277,021 

._ ~ _4 7_6o 

.. 30- 

3 

$ 

Carrying 
Am ount 

$ 245,944 
107,454 
277,021 
4,760 

$  
.
~ _ 635,179 

36,466 
21,156 



3. TAX REVFNUES 

Tax revenues by fund type for the year ended December 31, 1999 are as follows (amounts in 
thousands): 

Sales 
Real and personal property 
Dedicated tax m illage 
Penalties and interest on delinquent taxes 
Utilities 
Beverage excise 
Am usem ent 
Parking 
D ocum entary transaction 
Other 

General 
Special 
Revenue 

Debt 
Service 

$133,490 
22,373 $ 5,402 $ 41,031 
43,331 
2,355 
8,914 
723 

1,712 
2,048 
5,880 
1,089 

A t I)eeem ber 3 l, 1999, the total sales tax levied in the City is nine percent. Four percent is state sales 

tax. One and one-half percent is levied by the Orleans Parish School Board (the School Board). One 
percent is dedicated for transportation and is levied by the Regional Transit Authority (RTA). The 
rem aining two and one-half percent is used to fund the general operations of the City. The City 
adm inisters and collects the entire five percent of local sales tax. The School Board's portion of the 
sales tax is accounted for in the Orleans Parish School Board sales tax clearing fund, and the RTA's 
portion of the sales tax is accounted for in the RTA sales tax clearing fund, both of which are agency 
funds. 

The City levies a tax on real and personal property. A portion of these property taxes are dedicated for 
fire and police protection services and the public library system . Taxes on real and personal property 
are levied on January I of the assessm ent year based upon the assessed value as of the prior August 15. 
Itowevel, before the tax can be levied, the tax rolls m ust be subm itted to the Slate Tax Com m ission for 
approval. Taxes are due and payable on January 1, the date on which an enforceable lien attaches on 
the property, and are delinquent on February 1. 

The assessed value of property in the City of New Orleans for each year is determined by an elected 
Board of Assessors. It is then certified by the Louisiana Tax Commission as complying with the 
Louisiana Constitution of 1974. The City is permitted by the Louisiana statute,; to levy taxes up to 
$31.78 per $1,000 of assessed valuation for general governmental services (including fire and police) 
other than the paym ent of principal and interest on long-term debt and other purposes specifically 
approved by the voters. It is perm itted to levy taxes in unlim ited am ounts for the paym ent of principal 
and interest on general obligation bonds of the City. 
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Property tax levies per $1,000 of assessed valuation accounted for within the funds of the City (primary 
govennnent only) for the year ended December 31, ] 999 are as follows: 

General: 
General governm ental services 
Dedicated for fire and police 
Public library 
Fire and police 
Parkways and parks and recreation departm ent 
Street and traffic control device m aintenance 
Special revenue: 
N eighborhood housing im provem ent fund 
N ew Orleans econom ic developm ent fund 
Debt service 

$ 14.91 
6.40 
4.32 
10.47 
3.00 
1.90 

1.25 
1.25 

26.90 

$ 70.40 

Property taxes levied during 1999, collected during 1999, or expected to be collected within the first 60 
days of 2000, are recognized as revenues in 1999. Taxes receivable, estim ated to be collected 
subsequent to the first 60 days of 2000, in the am ount of $21,739,000 are recorded as deferred revenues 
Prior year levies were recorded using substantially the sam e principles, and rem aining receivables arc 
reevaluated annually. Property taxes paid under protest are held in escrow until resolution of the 
dispute. 

4. G RANTEE LO AN S 

The City has received certain grant awards from the United States Departm ent ofttousing and Urban 

Developmcnt (]tUD) for the purposes of providing loans to the private sector for completion of projects 
that w ill stim ulate econom ic developm ent activity in the City. Tw elve individual loans are outstanding 
at December 31, 1999 totaling $35,049,000 which bear interest at rates ranging from 0% to 7% . These 
loans are receivable over a fifteen to thirty year period and are recorded as deferred revenue at 

December 31, 1999. Once loan payments are received and the project is accepted by ltUD, the City 
m ay use the am ounts received for other allowable econom ic developm ent activities specified in the 
grant agreem ent. 

The future m aturities of grantee loans receivable as of December 31, 1999, including interest receipts of 
$16,168,000, are as follows (amounts in thousands): 

Year Ending 
Decem ber 31 

2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 and thereatter 
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3,498 
3,498 
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3,498 
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One of the grantee loans receivable, amounting to $7,263,000, relates to the development of the 
Riverfront M arketplace. In addition to the stated interest of 6.55%  on this loan, the City participates in 

30% of the net annual cash flows of the project. The City's participation interest is receivable 120 days 
after the project's year end. This brings the cumulative annual effective yield on the loan up to a 
m axim urn of 10% . The cum ulative annual effective yield on the loan cannot be less flaan 8.5% . The 
City will also participate in 30%  of the net proceeds of any sale, refinancing or other disposition of the 
project, in whole or in part. Th e Riverfront M arketplace began operations in September 1986. No 
am ounts were due at Decem ber 31.1999. 

During 1998, the U .S. Departm ent of ltousing and Urban Developm ent agreed to loan to the City 
$25,300,000 for the developm ent of the Jazzland Theme Park. The City received $25,000,000 of the 
proceeds in the prior year and the rem aining funds during the current year. Th ese funds were 

subsequently loaned to Jazzland, Inc. ("Jazzland") and are due from Jazzland in bi-annual installments 
plus 7.87%  interest. The final paym ent is due August 1, 2017 with principal paym ents com m encing on 
O ctober 15. 2000. 

5. FIX ED A SSETS 

A summm~y of changes in general fixed assets (amounts in thousands) is as follows 

Land 
Buildings and improvem ents 
Equipm ent 
Construction in progress 

Balance 
January 1 

1999 

Balance 
Decem ber 31 

Additions Deletions 1999 

$ 30,716 
$ 4,645 $ 275 192,881 
6,553 1,400 66,861 
19,702 9,098 207,347 

$477,678 $30,900 $ 10,773 $497,805 

General fixed assets construction in progress is composed of the following, by department (amounts in 
thousands): 

M ayor (CAO) 
Police 
Fire 
Property M anagem ent 
Recreation 
ltum an Services 
Parks and Parkways 
Utilities 
Public Library 
Isaac D elgado M useum 
Sanitation D epartm ent 
Safety and Permits 
M osquito Control Board 
H ealth 
City Planning Com m ission 
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Expended to 

Project December 31, 
Authorization 1999 Com m itted 

$ 86,423 
16,415 
13,171 
56,454 
26,639 
6,592 
17,528 
473 

9,102 
6,021 
18,915 
1,134 
1,447 
3,970 
4.871 

$ 71,814 
10,747 
10,146 
45,929 
19,251 
1,011 
15,368 

63 
7,330 
6,016 
12,166 
1,050 
1,133 
1,052 
4,271 

$14,609 
5,668 
3,025 
10,525 
7,388 
5,581 
2,160 
410 

1,772 
5 

6,749 
84 
314 

2,918 
600 

$269,155 $207,347 $61,808 



LONG -TERAI DEBT 

Bond Transactions - The following is a summ ary of bond transactions for the City for the year ended 
December 31, 1999 (amounts in thousands): 

Bonds payable at January 1, 1999 
Bonds issued in 1999 
Bonds retired 

Bonds payable at Decem ber 31, 1999 

General 
Obligation 

$ 487,676 
32,400 
(23,040) 

The City's legal debt lim it for general obligation bonds is $774,304,000. At December 31, 1999, the 
City's legal debt margin (after the reduction for outstanding general obligation bonds of $497,036,000 
less $32,605,000 available in Debt Service Funds) was $309,873,000. 

On November 1, 1999, the City of New Orleans issued $32,400,000 in Public hnprovement Bonds. The 
bonds w ere isstled for im provem ents to streets, parks, public libraries, Itouse of Detention and central 
lock-up; and the acquisition, construction, improvem ents and renovations to public buildings. 

Bonds payable at I)ecembcr 31, 1999, are comprised of the following (all bonds are serial bonds) 

Description 

G eneral obligation bonds: 
1992-99 Public Im provem ent Bonds, due in 
annual installments ranging from $325,000 
to $2,610,000 through December 2026 
1991 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, 
due in annual installm ents ranging 
from $2,080,000 to $28,585,000 
com m encing September 2004 through 
September 2021 
1995 General Obligalion Refunding 
Bonds, due in annual installm ents 
ranging from $2,080,000 to $25,490,000 
through October 1,2021 
1998 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, 
due in annual installm ents ranging from 
$3,347,000 to $11,766,000 commencing 
D ecem ber 1998 through Decem ber 2012 
1996 Lim ited Tax Bonds, due in annual 
installm ents from $1,240,000 to $1,970,000 
com mencing M arch 1997 thr ough 
M arch 1, 2006 

Total general obligation bonds 
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Original 

Issue (In 
thousands 
of dollars) 

Range of 
Average 
Interest 
Rates 

Am ount 
Outstanding 

(in thousands 
of dollars) 

$217,400 5.196 to 6.84 $ 77,610 

179,881 7.07 155,016 

167,340 6.03 148.165 

106,520 4.95 104,365 

15,800 4.82 11,880 

$497,03
.~6 



The requirem ent to am ortize all bonds outstanding as of December 31, 1999, including interest 
payments of $594,834,000 are as follows (amounts in thousands): 

Year Ending 
Decem ber 31 

2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005-2009 
2010-2014 
2015- 2019 
2020 - 2024 
2025-2026 

General 
Obligation 

232,817 
125,347 
29.238 

The City's debt service fund is held by the Board & Liquidation, City Debt (the Board of Liquidation), 
an autonom ous, self-perpetuating board created under the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. A ll property 
taxes levied by the City and dedicated to the paym ent of outstanding general obligation bonds are 
collected by the City and, as required by law, paid over to the Board of Liquidation as collected. 

The Board of Liquidation annually determ ines the am ount of property tax m illage necessary to be 
levied and collected by the City in the next fiscal year for the paym ent during such year of principal and 
interest on all outstanding general obligation bonds of the City, and all such bonds proposed to be 
issued by the City during such year. The annual determ ination of the necessary tax m illage to service 
bonds of the City is adopted by resolution of the Board of Liquidation, which is subm itted to the City 
Council. The m illage recom m ended by the Board of Liquidation is then levied by the City Council. 
The m illages for the various lim ited bonds of the City were established at the tim e the bonds were 
issued, based upon approval of the voters. 

Adm inistrative expenditures paid in connection with the operations of the Board of Liquidation are 
recorded in the City's debt serv ice fund. 

The various bond indentures contain significant lim itations and restrictions on annual debt serv ice 
requirements, m aintenance of and flow of monies through various restricted accounts, m inimum 
anm unts to be m aintained in various sinking funds, and m inim um revenue bond coverages. At 
December 31, 1999, the City is in compliance with all such significant lim itations and restrictions 
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Advance Refundings - In prior years, the City entered into advance refunding transactions whereby it 
issued General Obligation Refunding Bonds to effect early retirem ent of certain General Obligation 
Bonds. The net proceeds of these refunding bonds were placed in irrevocable escrow accounts and 
invested in U .S. Treasury obligations that together with interest earned thereon, will provide anaounts 
sufficienl for paym ent of all principal and interest on the refunded bonds. Accordingly, the escrow 
accounts and the refundable bonds are no longer included on the City's com bined balance sheet. 
Refunded bonds at December 31, 1999 are as follows (amounts in thousands): 

1986 G eneral Obligation Bonds 

Other General Long-term Debt - The following is a sum m ary of other liabilities recorded in the genera 
long-term debt account group for the year ended Dee.ember 31, 1999 (amounts in thousands): 

Claims and judgments (Note 11) 
Landfill closing costs (Note 11) 
A ccrued annual and sick leave 
(Note 1) 
Paym ent due to the Audubon 
Commission (Note 8) 
1998 certificates of indebtedness 
(see below) 
IIUD Section 108 loan 
(see below) 
}iUD and DOL for disallowed 
costs (see below) 

Total 

Balance Balance 
January 1, Additions Deletions Decem ber 31 

1999 1999 
(As restated 
see Note 1) 

$126,947 $51,675 
13,022 

53,840 

1,643 

109,475 

30,125 

__ 7.223 

$ (50,354) 
(245) 

$128,268 
12.777 

(3,052) 50,788 

(72) 1,571 

(7,145) 102,330 

300 (195) 30,230 

_ 4(50,01_1) 3,212 

$342,275 $51,975 $~  $329,176 

The City has entered into contracts for Loan Guarantee Assistance under Section 108 of the Housing 
and Community Development Act of 1974, with the Secretary  of ttousing and Urban Development 
(tIUD) as guarantor. Th e loans consist of notes bearing interest at either fixed interest rates ranging 
from 8.70% to 8.75%  or variable interest rates based upon the London Interbank Offered Rate 
(LIBOR). As of December 31, 1999, $30,230,000 is recorded as a liability in the general long-term 
debt accoun| group. Th e $300,000 addition during 1999 is reflected in deferred revenue at 
December 31, 1999. 
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The requirements to amortize the Section 108 loans are as follows (amounts in thousands) 

Year Ending 
Decem ber 31 

Total 

nterest Principal 

$ 2,072 
2,074 
6,285 
1,451 
1,398 
10,800 

$ 210 
1,085 
5,405 
970 

1,035 
. 
21,525 

The City has issued $103,440,000 and $6,520,000 in certificates of indebtedness, respectively. The 
prim ary purpose of this debt issuance was to refund the City's Series 1992 certificates of indebtedness 
and to refund the City's debt obligation incurred in 1983 and additional debt incurred in 1993 under the 
m erger agreem ent between the M unicipal Police Em ployee's Retirem ent System and the City's Board 
of Trustees of the Police Pension Fund. The certificates bear interest ranging from 6%  to 3.625% , 
payable sem iannually. As of December 31, 1999, $102,330,000 was recorded as a liability in the 
general long-term debt account group. 

The requirements to amortize the certificates of indebtedness, are as follows (amounts in thousands) 

Year Ending 
Decem ber 31 

Total 

nterest Principal 

$ 11,555 
12,190 
12,735 
6,615 
5,430 
53.805 

During 1996, the HUD and the Department of Labor (DOL) assessed the City fi)r approximately 
$12,000,000 of disallowed costs related to federal financial assistance that the City had received from 
these entities from 1978 to 1994. As of December 31, 1999, $3,212,000 is recorded as a liability in the 
general long-tenn debt account group. 

The rcquirem ents to am ortize the rem aining disallowed costs under the existing repaym ent agreem ent 
recorded in the general long-term debt account group that is due to HUD and D OL are as follows 

(amounts in thousands): 

YaarEnding 
Decem ber31 

2000 
2001 
2002 

Total 
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PENSIO N I'LANS AND PO STRETIREM ENT tlEALTIICARE BENEFITS 

At December 31, 1999, the City sponsors and administers four separate single-employer, contributory 
defined benefit pension plans, namely: (1) Fire fighters' Pension and Relief Fund - Old System; (2) 
Firefighters' Pension and Relief Fund - New System; (3) Police Pension Plan (Police Plan); and (4) 
Employees' Retirement System of the City of New Orleans (Employees' Plan). The Old System covers 
fire fighters who were employed prior to I)ecember 31, 1967. Th e New System covers fire fighters 
hired sin ce that date. Effective M arch 6, 1983, all m embers of the Police Plan, active and retired, 
exccpl for approxim ately 250 participants who did not m eet the eligibility requirem ents, becam e 
members of the M unicipal Police Employees' Retirement System (State of Louisiana) (M PERS). The 
Police Plan of the City will rem ain responsible for the paym ent of certain benefits due to differences in 
length of service and age requirem ents for the participants who were not transferred to the M PERS 
plan. M PERS is the only cost-sharing, m ultiple-em ployer retirem ent plan in which employees of the 
City participate. The Em ployees' Plan covers all City em ployees other than fire fighters and police. 

All four plans use the accrual basis of accounting for operating incom e and operating expenses. W ithin 
this context, interest incom e is recognized when earned, as are employer and employee contributions, 
except in the case of the Police Plan which recognizes employer contributions when due from the City. 

M PERS Plan D escription: On M arch 6, 1983, an a~ eem ent was sign ed between the City, the Police 
Pension Funds of the City of New Orleans, and the M unicipal Police Employees' Retirement System 
(MPERS) which provided for the merger of the Police Pension Plans with the M PERS. As of that datc 
all m em bers of the Police Pension Plans, active and retired, becam e m em bers of the M PERS. Th ose 
m embers covered by the system who did not m eet the age and service requirem ents of the M PERS will 
be paid by the Police Pension Fund of the City until they reach age fifty or fifty-five, depending on the 
length of active service. 

Em ployees becom e eligible for retirem ent under the M PERS plan at age fifty, after being a m em ber of 
t]~e plan for one year and after tw enty years of active continuous service. A n em ployee w ho is age 
fifty-five becom es eligible for retirem ent benefits after sixteen years of active continuous service. The 
plan also provides death and disability benefits. The M PERS issues a publicly available financial 
report that includes financial statem ents and required supplem entary inform ation for the M PERS. Th at 
report m ay be obtained by writing to the M unicipal Police Em ployees' Retirem ent System , 8401 United 

Plaza Boulevard, Room 270, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809, or by calling (800) 443-4248. 

Funding Policy: The contribution rate for M PERS per dollar of payroll is 7.5%  and 9% , respectively, 
for the em ployee and em ployer as established by State statute. The City's contributions to the M PERS 
for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997 were $4,920,000, $4,277,000 and $3,950,000, 
respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 
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Entployees' Plan, Police Plan, Firefighters' Pension and Relief Fund - Old and New System 
Descriptions - The City contributes to four single-em ployer defined benefit pensions plans: 
Em ployees' Retirem ent System of the City of New Orleans, Police Pension Fund of the City of New 
Orleans, Firefighters' Pension and Relief Fund of the City of New Orleans (New System), and 
Firefighters' Pension and Relief Fund of the City of New Orleans (Old System). Each plan provides 
retirement, disability, and death benefits, and annual cost-of-living adjustments to plan members and 
beneficiaries. Authority to establish and am end benefit provisions is provided under the laws of the 
State of Louisiana. Each plan issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial 
statem ents and required supplem entary inform ation for that plan. Those reports m ay be obtained by 
writing or calling the plan. 

Em ployee's Retirem ent System  
of the City of New Orleans 
2400 Canal Street, Room 342 
New Orleans, Louisiana 70119 
(504) 826,.1985 

Police Pension Fund of the 
City of New Orleans 
715 S. Broad, Room B23 
N ew O rleans, Louisiana 70119 
(504) 826-2900 

Firefighlers' Pension and Relief Fund 
of the City of New Orleans (Old and New Systems) 
329 S. Dorgenois Street 
N ew Orleans, Louisiana 70119 
(504) 821-4671 

Funding Policies and Annual Pension Costs - The Em ployer Contributions for the Em ployees' 
Retirement System and the Firefighters' Pension and Relief Fund (New System) are based on 
actuarially determ ined am ounts. The Employer Contribution for the Police Pension Fund is based on 
am ounts necessary  to cover adm inistrative costs and paym ents of pensions and benefits, as certified by 
the Board of Trustees of the Fund. The Em ployer Contribution for the Firefighters' Pension and Relief 
Fund (Old System) is based on anaounts necessary to pay current expenses, and, in effect, is being 
funded on a "pay-as-you-go" basis. Em ployees covered under the Em ployees' Retirem ent System 
contribute 4% of their earnable compensation in excess of $1,200 per year to the Employees' 
Retirem ent System . Em ployees covered under the Firefighters' Pension and Relief Fund of the City of 

New Orleans (Old and New Systems) contribute 6% of salary for the first twenty years of employment 
of these fim ds. 
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As a result of the m erger contract with the M PERS to transfer all active policem en who were 
participating in the City's Police Pension Fund to M PERS, there were no active participants in the plan 
and therefore the only contributions by employees to the plan related to retirees' contributions for the 
purchase of m ilitary service credit. The City 's annual pension cost for the current year and related 
inform ation for each plan is as follow s: 

Actuarial M ethods and A ssum ntions 

Annual pension cost 
(thousands) 

Contributions m ade 
(thousands) 

Actuarial valuation date 

A ctuarial cost m ethod 

Em ployees 
Retirem ent 
System 

$6,162 

$6,162 

12/31/99 

Frozen Entry 
Age Actuarial 
Cost M ethod 

Police 
Pension 
Fund 

$626 

$626 

12/31/99 

Entry A ge 
Normal Cost 

Firefighters' 
Pension and 
Relief Fund 

(Old System) 

$19,036 

$17,625 

12/31/99 

Entry Age 
Norm al Cost 

Flrefighters' 
Pension and 
Relief Fund 

(New System) 

$2,888 

$3,519 

12/31/99 

A ggregate 
Actuarial Cost 

M ethod M ethod M ethod 

Amortization method (a) (b) 

Rem aining am ortization 
period 

Asset valuation m ethod 

Actuarial assum ptions: 
Investm ent rate of return * 
Projected salary increases* 
Projected inflation rate* 

(a) 

M arket 
Value 

7%  
3%  
N/A 

(b) 

Cost which 
approxim ates 

m arket 

7%  
N/A 
N /A 

Specific number 
ofyears - level 

13 years 

M arket 
value 

7,5%  
5% 
N/A 

Specific number 
of years - level 

am ount 

13 years 

Thrce 

year 
averaging 

7.5%  
5% 
N/A 

(a) The amortization period, which ends December 31, 2003, is being maintained. Beginning with the 
Januaiy 1, 1992 actuarial valuation, the am ortization am ount was "fiozen" and is equal to the 12 
year rem aining am ortization am ount over the period January 1, 1992 through December 31, 2003. 

(b) "l"he "Entry Age Normal" cost method was used to calculate the funding requirements of the Fund 
Under this cost method, the actuarial present value ofprojeeted benefits of each individual 
included in the valuation is allocated on a level basis as a percentage of payroll for each 
paTticipant between entry age and assum ed retirem ent age. 
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Three-Year Trend Information* (amounts In thousands) 

Em ployee's Retirem ent System 

Police Pension Fund 

Firefighters' Pension and Relief 
Fund (Old System) 

Fircfighters' Pension and Relief 
Fund (New System) 

Actuarial 
Valuation 
Date 

Actuarial 
Value of 
Assets 

(a) 

Year 
Ending 

12/31/99 
12/31/98 
12/31/97 

12/31/99 
12/31/98 
12/31/97 

12/31/99 
12/31/98 
12/31/97 

12/31/99 
12/31/98 
12/31/97 

Annual 
Pension Percentage Net 
Cost of APC Pension 

(APC) Contributed Obligation 

$ 6,162 
$ 8,739 
$ 9,063 

$ 626 
$ 724 
$ 864 

$19,036 
$18,978 
$17,878 

$ 2,888 
$ 2,898 
$ 2,856 

Schedule of Funding Progress (amounts In thousands) 

Em ployees' Retirem ent System 

12/31/97 
12/31/98 
12/31/99 

Actuarial 
Valuation 
Date 

319,142 
355,566 
375,181 

Actuarial 
Value of 
Assets 

(a) 

Police Pension Fund 

12/31/97 
12/31/98 
12/31/99 

2,111 
2,434 
2.704 

Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability 
(AAL) 
(b) 

274,539 
309,660 
310,856 

Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability 

(AAL) 
Entry Age 

(b) 

1,549 
959 
565 

Excess of 
Assets 
Over AAL 

(a-b) 

44,603 
45,906 
64,325 

Excess of 
Assets 
Over AAL 

(a-b) 

562 
1,475 
2.139 
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Funded 
Ratio 

(a/b) 

116.2 %  
114.8 %  
120.7 %  

Funded 
Ratio 

(a/b) 

136.3 %  
253.8 %  
478.6 %  

100 %  
100 %  
100 %  

100 %  
100 %  
100 %  

93 %  
91%  
103 %  

122 %  
86 %  
105 %  

Covered 
Payroll 

(c) 

76,091 
76,200 
75,663 

Covered 
Payrotl 
(c) 

$ - 
$ - 
$ - 

$ - 
$ - 
$ - 

$2,758 
$1,050 
$ (658) 

$ (332) 
$ 259 
$ (147) 

Excess as a 
Percentage 
of Covered 
Payroll 

((a-b)/c) 

58.6 % 
60.2 % 
85.0 % 

Excess as a 
Percentage 
of Covered 
Payroll 

((a-b)lc) 

N/A 
N/A 
N /A 



Actuarial 
Valuation 
Date 

Actuarial 
Value of 
Assets 

(a) 

Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability 
(AAL) 

Entry Age 

(b) 

Excess of 
Assets 
Over AAL 

(a-b) 

Firefighters' Pension and Relief Fund (Old System) 

12/31/97 
12/31/98 
12/31/99 

Actuarial 
Valuation 
Date 

8,548 
9,251 
9,423 

Actuarial 
Value of 

Assets 

(a) 

172,848 
173,513 
166.890 

Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability 

(AAL) 
(b) 

(164,300) 
(164,262) 
(157,467) 

Excess of 
Assets 
Over AAL 

(a-b) 

Firefighters' Pension and Relief Fund {New System) 

Funded 
Ratio 
(a/b) 

4.9 % 
5.3 % 
5.6 % 

Funded 
Ratio 

(a/b) 

Covered 
Payroll 
(c) 

337 
207 
131 

Covered 
Payroll 

(c) 

A schedule of funding progress is not required when the aggregate actuarial cost m ethod is 
used in determ ining funding requirements because this m ethod does not separately 
identify an actuarial accrued liability. 

Excess as a 
Percentage 
of Covered 
Payroll 
((a.b)/c) 

(48,753.7)% 
(79,353.6)% 
(120,203.8)% 

Excess as a 
Percentage 
of Covered 
Payroll 

((a-b)/c) 

Postretirement H ealthcare Botesqts - In addition to providing pension benefits, the Cib, provides 
postretirement healthcare benefits, as per City ordinance, for certain retired employees. City employees who 
have com pleted 10 years of service and who are eligible to receive pension benefits at the tim e they 
term inate em ploym ent w ith the City are eligible to participate in the City's health care plan as retirees. The 
cost of retirem ent hospitalization benefits is recognized as an expenditure on a pay-as-you-go basis. For 
1999, the cost of providing those benefits for approximately 2,753 retirees was approxim ately $11,052,203, 
of which $8,420,403 and $2,631,800 was provided by the City and retirees, respectively. 
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8. INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLO SURES 

lnterfund Receivables and Payables - Individual fund interfund receivables and payables at 
DecembeJ 31, 1999 were as follows (amounts in thousands): 

Interfund Intorfund 
Rocelvablos Payables 

G eneral 
Special revenue: 
New Orleans Econom ic Developm ent 
Environm ental Im provem ent 
Rivergate D evelopm ent Corporation 
Term ite Control Fund 
Traffic Court Judicial Expense 
M unicipal Court Judicial Expense 
Departm ent of Safety and PeNnits - Dem olition 
A sset Seizure 
Grant Recipient Funds 
Piazza I)'ltalia D evelopm ent 
Plant-A-Tree 

Total special revenue 

Capital projects 
Trust and agency: 
Pension Trusts: 
Employees' Retirem ent System 
N on-.expendable trusts 
Expendable trusts: 
Delgado-Albania Plantation Com m ission 
Issac D clgado 
Edw ard W isner 
Sickles Legacy 
Helen Levy 

A gency: 
Clearing 
D eposit 
Escrow 

Total trust and agency 
Com ponent units: 
Audubon Com m ission 
Sewerage and W ater Board 
French M arket Corporation 
Upper Pontalba Building Restoration Corporation 

Total com ponent units 

'Pota 
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$ 35
.~ 04_8 $ 5,684 

1,154 
118 
290 4,530 
200 

470 
416 

9 
5 

55 20,301 
2 
2 

676" 2
_ _

6 876 

1 

64 
3 
27 
34 

15,021 

.
1

.1L!5 1_50 

307 
135 
33 

475 

116 
35 

4 

17,962 
49 
148 

18,314 

307 
135 

33 
475 



Component Unit Receivables and Payables - Receivables and payables with component units at 
December 3 l, 1999 were as follows (amounts in thousands): 

General 
Special revenue 

Capital projects 
Trust and agency: 
Expendable trust 
Clearing 
Escrow 

Total tru st and agency 
Com ponent units: 
D owntown D evelopm ent D istrict 
Sewerage and W ater Board of N ew Orleans 
Canal Street Developm ent Corporation 
Upper Pontalba Building Restoration Corporation 
Frcnch M arket Corporation 
New Orleans International Airport 
Orleans Parish Com m unication D istrict 
M unicipal Yacht H arbor 

Total com ponent units 

Total 

Receivables 

106 
106 

12 

200 
1,329 

1,261 

189 
2,979 

$6,254 

Payables 

$ 2,584 
135 

3 
221 
36 
260 

1,273 
256 

382 
100 

1,034 
88 
142 

3,275 

lnterfund Advances - Individual fund interflmd advances at December 31, 1999 were as follows 
(amounts in thousands): 

General 

Special revenue: 
Sidcwalk Paving and Repairing 
Departm ent of Sati~ly and Permits - Dem olition 

To~al special revenue 

Total 
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Advances to 
Other Funds 

$252 

Advances from 
Other Funds 

$ 2 
250 

252 



Component Unit Advances - Advances betw een the prim ary govern m ent and its com ponent units at 
December 31, 1999 were as follows (amounts in thousands): 

Capital projects 
Com ponent units: 
N ew Orleans Intern ational Airport 
Upper Pontalba Building Restoration Corporation 
M unicipal Yacht Harbor M anagem ent Corp oration 

Total 

Advances to Advances from 
Prim ary 

Governm ent 

$ 4,946 
21 
404 

Com ponent 
Units 

$5,371 

Fund Transfers - Individual fund transfers for the year ended December 31, 1999 were as follows 
(amounts in thousands): 

G enera 

Special revenue: 
Grant Recipient Funds 
M unicipal Court Judicial Expense 
M unicipal Endowm ent - Cox Cable 
Traffic Court Judicial Expense 
Rivcrgate Developm ent Corporation 

Total special revenue 

Tota 

Transfers In Transfers Out 

$ 8,596 $ 1,830 

1,039 

791 

~ 30_0 

$10,426 

96 

8,500 

8,596 

$10,426 

Component Unit Transfers - Component unit transfers for the year ended December 31, 1999 were as 
follows (amounts in thousands): 

G enera 

Com ponent unit: 
French M arket Corporation 
U pper Pontalba Building Restoration Corp oration 

Tota 

Transfers In Transfers Out 

_ _
$1,000 

$ 1,00
_ ,_  

0 

$ 900 
100 

haterfund Charges for Support Services - Interfund charges for support services paid to the general 
fund during fiscal year 1999 by the New Orleans International Airp ort am ounted to $976,425 prim arily 
for overhead reim bursem ent and fire protection mad by the Orleans Parish Com m unication D istrict 
am ounted to $352,000 for overhead reimbursem ent. 

"]'he City does not charge the French M arket Corp oration, the M unicipal Yacht Harbor M anagem ent 
Corporation, the Upper Pontalba Building Restoration Corporation, and Canal Street Developm ent 
Corporation for any support services provided to them . In addition, the City does not charge rent to the 
Audubon Com m ission for the land which is owned by the City on which the golf course operates. 
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Riverfront Economic Development Agreement- On April 30, 1992, the City, the Board of 
Com m issioners of the Port of New Orleans, and Audubon Com m ission entered into an agreem ent titled 
"Riverfiont Economic Development Agreement" (the Agreement). In accordance with the terms of the 
Agreem ent, Audubon Commission paid $13,000,000 to the Board of Comm issioners of the Port of New 
Orleans. Of this am ount $11,000,000 was from the sale of Audubon Comm ission's Aquarium Revenue 
Bonds, Series 1992A, and $2,000,000 was from self-generated funds of Audubon Com mission. 

In consideration for the $11,000,000 payment, Audubon Com mission is relieved of all rents or fees due 
to occupancy pursuant to a Consent and Right of Use Agreement with tile Board of Commissioners of 
the Port of New Orleans. This Consent and t~,ight of Use Agr eem ent, dated October 23, 1987, provided 
for the developm ent and occupancy of an aquarium and related facilities by the Com m ission in 
consideration for stipulated paym ents of rents and fees over the 99 year term of the Agreem ent. The 
$11,000,000 payment was recorded as prepaid rent and is being amortized over the remaining ternas of 
the consent agreem ent. Such am ount is included in other assets of the Audubon Com m ission at 
December 31, 1999. 

In consideration for the Audubon Comm ission's $2,000,000 payment to the Board of Commissioners of 
the Port of New Orleans, the City, which became the sole owner of the Rivergate Facility (the site of 
the City's land-based casino) under the Agreement, agreed to transfer and assign the second $200,000 of 
annual net incom e from the parking facilities at the Rivergate Facility to Audubon Com m ission for 
twenty years beginning with the 1992 calendar year. The balance due to the Audubon Com m ission of 
$1,571,000 at December 31, 1999, is recorded in the general long-term debt account group. In the 
event parking operations are discontinued at the Rivergate Facility, the Agreem ent provides for a lump 
sum paym ent to Audubon Com m ission for the rem aining paym ent discounted at seven percent, or to 
continue to pay the $200,000 in m onthly installments of $16,667. $1,571,000 of the Audubon 
Comm ission's $2,000,000 payment is included in other assets of the Audubon Commission at 
December 31, 1999. A s paym ents are received from the City of N ew Orleans, this account is being 
reduced for that portion of the paym ent representing return of principal, w ith the balance credited to 
interest incom e. 

9. FUND BALANCE RESERVES 

Certain fire d balance am ounts in the following funds have been reserved to indicate a restriction for a 
particular purpose. Details of the com ponents of reserved fund balance at D ecember 31, 1999 are as 

follows (amounts in thousands): 

Encunlbl aoces 
Endown'Aents 
Long-term advances 
Employees' pension 
benefits 
Debt service 

Toil 

Governm ental Fund Types 

Genera 
Special 
Revenue 

Debt 
Service 

Capltat 
Projects 

$ 25,194 $ 104 $ 20,419 

252 

500 $
__ .
32,605 
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Fiduciary 
Fund "l'y pe 
"trust and 
Agency Total 

$ 45,717 
$ 205 205 

252 

589,660 589,660 
33,105 



10. INTEREST INCO M E 

Interest earned on investments held by the City's capital projects fund, cerlain special revenue funds 
(Sidewalk Paving and Repairing, Traffic Court Judicial Expense, Department of Safety and 
Permits-Demolition, Vieux Carre Commission and Municipal Court Judicial Expense) and certain 
agency funds (Clearing and Deposit) is recorded as revenue of the general fund. The amount of interest 
revenue recorded by the general fund on investments of the capital projects fund for the year ended 
December 31, 1999 was approxim ately $8,229. 

In addition, interest incom e on the nonexpendable trust fund is recorded in separate endowment income 
trust funds (expendable trust funds). 

11. CO M M ITM ENTS AND CO NTINGENCIES 

Operathzg Lease Agreem ents - The City has commitments under several operating lease agreements for 
equipm ent and facilities. These lease agreem ents are prim arily for copier and data processing 
equipm ent, and for land and buildings. Th ey are cancellable by the City at any tim e. However, City 
m anagem ent believes thai such leases will generally be renewed or replaced each year. Annual rent in 
1999 for such operating lease agreements was $8,773,000. 

Clahns and Judgm ents - The City is a defendant in a number of claim s and lawsuits alleging, anaong 
other things, personal injury, police brutality, wrongful death, over collection of property taxes and 
improperly designed drainage system s. 

The City, based upon actuarial evaluation, advice of legal counsel and the Adm inistration's estim ates of 
probable liability of such actions, estimated the liability necessary  to cover all losses and claim s, both 
incurred and reported and incurred but not reported as of December 31, 1999 to be $79,786,000. 

Self-insurance - The City is self-insured for its motor vehicle fleet, general liability, police department 
excessive force, workers' com pensation, hospitalization and unem ploym ent losses and claim s. 

"]'he City's claim s are financed on a "pay-as-you-go" basis for its m otor vehicle fleet, general liability 
and police departm ent excessive force losses. Prem ium s are charged to the City's various funds for the 
unemploym ent and worker's compensation self-insurance program s and to em ployees and the City's 
various ffmds for the hospitalization self-insurance program . Paid claim s in excess of such prem ium s, 
if any, are funded by the general fund. 

As of I)ecember 31, 1999, the City has determined, through an analysis of historical experience, the 
adequacy of the liability necessary  to cover all losses and claim s, both incurred and reported and 
incuned but not reported (IBNR), under its self-insurance programs. The liabilities of $597,000 for 
m otor vehicle fleet, $79,786,000 for general liability and police departm ent exc.essive force, 
$36,552,000 for workers' compensation and $11,333,000 for hospitalization have been accrued in the 
general long-term debt account group, in the total am ount of $128,268,000. 
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Changes lo the City's claims liability amounls in fiscal 1999 and 1998 were (amounts in thousands) 

Genem l Liability andPolice Liability 
1998 
1999 

W ol~ers'Com pcnsation 
1998 
1999 

M otor VehicleFleet: 
1998 
1999 

Hospitalization and Unemploym ent: 
1998 
1999 

Total: 
1998 
1999 

Beglrm lng of 
Fiscal Year 
Liability 

82,850 
80,902 

35,288 
38,152 

304 
548 

7,639 
7,345 

126,081 
126.947 

Claim s and 
Changes In 
Estim ates 

3,165 
4,319 

11,305 
6,569 

733 
563 

30,767 
40,224 

45,970 
51.675 

Benefit 
Paym ents 
and Claim s 

5,113 
5,435 

8,441 
8,169 

489 
514 

31,061 
36,236 

45,104 
50,354 

Balance 
atFiscal 
Year-End 

80,902 
79,786 

38,152 
36,552 

548 
597 

7,345 
11.333 

126,947 
128.268 

Federal Financial Assistance Questioned Costs. The City receives federal financial assistance directly 
from federal agencies or passed through from other governm ent agencies. An audit of the City's 
Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance disclosed certain item s or transactions as questioned costs. 
The ultim ate resolution or determ ination as to whether the costs w ill be disallowed under the affected 
grants will be m ade by the various funding sources and cannot be determ ined at this tim e. 

Landfill Closing Costs - The City owns a closed landfill site located in the eastern portion of the City. 
Stale and federal laws require the City to cap the landfill and to m onitor and m aintain the site for thirty 
subsequent years. Additionally, the City owns another landfill site located in the eastern portion of the 
City . Under Stale and federal laws, the operator of this landfill site will be responsible for closing the 
landfill once its capacity is reached, and the City will be responsible for m onitoring and m aintaining the 
site for thiJ-ty subsequent years. The City recognizes a portion of the closure and postclosure care costs 
w ithin the general long-term debt account group in each operating period even though actual payouts 
will not occur until these landfills are capped and closed, respectively. The am ount recognized each 
year to d~te is based on the landfills' capacities used as of the balance sheet date. As of December 31, 
1999, the City had incurred a liability of $12,777,000, which represents the am ount of costs reported to 
dale based on the 100 percent capacity of both landfills. 

These am ounts are based on what it would cost to perform  all closure and postclosure care in 1999. 
Actual cost m ay be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes ia regulations and m ay 
need to be covered by charges from future tax revenue. 
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Arbitrage - The City has issued tax-exempt bonds which are subject to arbitrage regulations of the Internal 
Revenue Service which im pose restrictions on the use of proceeds from tax-exem pt bonds. If certain of these 
restrictions are not complied with, the bonds could lose their tax-exempt status retroactive to the date of 
original issuance and also result in the City being subject to arbitrage rebates. The City believes it is in 
com pliance wilh the arbitrage regulations with respect to all of its tax-exempt bond issues. 

Litigation - On December 1, 1999, the Internal Revenue Service C'IRS") notified the City that it was ceasing 
its investigation regarding "yield-burning" allegations in connection with the City's General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds, Series 1991. On M arch 17, 2000, in response to this notification, the City voluntarily 
dism issed its lawsuits against the investm ent bankers who participated in refunding tile Series 1991 Bonds. 
The City does not expect any further litigation regarding the yield-burning allegation!; in relation to the General 
Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 1991. 

12. COM PONENT UNIT DISCLO SURES 

A. Cash and Tim e Certificates of Deposit 

The canting am ount of component unit deposits at December 31, 1999 was $124,019,000, and the bank 
balance was $126,031,000. The component unit bank balances are categorized below (amounts in 
thousands) to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the component unit at year-end. Category 
1 includes insured or collaleralized cash with securities held by the com ponent unit or its agent in the 
com ponent unit's nam e. Category 2 includes collateralized cash with securities held by the pledging 
financial institution's trust departm ent or its agent in the com ponent unit's nam e. Category  3 includes 
uncollateralized cash, including any bank balance that is collateralized w ith securities held by the 
pledging financial institution, or by its trust departm ent or agent but not in the component unit's nam e. 

Category 
2 3 Total 

Bank balances: 
Cash and certificates of deposit $ 1,396 $121,50

i ~ 1 $ 3,134 $126,031 

B. Investnlents 

These inveslments are categorized below (amounts in thousands) to give an indication of the level of risk 
assum ed by the component unit at year-end. Category  1 includes investm ents that are insured or 
registered or for which the securities are held by the com ponent unit or its agent in the component unit's 
nam e. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investm ents for which the securities are held by 
the financial institution's trust departm ent or agent in the com ponent unit's nam e. Category 3 includes 
uninsured and unregistered investm ents for which the securities are held by the financial institution or by 
its trust departm ent or agent, but not in the com ponent unit's nam e. 

U .S. Governm ent securities 
and instrum entalities 
Corporate bonds 
Equity securities 

Category 
2 3 

$88,784 $ 79,961 $7,481 
30,429 
99,456 

Carrying 
Value 

$176,226 
30,429 
99,456 

$ 88,784 $ 209,846 $ 7,481 $ 306,111 
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C. Fixed Assets 

A summ ary of proprietary component unit property, plant and equipment at December 31, 1999 follows 
(amounts in thousands): 

Piers and boat launch 
Canals 
Runways, aprons, etc. 
Buildings and 
improven~ents 
M achinery and equipn" $ 3,06 
Utility systerfLq 
l~and 

3,061 
Less: accumulated 
dcprcelallon _~ ,~9~  

1,066 
Land and air rights 
Construction it[ proglcr 

New 
Orleans 

Audubon International 
Commission Airport 

Upper 
Sewerage French Pontalba Canal 
and Municipal Market Building Street 
W ater Yacht Corpo- Restoration Development 
Board Harbo r ration Corporation Corporation Total 

$ 1,944 $ 1,944 
190,811 190,811 

203,356 

$ 132,582 267.558 170,054 3,781 $ 11,898 $ 9,289 $ 8,444 603,606 
13,375 6,209 339,741 93 801 107 363,38? 

8,315 390,551 398,866 
950 109 

__ __ __ __  
52 896 1~998 

146,907 485,438 1,091,157 5,818 12,799 9,448 9,340 1,763,968 

(34,695) ____(~__8,65~) ..~ 8_72 0~  ~  ~ .5,506) __~ _4~ (I,015) (643.176) 
112,212 276,783 703,449 3,760 7.293 7,904 8,325 1 ,120,792 

79,845 7,355 87,200 
4r303 20.965 172.417 223 65 197,973 

Total S 1,066 $ 116,515 $ 377,593 $ 883,221 $ 3,983 $ 7,358 ~ 7.9
_ .~04 $ 8,325 $ 1,405,965 

Construction in progress in the proprietary com ponent units consists prim arily Bfrenovations to the New 
Orleans Intern ational Airport and the Sewerage and W ater Board of New Orleans' construction of water, 
sewerage and drainage system s within the City. Outstanding com m itm ents to com plete these 

construction projects as of December 31, 1999 anaounted to approximately $167,684,000 for the New 
Orleans International A irp ort. 

D . Long-Term  D ebt 

The City is not liable for bonds issued by the Sewerage and W ater Board of New Orleans and the New 
Orleans International Airp ort. Series 1993 Lim ited Tax bonds issued by the Audubon Com m ission 
represent special and lim ited obligations of the City payable from and secured solely by the proceeds of a 
special ad valorem tax. The outstanding balance of the Series 1993 bonds at D ecem ber 31, 1999 was 
$42,015,000. 
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The following represents debt service requirem ents for all significant component unit bonds outstanding 
at Decem ber 31, 1999. Interest paym ents for the Sewerage and W ater Boald of New Orleans, New 
Orleans International Airport and Audubon Comm ission of $43,742,000, $142,436,000 and $35,160,000 
respectively, are included. Amounts (in thousands) shown on individual component units balance sheets 
are net of unam ortized losses on refunding of $-0-, $24,024 and $3,138 for the Sewerage and W ater 
Board of New Orleans, N ew Orleans Intern ational Airport and Audubon Com m ission, respectively. 

Year Ending 
Decem ber 31 

2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 and thereafter 

Audubon 
Com m ission 

$ 5,863 
5,908 
5,850 
5,890 
5,825 
67,539 

New Orleans 
International 
Airport 

$ 20,356 
20,948 
20,995 
21,091 
21,086 

. 
265,865 

Sewerage 
and 

W ater Board Total 

$ 10,036 
8,271 
8,253 
8,235 
6,477 
88,590 

$129,862 

$ 36,255 
35,127 
35,098 
35,216 
33,388 
421,994 

Arbitrage - The New Orleans International Airport has issued tax-exempt bonds which are subject to 
arbitrage regulations of the lntemal Revenue Service ORS), which regulations impose restrictions on the 
use of procecds from tax-exempt bonds. If certain of these restrictions are not complied with, the bonds 
could lose their tax-exempt status retroactive to the date of original issuance and also result in the New 
Orleans International Airport being subject to arbitrage rebates. The estimated arbitrage rebate liability 
for the New Orleans International Airp ort's Series 1994 Revenue bonds is $2,214,000 as of December 31 
1999. 

E. C ontributed C apital 

The following proprietary com ponent units recorded contributed capital in the fi~llowing am ounts as of 
December 31, 1999: New Orleans Intern ational Airp ort, $196.2 m illion; Sewerage and W ater Board of 
New Orleans, $148.1 m illion; French M arket Corp oration, $2.9 m illion; and Canal Street Development 
Corp oration, $8.6 m illion. Total contributed capital across these funds increased in 1999 by $12.5 
m illion from $343.3 m illion to $355.8 m illion. This increase resulted from grants to the New Orleans 
Intern ational Airp ort and the Sewerage and W ater Board of New Orleans from J~dcral and state agencies 
and the City of New Orleans to finance the cost of construction of airp ort facilities and for the acquisition 
of property, plant and equipm ent, respectively. 
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O F INDIVIDUAL FUNDS 
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C ITY O F NEW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA EXHIBIT B-I 
Page 1 of 5 

Taxes: 
Real estate 
Personal property 
D edicatcd m illage 
Police 
Fire 
Library 
F, ecrealion 
Parkw ay 
Streets 
S~les - undedicated 
Penalty and interest on delinquent taxes 
U tilities 
Chain store 
Special rcal property service charge 
Beverage excise 
An~uselnent 
O ft:track belting 
Parking 
Inheritance tax 
I)ocum entary transaction 
]{acing tax 

Licenses and perm its: 
Bingo or keno licenses 
Electrical licenses 
Air conditioning and gas fitter licenses 
] toisting and portable licenses 
O ccupational licenses 
Special operating engineer licenses 
Stationary engineer licenses 
M iscellaneous licenses 
Service cuts 

Revised 
Budget 

$ 15,692 
7,046 

14,556 
14,219 
6,838 
1,969 
1,969 
2,488 

131.000 
2,442 
9,350 
275 

700 
2,000 
400 

1,800 

5,800 
100 

218,644 

- 56 - 

513 
116 
29 

9,015 
2 

103 
233 
15 

Actual on 
Budgetary 
Basis 

$ 13,795 
8,578 

14,923 
14,823 
6,358 
2,212 
2,212 
2,803 

133,490 
2,355 
8,914 
297 

] 
723 

1,712 
309 

2,048 
1 

5,880 
481 

221,915 

9 
594 
90 
12 

4813 

6,4 
301 

Variance - 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ (1,897) 
1,532 

367 
604 
(480) 
243 
243 
315 

2,490 
(87) 
(436) 
22 
i 

23 
(288) 
(91) 
248 

1 
80 
381 

3,271 

9 
81 
(26) 
(17) 
(532) 
(2) 
(39) 
68 
(15) 

(Continued) 



CITY O F NE'W  O RLEA NS, LO UISIANA 

G ENERA L FU ND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES - 

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS) 

EXHIBIT B-1 
Page 2 of 5 

Licenses and permits (continued) 
Franchises: 
Cable TV 
Louisiana Power and Light Company 
N ew Orleans Public Service Inc. 
South Central Bell, Inc. 
M iscellaneous fi'anchises 
Beverage pem aits 
Brake tag perm its 
Building permits 
M ayoral perm its 
M echanical perm its 
Taxi and chauffeurs permits 
M assage parlor perm its 
M ardi Gras parade pem fits 
M edical Iransporlation vehicle perm its 
Freight loading zone 
Public right-of-way use 
M iscellaneous 
Total licenses and perm its 

]ntergovermnenlal: 
Federal aid -. H UD 
Federal aid -. other 
Civil defense m achine fund 
Federal N atural Resources Environm ent 
State Revenue Sharing 
State aid - D I IRR 
State aid - public safety 
Stale aid - other 
Parish Iransportation fund 
Autom obile rental tax 
Office of the Governor 

Revised 
Budget 

3,000 
650 

25,000 
3,750 

1,350 
2,900 
3,220 
150 
578 
626 
1 
1 
21 
36 
70 
201 

51,580 

- 57- 

509 

130 
2,598 
1,001 

3,625 
6,295 

Actual on 
Budgetary 
Basis 

3,078 
680 

25,394 
4,20(; 
462 

1,393 
3,26(} 
3,275 
154 
653 
670 

54 
28 
25 
536 
251 

53,672 

81 
681 

1,383 
2,681 
776 
104 

3,8411 
4,662 

48 

Variance - 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

78 
30 
394 
456 
462 
43 
360 
55 
4 
75 
44 
(1) 
53 
7 

0 1) 
466 
50 

2,092 

(428) 
681 

1,253 
83 

(225) 
104 
216 

(1,633) 
48 
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C ITY O F N EW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

G ENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES - 

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL 
YEAR ENDEED DECEMBER 31, 1999 (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS) 

EXHIBIT B-1 
Page 3 of 5 

Intergovernmenlal (continued) 
Racing 
Severance tax 
Tobacco tax 
Orleans Parish Comm . District Telephone Tax 
Total intergovem m ental 

Charges for services: 
Adm ission charge 
Com m ercial disposal charges 
Food/drink concessions 
Driving range fees 
Em crgency m edical service charge 
Sales - m aps and docum ents 
Fire protection - N ew Orleans Airport 
Grass cutting 
Green fees 
Indirect cost 
Inspection R:es, vacant buildings 
Litter abatem ent charge 
Park entrance fees 
Parking m elers 
Police and fire serv ices - other 
Public cem etary burial 
Sanitation sere,ice charges 
Service fees - uninhabitable buildings 
Tax collection service: 
Levee Board 
Orleans Parish School Board 
Regional Transit A ulhority 
Lien research service 
Zoning books and petitions 
Data processing services - parish agencies 
M aintenance of state highways 
Tow ing and im m obilization charges 

Revised 
Budget 

3,824 
350 

18,332 

- 58- 

19 
40 
1 

4,500 
62 

2,570 
100 

2,017 

50 
4,215 
855 
74 

20,000 

105 
,560 
409 
150 
50 

350 
650 

Actual on 
Budgetary 
Basis 

7 
4,017 
264 

18,545 

2 
178 
21 
9 

4,807 
36 

2,214 
70 
482 

1,658 
1 

70 
~2 

2,999 
968 
32 

20,339 
34 

(29) 
1,088 
689 
117 
37 
I1 

351 
503 

Variance - 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

7 
193 
(,86) 
213 

(17) 
138 
20 
9 

307 
(26) 
(356) 
(30) 
482 
(359) 

1 
70 

(381 
(1,216) 

113 

(42) 
339 
34 

(1341 
(472) 
280 
(33) 
03) 
ll 
1 

(1471 
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CITY O F NEW  O RLEA NS, LO U ISIA NA 

G ENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE O F REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SO URCES - 

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

EXHIBIT B-1 
Page 4 of 5 

Charges for services (continued): 
Utility regulatory fees 
Cubside recycling 
Other 
Notorial 
Lakeview and Lake Caixnel l~es 
Total charges tbr services 

Fines and forfcils: 
H ealth care violations 
Fines and fees 
Impounded cars 
Traffic violations 
M unicipal court fines 
M unicipal court costs 
LibraD, fines 
Administration adjudication lees 
Total fines and lorfeits 

Interest incolne: 
Interest incom e 
Total interest incom e 

Contribulions, gills and donations 
M iscellaneous: 
Cash overage 
W orkers' com pensation subrogation 
Building and ground rental 
Vending m achine royalties 

Revised 
Budget 

4,000 
2,360 
1,071 
100 

45,308 

12,900 
33 

75 
30 
170 

12,308 

8,400 
8,400 

A ctual on Variance - 
Budgetary Favorable 
Basis (Unfavorable) 

3,950 
2,034 
1,300 
49 
7 

(50) 
(326) 
229 
(51) 
7 

44,039 (1,26J ) 

7,436 
68 

2,980 
135 

172 
12 

(4,564) 
35 

2,980 
60 
(30) 
2 
12 

1o,8o3 (1,5o53 

8,229 
8,229 

11,962 1,128 

- 59- 

984 

75 
16 
09 
1 

07_D 
(17_!) 

(lo,83j ) 

75 
116 
325 
1 

(Continued) 



CITY O F N FW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

G ENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE O F REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SO URCES - 
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL 
YEAR ENDI-D DECEM BER 31. 1999 (AMO UNTS IN THOUSANDS) 

EXHIBIT B-1 
Page 5 of 5 

Revised 
Budget 

Miscellaneous (continued): 
Pay phone royalties 150 
Riverboat gam ing fees 11,000 
Insurance proceeds 62 
Other 4,934 
Appropriations tiom prior year's lhnd balance 

__
6,075 

Total m iscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Other financing sources: 
Operating transfers in 
Transfer in from component unit 
Reduction in prior year's outstanding 
encunabrances 
Total other fin ancing sources 

Total rewmues and other financing 
sources 

Actual on Variance - 
Budgetary Favorable 
Basis (Unfavorable) 

9,785 
299 

3,921 

(15o) 
(1,215) 
237 

(1,o13) 
(6,075) 

~~ _
23,205 

_ .~15_z506 (7,699) 

389,739 373,837 05,902) 

1,404 
2,3]5 

3.719 

8,596 
1,000 

210 
9,806 

7,192 
(1,315) 

21o 
6.087 

- 60 - 
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CITY O F NE:.W  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

G ENERA L FUND 
SCHEDULE O F EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES - 
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL 
YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31. 1999 (AM OUNTS IN THO USANDS) 

EXHIBIT B-2 
Page 1 of 5 

General goverfu~aent 
The Council: 
Personal services 
Other operating expenditures 

The M ayor: 
Personal services 
O ther operating expenditures 

D epartm ent of Law : 
Personal services 
Other operating expenditures 

Judicial and parochia 
Personal services 
Other operating expenditures 

Departm ent uf Finance: 
Personal services 
O ther operating expenditures 

Unattached bosrds and com m issions 
Personal services 
O ther operating expenditures 

Revised 
Budget 

$ 2,974 
6,116 
9,090 

9,608 
31,662 
41,270 

3,214 
8,860 
12,074 

4,986 
37,188 
42,174 

7,007 
8,644 
15,651 

- 61 - 

2,274 
485 

2.759 

Actual on 
Budgetary 
Basis 

$ 2,974 
6,116 
9,090 

9,608 
31,659 
41,267 

3,214. 

12~074 

4,986 
32,645 
37,631 

7,007 
8,644 

_  
is 6
_~ jsl 

2,274 
485 

2,759 

Variance - 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

4,543 
4,543 

(Continued) 



CITY O F NEW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

G ENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE O F EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES - 

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL 
YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31. 1999 (AM O UNTS IN THO USANDS~ 

EXHIBIT B-2 
Page 2 of 5 

General government (continued) 
D epartm ent of Civil Service: 
Personal services 
Other operating expenditures 

General services: 
Personal serv ices 
Other operating expenditures 

Total general govennnent 

Public safety: 
Dcpartm cnt of Police 
Personal services 
Other operating expenditures 

Departm ent of Fire 
Personal serv ices 
Other operating expenditures 

Departm ent of Safety and Perm its 
Personal services 
O ther opelating expenditures 

Total public safety 

Public w orks: 
D epartm ent of Public W orks: 
Personal services 
Other operating expenditures 

Revised 
Budget 

1,640 
305 

1.945 

6,692 
2,279 
8,971 

133,934 

83,700 
11,249 

94.949 

55,622 
1.345 

56.967 

2,455 
206 

2.661 

154.577 

10,032 
8.428 
18,460 

- 62 - 

A ctual on 
Budgetary 
Basis 

1,640 
297 

1,937 

6,692 
2,279 
8,971 

Variance - 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

8 
8 

129,380 4,554 

83,70(I 
11,245 

94.945 

55,62:2 
1.345 

56.967 

2,455 
206 

_  
2~661 

154,573 

10,032 
8,394 
18,426 

4 

4 

4 

34 
34 

(Continued) 



C ITY O F N EiW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

G ENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE O F: EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES - 

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL 
YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31, 1999 ('AM O UNTS IN THOUSANDS) 

EXHIBIT B-2 
Page 3 of 5 

Public works (continued): 
D epartm ent of Sanitation 
PersonM services 
Other operating expenditures 

D eparlm ent of Property M anagem en 
Personal services 
O ther operating expenditures 

Departm ent of Utilities: 
Personal services 
Other operating expenditures 

Total public works 

llealth and hum an services: 
D epartm ent of ttealth: 
Personal services 
Other opcrating cxpcnditures 

Departm ent of tlum an Services 
Personal services 
O lher operating expenditures 

Total health and hum an services 

Revised 
Budget 

1,699 
25,579 
27,278 

6,614 
3,679 
10.293 

896 
419 

1,315 

Actual on 
Budgetary 
Basis 

1,699 
25,579 
27,278 

6,614. 
3,679 
10,293 

896 
419 

1,315 

57,346 57,312 

8,951 
1,697 
10,648 

1,996 
222 

2,218 

8,951 
1,696 
10,647 

1,996 
222 

2,218 

12,866 12,865 

- 63 - 

Variance - 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

(Continued) 



CITY O F NEW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

G ENERA L FUND 
SCHEDULE O F EXPENDITURES A ND OTHER FINANCING USES - 

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL 
YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31. 1999 fAM OUNTS IN THO USANDS~ 

EXHIBIT B-2 
Page 4 of 5 

Culture and recreation: 
Public Library: 
Persona/services 
O ther operating expenditures 

Historical I)istrict Landmarks Commission 
Personal services 
O ther operaling expenditures 

V ieux Carte Com m ission: 
Personal services 
O ther operating expenditures 

M useum of Art: 
O ther operating expenditures 

Parkway and Parks Com m ission 
Personal services 
O ther operating expenditures 

Departm ent of Recreation 
Personal services 
O ther operating expenditures 

Total culture and recreation 

Revised 
Budget 

4,685 
2,398 

_ _ 
7~083 

305 
35 
340 

376 
40 
416 

210 
210 

5,523 
1,406 
6,929 

5,574 
1~757 
7.331 

Actual on 
Budgeta=T 
Basis 

4,685 
2,358 
7,043 

305 
35 
340 

376 
40 
416 

210 
210 

5,523 
~  

1,406
. 

6,929 

5,574. 
1,755 
7,329 

22,309 22,267 

- 64 - 

Variance - 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

40 
40 

2 
2 

42 

(Continued) 



C ITY O F NEW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

G ENERA L FUND 
SCHEDULE O F EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES - 

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL 
YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31. 1999 (AM OUNTS IN THOUSANDS~ 

EXHIBIT B-2 
Page 5 of 5 

Urban developm ent and housing general 
services - cornnrunity developm ent: 
Personal services 
Other operating, expenditures 

Total m ban developm ent and housing 

D ebt service: 
Principal 
lnterest and liscal charges 

Total dcbt service 

Total expenditures 

Other financing uses: 
O perating trmasfcrs out 
Appropriations from prior year's fund balance 
O ther, net 

Total other financing uses 

Total expenditures and other 
tinancing uses 

Revised 
Budget 

157 
65 

A ctual on 
Budgetary 
Basis 

157 
65 

222 222 

7,145 
5,059 

7,145 
5,059 

12,204 12,204 

Variance - 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

393,45~8 _ 388,823 4,635 

1,830 

810 

2,640 

- 65 - 

(1,830) 

(81o) 

(2,640) 

$ 1,995 

(Concluded) 
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SPECI AL RE VENUE FUNDS 

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than 
expendable tru sts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes 
Significant special revenue funds are as follows: 

New Orleans Economic D evelopment - Used to account for funds allocated to program s designed to 
alleviate economic development problems, improve quality of life and provide: jobs for the citizens of 
N ew Orleans. 

Neighborhood ltousing hnprovement - Used to account for funds allocated to program s which repair 
and renovate housing in low incom e areas. 

Environmental Improvement - Used to account for funds received from fines, fees, costs and penalties 
and allocated to program s designed to im prove health, housing and environm ental conditions in the 
City. 

Rivergate Special Fund - U sed to account for funds received from the Rivergate parking facilities 
which have been earm arked for paym ent to the Audubon Com m ission as per the "Riverfront Econom ic 
I)evelopm ent A greem ent." 

Rivergate D evelopment Corporation - U sed to account for and oversee the developm ent of the land- 
based casino site. 

Traffic Court Judicial Eapense - Used to account for monies collected from contempt fines and 
penalties paid by persons charged with traffic violations and allocated to the proper adm inistration of 
the court or offices of the individual judges. 

M unicipal Court Judicial Expense - U sed to account for m onies collected from  bond forfeitures in 
conncclion w ith the adm inistration of the M unicipal Court or in other m anners provided by law . 

Department of Safety and Permits - Demolition - Used to account for funds allocated to the demolition 
of buildings or structures. 

M usic andEntertahm2ent Commission - Used to account for funds allocated fi)r program s designed to 
attract m usic and entertainm ent to the City. 

Asset Seizure - U sed to account for property confiscated from drug dealers by the police departm ent to 
be used for crim e fighting m easures. 

Plant a Tree Campaign - Used to account for funds allocated to program s designed for planting and 
beautifying trees, plants and flowers throughout the City. 

M unicipal Endowment - Cox" Cable - Used 1o account for funds allocated for program s related to video 
or audio com m unity service program m ing in New Orleans or the arts, hum anities and culture of New 
Orleans. 

Capital hnprovement andInfi'astructure - Used to account for funds allocated for the improvement of 
infrastructures w ithin the City. 

Grant Recipient Funds - Used to account for grants and other state and federal financial assistance 
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CITY O F NEW  O RL|-ANS, LO UISIA NA 

SPECIAL REVENUE FIJNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE-" SHEET 
DECEMBER 31, 1999 (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

ASSETS 

National New Orleans Neighborhood Rivergate Rivergate 
League Econom ic Housing Environm ental Special Developm ent 
of Cities Developm ent Im provem ent Im provem ent Fund Corporation 

Cash $ 6 
hlvestznen|s, a| cost or 
am ortized cost 
Accounts rcceivable (net, 
where applicable, of 
M]owances for 
uncollectibles) 
(Thantee loans receivable 
Duc flora other funds 
Due from other govern m ents 
I)tlc 1~o111 component nllits 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES 

6 

l,iabilities: 
Accounts payable $ 2 
D ue to olher funds 
D ue to oilier governm ents 
1)eferred revenues 
Advances from other funds 
[)tie to com ponenl nllits 

Total liabilities 

$1,901 

$ 3,660 

$ 3 
1.154 

2 1,157 

Fund balances: 
Reserved for encumbrances 
Um eserved: 
I)esignaled for subsequent 
years' expenditures 
Undesignated 4 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AN[) 
FUND BALANCES $ 6 

104 

817 
_ 1A3 483 

$ 918 

2,717 

$ 40 

1.102 

16 

llg 

23 

$ 80 

600 

$ 1,958 

4,419 

62 

289 

43 

$~363~5 $1 299 $_680 $ 6,771 

314 
_ _3~  

$ 97 
_ !1ao2_ 

$ 1 

$ 12 
667 

$ 3 
4,530 

4,533 

79 
2,159 

_ ~4 404 _ 3 6z~ 9_10 .__1_ 2z~99- 679 2,238 

- 68-. 

$ 1,299 $ 680 



EXHIBIT C-1 

Page I of 3 

Traffic 
Term ite Piazza Court 
Control D'italia Judicial 
Fund Developm ent Expense 

$ 67 

772 

$ ] $ 969 

19 

200 2 

38 

17 
1~053 

1,070 

$ 22 

S 22 

M unicipa 
Court 
Judicial 
Expense 

40 $ 652 

$ 70 
470 

469 

Sidewalk 
Paving and 
Repairing 

Specia 
Event 

2 $ 3 

$ 652 $ 2 $ 

$ 40 
416 

135 

591 2 

469 61 

$ 652 $ 2 

- 69 - 

3 

3 

Adopt a 
Pothole 
Program 

$ 

Departm ent of 
Safety and 
Perm its - 
Dem olition 

$ 3 

134 

9 
280 
2 

$ 428 

$ 100 

250 

350 

78 

78 



CITY O F NEW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

COM BINING BALANCE SHEET 
DECEMBER 31, 1999 (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

ASSETS 

Cash 
Investm ents, at cost or 
am ortized cost 
Accounts receivable (net, 
wl~erc applicable, of 
allowances for 
uncollectibles) 
Grantee loans receivable 
Due frmn other funds 
Due from other govcrmrJents 
Due from component units 

TOTAL A SSETS 

LIA BiLiTiES A ND 
FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accoum s payable 
Due 1o other funds 
Due to otller governnlents 
Deferred revenues 
Advances from other funds 
D ue to com pollenl units 

Total liabilities 

Now Orleans 
M usic Police 
and I)epartm ent - 

Entertainm ent Crim e 
Com m ission Prevention 

140 

$ l 

l:und balances: 
Reserved for encml~brauces 
Unreserved: 
Designated for subsequent 
years' expenditures 
Undesignated $ 140 $ _ _

1 

Total fund balances 

TOTAL LIAB]LITIt'S ANI) 
FUND BALANCES 

140 

$ 1 

- 70 - 

A sset 
Seizure 

$ 225 

999 

$ 5 

. 
1,219 

1Z~219 

New Orleans 
W ar on 
Drugs 

$
_ ._ _

8 

$ 8 

8 

$
_ _ ~ 

New O rleans 
Recreation 
Departm ent 

$ 49 

$ 49 

49 



EXHIBIT C-1 
Page 2 of 3 

New Orleans 
Film 

Com m ission 

195 

New Orleans 
Special 
[vents 

Vieux 
Carre 

Com m ission 

Vieux 
Carre 

Restoration 

Public 
Library 

Donations 

$ 3 $ 56 $ 1 $ 73 

60 

Sanitation 
Recycling 

$ 4 

42 

$ 195 $ 63 $ 56 $ 1 $ 73 $ 46 

$ 195 

195 

$ 

7 
56 $ 56 S_ J_ 

1 

$ 63 $ 56 $ 1 

$ J 

72 $ 46 

72 46 

~ 4
_ _

6
. 

(Continued) 



CITY O F NEW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
COM BINING BALANCE SHEET 
DECEMBER 31, 1999 (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

ASSETS 

(:ash 
Investm ents, at cost or 
am ortized cost 

Accounts receivable (net, 
where applicable, of 
allowances for 

uncollectibles) 
(.;lafdee loans receivable 
Due from other funds 
1)tie fron~l o't.ber ~overni~c'l'lts 
l)tie from component unils 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Due to other funds 
Due to oilier governm ents 
Deferred revellties 
A dvances from olher funds 
Due Io component units 

}:und balances: 
Reserved for encumbrances 
U nreserved: 
Designated for subsequenl 
years' expenditures 
Undesignated 

Total fund balauces 

Plant M unicipal 
a-Tree Endow m ent- 

Cam paign Cox Cable 

$ 87 

100 

2 

2 

117 
70 

$ 330 

1,632 

24 

$ 1
.~ ,986 

$ 91 
1,895 

187 1,986 

TOTAL LIA13ILH'IES AN D 
FUND BALANCES $ 189 $ 1,98. 

6 

- 72- 

EXHIBIT C-1 

Page 3 of 3 

Capital 
m provem ent G rant 

and Recipient 
nfrastructure Funds 

$ 811 

4,880 

$ 5~691 

5,691 

Tota 

$ 3,438 $ 11,029 $ 5,534 

8.990 30.466 26,153 

35,049 
56 

24.594 

794 
35,049 

676 
24,874 

t06 

433 
34,968 
2,567 
18,070 

81 

$72,127 $102,994 $ 87,806 

$ 2,304 $ 2,558 
20,301 26,876 

59 59 
35,049 35,049 

252 
135 

$ 1,173 
21,832 

21 
9,968 
252 
35 

5~7 7_L3 64 929 . 33,281 

14.414 

104 2,037 

15,968 
21 993 

37,263 
15,225 

._1~14514. __}38,065 54,525 

$ 72.12
...~7 $102,994 $ 87,806 

(Concluded) 
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CITY OF NEW  ORLFANS, LOUISIANA 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
CO M BINING STATEM EN T O F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

YEAR ENDED DECEMI3ER 3'1, 't999 (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

RI'VENUES: 
Taxes 
lntergovermnental 
Program incom e 
Fre es and forfeits 
Interest incom e 
Contributions, gifts and 
donatiorls 
M iscellaneous 
Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
General governm ent 
Public sa/bty 
Public works 
ttealth and hum an scrvices 
Culture and recreatioe, 
Urban development and 
housing 
Econonric developm ent and 
assistance 
Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over expendi'lurea 

Other financing sources (uscs) 
Operating transfers in 
Operating txansfers out 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revmmes 
and other financing sources 
over expenditures and other 
financing uses 

National New O rleans 
League Econom ic 
of Cities Developm ent 

Neighborhood 
Housing Environm ent 

Im provem ent Im provem ent 

$ 1.820 $ 1,900 

135 100 
$ 319 

1.385 

17.2 

_ h~:_ 
~dL4_.s_ _ 1,3gs __ t2_a 

81o 6t5 _ _ 
t9

_
7 

810 615 197 

Rivergate Rivergate 
Specia~ Developm ent 
Fund Corporation 

g 10,782 
10,789 

558 
558 

. lo,23L 

_A a,~s00p 

_ 8&~,sqD 

1,731 

FUND BALANCES, 
BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 4 3~ _

5~94_ ~  .. 1,102 $ 679 507 

F I_JNB' BALANCES, 
END Ot: YEAR $ 4 

- 74 - 

$ 1,299 



EXHIBIT C-2 
Page 1 of 3 

Term ite 
Control 
Fund 

$ 855 
855 

252 

252 

Piazza 
D'italia 

Developm ent 

Traffic 
Court 
Judicial 
Expense 

M unicipa 
Court 
Judicial 
Expense 

$ 1,873 $ 581 

$
_ _  

2
_
8 

28 
_  

1~873 

23 2,195 1,559 

2,195 
__ h5_59 

603 5 
_  (322) __ ~ 78) 

791 1,039 

791 
__ LO39 

603 5 469 

467 

$ 22 $ 469 $ 61 

Sidew alk 
Paving and 
Repairing 

- 75 - 

Specia 
Event 

Departm ent of 
Adopt a Safety and 
Pothole Perm its - 
Program Dem olition 

$ 

100 

100 

129 

129 

_ 2_~9J 

(29) 

$ 3 29 $ 78 

$ 3 $ 78 

(Continued) 



CITY O F NEW  O RLEANS, LO UISIANA 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
COM BINING STATEM ENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31, 1999 (AM OUNTS IN THOUSANDS) 

REVENUES: 
Taxes 
]ntergovernm enta] 
Plogran'l incom e 
Fines and forfeits 
Interest illCOll?e 
Contributions, gifts and 
douations 
M iscellaneous 
Total leventles 

EXPENDITURES: 
General govenunent 
Public safety 
Public woiks 
lleahh and hum an services 
Culture and recreation 
khban developm ent and housing 
Econom ic developm ent and 
assistance 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over expendihlrcs 

Other fiuanciug souxces (uses) 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
and other financing sources 
over expenditures and other 
fnlancing uses 

I:UND BALAN CES, 
BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES 
END OF YEAR 

M usic 
and 

Entertain- 
m ent 

Com m ission 

$ 13 

164 
177 

241 

24 

(64) 

New Orleans 
Police 

Departm ent - 
Crim e 

Prevention 

New Orleans New Orleans 
Asset W ar on Recreation 
Seizure Drugs Departm ent 

$ 247 
42 

146 

435 

440 

440 

(5) 

204 $ 1 1~224
_  

$ _
8
_  $ 49 

$ 140 $ 1 

- 76 - 

$ 8 $ 49 



EXHIBIT C,.2 
Page 2 of 3 

New O rleans 
Film 

Com m ission 

New O rleans 
Special 
E;vents 

$ 5 $ 2 

63 

68 

92 

92 

(24) 2 

219 

Vieux 
Carre 

Com m ission 

Vieux 
Carre 

Restoration 

$ 56 $ 

$
_.
' 63 $ 56 $

_ .~ .1 

- 77- 

Public 
Library 

Donations 
Sanitation 
Recycling 

2 

$ 68 

68 

200 

200 

(132) 2 

032) 

204 

$ 72 s 4
.._ 2~! 

(Continued) 



C ITY O F NEW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
COM BINING STATFM ENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUN[) BALANCES 

EXHIBIT C-2 
Page 3 of 3 

YEAR ENDED DECI::M BER 31, 1999 (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

I~.EVENUES: 
Taxes 
lntergovernm ental 
Program incom e 
Fines and forfeits 
I ntercst incom e 
Contributions, gifts and 
donations 
M iscellaneous 
Total revenues 

Capital 
Plant M unicipal Im provem ent Grant 
A-Tree Endow m ent- and Recipient 

Cam paign Cox Cable Infrastructure Funds 

$ 2 

47 

49 

EXPENDITURES: 
General governm ent 
Public safety 
Public works 
llealth and hum an services 
Culture and recreation 6 
Urban developm ent and 
housing 
Econom ic developm ent and 
assistance 
Total expenditures 6 

$1,682 

$ 42 127 

150 

192 1,809 

Tota 

$ 5,402 
$37,733 37,733 

3,258 3,258 
615 3,635 

470 

474 1,536 
11,936 

_ .~ _
9,935 

41,606 62,908 105,423 

2,119 
7,240 
617 

6,404 
854 

1.352 

10,669 

~39~ 255 

5,896 
7,240 
617 

7,218 
1,522 

9.961 
5,605 

3 
9,344 
461 

2,737 32,322 

12,372 
47,602 

9,727 
67,423 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over expenditures 43 192 1,80

_ _ _ _ ~9 _ 2__~,35_1_1 15,306 38,000 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 
Proceeds li'om bond issuance 
Total other financing 
sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
mad other financing sources 
over expenditures and other 
financing uses 43 192 

FUND BALAN CES, 
BEGINNING OI" YEAR 144 1,794 

FUND BALAN CF.S 
EN D OF YEAR s 1

. ,286  

- 78- 

1,809 

._ :3,882 

(96) 
1,830 
(8,596) 

2,215 
(9,882) 

_ __ ~  _l~  9,69 33 

2,255 8,540 30,333 

12,159 29,525 
.

24,192 

$ 14,414 $38,065 $ 54,525 

(Concluded) 
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CITY O F NEW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

G RA NT RECIPIENT FUNDS 
COM BINING BALANCE SHEET 
DECEMBER 31, 1999 (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

ASSETS 

Cash 
lnvesmrents 
Grantee loans receivable 
I)ue from other funds 
J)lle ~rolll other ~ovcrllt|)elits 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Due to oilier funds 
Due 1o other goverllnl(:ll[S 
D eferred revenues 

Total liabilities 

Fund balances: 
Unreserved: 
Designated for subsequen 
years' expcnditm es 

Total fund balances 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AN D 
FUND BALANCES 

Departm ent 
of Housing 

and 
Urban 

Developm ent 

$ 2,446 
350 

25.300 

13,173 

$41,269 

$ 1,333 
13,848 

788 

788 

- 80 - 

Federal 
Justice 

Adm inistration 

$ 8 
2,057 

$ 38 
2.027 

FDJ 
O ffice of 
Justice 
Program 

Federal 
Health 

Adm inistration 

1,983 $ 199 

$1,983 

$ 103 
561 

1~979 

$ 2 178 

$ 20 
2.038 

~ 065 66(; . 2~058 

$1 ~981~ 

120 

120 



EXHIBIT C-3 
Page 1 of 2 

Federa 
UDAG 

$ 437 
5,884 
9,749 

2 
5,768 

$ 2 
5O2 

9,749 

10,253 

11,587 

11,587 

Departm ent 
of 

Econom ic 
Developm ent 

$ 13 

$ 13 

$ 13 

13 

Federal 
Energy 
G rant 

$ 38 
24 

$ 62 

$ 5 

5 

Federa 
Departm ent 

of 
Agriculture 

$ 140 

Louisiana 
Com m ission 

on Law 
Enforcem ent 

Departm ent 
of Health Environm enta 
and Hum an Protection 
Resources Agency 

$ 94 $ 98 
574 

2 
212 481 $ 77 

$ 882 $ 579 $ 77 

$ 398 
90 

$ 61 
518 $ 77 

488 579 77 

$140 394 

57 140 394 

$ 13 $ 62 $ 140 $ 882 $ 579 $ 77 

- 81 - 

(Conlinued) 



CITY O F NEW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIANA 

G RANT RECIPIEN'I FUNDS 

COM BINING BALANCE SHEET 
DECEMBER 31. 1999 (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

ASSETS 

Louisiana 
Departm ent 
of Public 
Safety 

Cash $ 15 
]nvestnlents 
Grantee loans receivable 
D ue from other funds 
Due flora other governm ents 5 

"I OTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES 

$ 20 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Due to otl~er funds $ 20 
Due to other governlnclHs 
Dcferted z evenucs 

Fund balances: 
Unreselwed: 
Designated for subsequent 
years' expcnditurcs 

Total fund balances 

Federal 
Departm ent 

of 
Labor 

Louisiana 
Departm ent 

of 
Education 

$ 146 $ 2 

$ 2 
$ 151 

20 153 

TOTAL LIABILITIF~S AND 
FUND BALANCES $ 20 

- 82 - 

3 

$ 5 

Louisiana 
Departm ent 
of Agriculture 
and Forest 

3 

$ 3 

3 

Departm ent 
of Culture, 
Recreation 
and Tourism 

2 



Federa 
Departm ent Departm ent Departm ent 
of Highway of of Traffic 

Adm inistration Labor Resources Court 

$ 56 

56 

~55
_
3 

S553 

2 $ 55 

4 

6 

$335 
218 $ 6 

56 553 6 

$ 1 

54 

Private 
G rants 

$ 1 

Federa 

EXHIBIT C-3 
Page 2 of 2 

Departm ent 
of Social Tota 
Service 

$ 185 

$ 1 $ 185 

$ 1 

~55
_ ..2 * 6 .L._5~ $ 1 

83 - 

$ 11 
174 

$ 3,438 
8,990 
35,049 

56 
24~594 

$ 868 
5,209 
34,968 
2,042 
17,783 

$ 2,304 
20,301 

59 
35,049 

$ 998 
12,724 

21 
9~968 

185 5
.~ 7,213  23,711 

14A14  

144~4 1!  

$ 72,127 

37,159 

37~159 

(Concluded) 



CITY O F NEW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIANA 

G RANT RECIPIENT FUNDS 
COM BINING STATEM ENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BAt.ANCES 
YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31. t999 fAMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

REVENUES: 
|nlergovernm enta 
Program incom e 
Fines and forfeits 
luleresl incom e 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
General governm ent 
Public safety 
Public works 
Heahh and hum an services 
Culture and recreation 
Urban developm ent mid 
housing 
Econom ic developm ent 
and assistance 

Total expcnditm es 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

Other financing soulces (uses) 
Operating transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of ~evenues 
and oilier financing sources over 
expenditures and other 
financing uses 

FUN D BALANCES, 
BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES, 
END OF YEAR 

Departm ent 
of Housing 

and Federal 
Urban Justice 

Developm ent Adm inistration 

FDJ 
Office of Federal 
Justice Health 
Program Adm inistration 

$ 7,880 $ 3,029 $ 2,057 $ 9,604 
2,788 

10,668 
_ . 
3,029 

._~ _205_7 96~6_0404 

4,047 
3,018 
617 
167 
746 

,352 

627 
2,402 

(;84 6,032 
806 

3,528 

_  9~947 3,029 ~ 1_90 

721 

721 

67 

$ 788 

- 84- 

:567 44 

567 44 

750 76 

$ 120 



EXHIBIT C-4 

Page 1 of 2 

Federa 
UDAG 

$ 270 
615 

885 

885 

Departm ent 
of Federal 

Econom ic Energy 
Developm ent Grant 

Federal 
Departm ent 

of 
Agriculture 

Louisiana 
Com m ission 

on Law 
Fnforcem ent 

$ 24 $146 $1,089 

Departm ent 
of Health Environm ental 
and Hum an Protection 
Resources Agency 

$ 2,854 $ 45 
200 

24 1
_
4
_
6
_  

1~089 3~054 45 

24 109 338 
729 

21 

36 45 
126 

2,688 
108 

24 
_ A09 1,088 _2 958 

885 

_. 
10~702 $ 57 

$ 11,587 $ 
._  

$ 57 

37 

103 

- 85- 

1 

393 

_ _A~ ;) 

_  (96) 

$ 394 $ - $ - 



CITY O F NEW  O RLEANS, LO UISIANA 

G RANT RECIPIENT FUNDS 
COM BINING STATEM ENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANG ES IN FUND BALANCES 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS) 

REVENUES: 
Intergovernm ental 
Program incom e 
Fines and forfeits 
hlterest incom e 

Total revenues 

Louisiana 
Departm ent 
of Public 
Safety 

Federal 
Departm ent 

of 
Labor 

$ 103 $174 

103 174 

EXPENDITURES: 
General goverlln]ent 
Public safety 103 
Public works 
ttealth and hum an services 
Culture and recreation 
Urban developm ent and 
housing 
Econonaic deve]opnlent 
and assistance 174 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Operating transfers out 

Total oilier financing sources 
(uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
and other financing sources 
over expenditures and oilier 
financing uses 

103 174 

FUND BALANCES, 
BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUNI) BALANCES, 
END OF YEAR $ - $ - 

- 86- 

Louisiana 
Departm ent 

of 
Education 

Louisiana 
Departm ent 
of Agriculture 
and Forest 

5 

Departm ent 
of Culture, 
Recreation 
and Tourism 

$ 2 

$ 2 



EXHIBIT C-4 

Page 2 of 2 

Federal 
Departm ent Departm ent 
of Highw ay of 

Adm inistration Labor 

Federal 
Departm ent Departm ent 

of Traffic Private of Social 
Resources Court Grants Service 

$ 56 $9,691 $ 23 $ 46 

5; - 

56 
_ . 
9~691 

9,691 

.~ %69 l_ 

46 

23 46 

- 87- 

$ 1 

$912 

$ 

Tota 

$ 37,733 
3,258 
615 

$ 84,606 
382 

954 

912 
_
441~ 606 85,942 

108 

912 

12,119 
7,240 
617 

6,404 
854 

1,352 

10,669 

~ 2 2=~_55 

6,067 
5,214 

9,058 
73 

31,208 

Z&s7 

_
59~507

_ 

_ 2 3=~51 26~435 

_  
9

_L~  _  (882) 

(882) 

2,255 25,553 

_ L2 ~ 59 
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TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS 

Pension trust funds are used to account for the accum ulation of resources to be used tbr retirem ent annuities 
and death and disability benefits to em ployees covered by the various plans. Resources are contributed by 
em ployees at rates fixed by laws, and by the City at am ounts determ ined by actuarial study. 

The nonexpendable trust fund is used to account for all m onies and all property acquired by donation and to be 
held intact. M onies are to be invested with the principal rem aining intact and incom e acenunted for in separate 
expendable tru st funds. 

Expendable trust funds are used to account for all m onies and all property acquired by donation for a 
designated purpose, not required to be held intact. Significant expendable trust funds are as follows: 

Delgado-Albania Plantation Cotnmission - Used to account for funds generated from the operation of a 
sugar cane plantation. 

Edward Wisher. Used to account for approxim ately 53,500 acres of land and waterbottom s in Jefferson, 
St. John the Baptist and Lafourcbe Parishes, Louisiana from the estate of t!dward W isner to the City of 
NEW  ORLEANS, LOUISIANA , as Trustee, for a ] 00 year charitable trust. The beneficiaries of the trust 
include the City of N EW  ORLEAN S, LOUISIANA as beneficiary for several charitable purposes, 
Charity I tospital of N EW  ORLEAN S, LOU ISIAN A , Tulane U niversity and The Salvation Arm y. 
Specific portions of the land or the incom e from the land were also set aside for the establishm ent and 
m aintenance of specified structures for certain other organizations operating within the City of New 
Orleans, l,ouisiana. This trust was created by an Act of Donation dated August 4, 1914. 

Isaac Delgado M emorial - U sed to account for funds which w ill benefit Delgado Com m unity College 

Sickles Legacy - U sed to account for funds designated to establish a city dispensary  for gratuitous 
dispensing of m edicine and m edical advice to the poor. 

hlstitute ~!fM entaI tlygiene - Used to account for funds for the purpose of study, research and treatment 
in the field of m ental hygiene and psychiatry . 

Simon tlersheim - Used to account for funds for the purpose of purchasing books for the Public Library  

tlelen Alder LeW  Librm y - Used to account for funds for the purp ose of establishm ent and m aintenance 
of the H elen A lder Levy M em orial Room at the N ew Orleans Public Library . 

Agency funds are used to account for all m onies held by the City in a custodial capacity. Such m onies are 
recorded as assets and equally offset by liabilities. These funds do not m easure revenues, expenditures or 
expenses. The City's agency funds are as follows: 

Clearing Fund - Used to account for m oney being held pending payment thereof to other funds as 
provided by law. 

Deposit Fund - U sed to account for m oney deposited under any ordinance or contract in connection with 
the exercise of any right or privilege for the purp ose of guaranteeing perform ance of any obligation. 

Escrow t,'und - U sed to account for m oney paid to or deposited with any offi cer, departm ent or board 
under protest or held subject to the proper determination of the rights of the City. 

- 89 - 



CITY O F NEW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS 
COM BINING BALANCE SHEET 
DECEM BER 31. 1999 (AMO UNTS IN THOUSANDS 

A SSETS 

Cash 
Investm ents 
Receivables: 
Accounts 
Accrued interest 
Other 
D ue from other funds 
Due from component units 
Due from other governm ents 
O ther assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND 
BALANCES 

LIABILITIES: 
A ccounts payable 
Other payables and accruals 
Due to other funds 
D ue to other goverum enls 
D ue to com ponent units 

Total liabilities 

FUN D BALAN CES: 
Reserved for: 
Endow m ents 
Em ployees' pension benefits 
Unreserved - undesignated 

TOTAL LIABILI'IIF~S AN D FUND 
BALAN CES 

- 90 - 

Pension 
Trust 
Funds 

$ 2,504 
583,432 

3,559 
1,194 

738 

Expendable 
Nonexpendable Trust 
Trust Fund Funds 

$ 37 
202 

$ 240 

$ 331 
1,320 
116 $ 35 

1,767 

589,660 

589,660 

205 

205 

$1,570 
6,924 

108 

128 
12 

12 

$ 18 

4 

3 

8,729 

8,729 



EXHIBIT D-I 

Agency Funds 

Clearing Deposit Escrow 

$27,711 $1,703 
5.812 

123 

15,021 

640 162 

$ 2,433 
30,454 

Tota 

$ 35,958 
626,824 

231 
3,559 
1,194 
15,150 

12 
802 
75O 

$ 26,451 
584,511 

196 
3,372 
1,494 
9,190 

2 
434 
481 

$43,372 $7,800 $32,887 $684,480 $626,131 

$ 5,070 
4,494 
17,962 
15,625 

221 

$ 202 
7,549 

49 

$ 3,426 
29,277 

148 

36 

$ 9,047 $ 
42,640 
18,314 
15,625 

26O 

43,372 
_
7,8 00 

_  
3

._
2,887 85,886 

$43,372 $7 ,800  $32,887 

205 
589,660 
8,729 

598.594 

1,093 
39,434 
12,112 
7,804 

44 

60.487 

205 
557,074 
8,365 

565,644 

- 91 - 



C ITY O F NEW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

PENSION TRUST FUNDS 
COM BINING STATEM ENT O F PLAN NET ASSETS 
DECEM BER 31. I999 (AM OUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

ASSETS 

Cash 
]nvestm ents 
Receivables: 
A ccrued interest 
Other 
Due from other funds 
Other assets 

TOTA L A SSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND 
BALANCES 

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts payable 
Other payables arm accruals 
D ue to other governm ents 
D ue to other thnds 

"/btal liabilities 

FUND BALAN CF, S: 
Reserved for: 
Em ployees' pension benefits 

Total thnd balances 

TOTAL LIABIlJTIES AND FUN D 
BA LAN CES 

- 92 - 

Firefi~lhters' 
O ld System New System 

$1,460 
7,993 

32 
192 

4 

$ 347 
200,274 

1,634 
408 

Police 
Old System 

$ 120 
2,548 

10 
58 

$ 35 
223 

$ 210 
133 

258 343 

9,423 

9,423 

202.320 

202,320 

$202,663 

$2,736 

2,736 



EXHIBIT D-2 

Em ployees' 
Retirem ent Tota 
System  

$ 577 
372,617 

1,883 
536 

734 

$ 2,504 
583,432 

3,559 
1,194 

738 

$ 5,653 
548,812 

3,372 
1,493 

469 

86 
964 

116 

331 $ 328 
1,320 2,317 

5 
116 75 

1,166 1,767 2,725 

. 
375,181 

__
589,660 557,074 

375,181 
.__
589,660 557,074 
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CITY O F NEW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

EXPENDABLE "['RUST FUNDS 
CO M BINING BALANCE SHEET 
DECEM BER 31, 1999 (AM O UNTS IN THOUSANDS 

ASSETS 

Cash 
Investm ents 
Accounts receivable 
Due from other funds 
D ue from com ponent units 
O ther assets 

TO I~ L A SSETS 

LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Due to other funds 
D ue to com ponent units 

Total liabilities 

FUND BALANCES: 
Unreserved - undesignated 

Total lhnd balances 

TOTAl. LIABILITIES AND  
FUND BALAN CES 

Delgado- 
A lbania Institute Place 
Plantation Edward of Mental LaHache DeFrance- 
Com m ission W isner Hygiene M usic Joan of Arc 

$ 22 
3,057 

64 
12 
12 

483 $ 13 $ 6 $ 4 
241 
102 
27 

$3,167 

3,167 

$ 18 

4~835 $ 13 

4,835 13 

$ 4 

$ 6 $ 4 

6 4 

- 94 - 



 

Sim on 
Hersheim 

Kiw anis 
Club 

tee Circle 
Sprinkler 
System  

$ 3 $ 5 
54 

Ella W est 
Freem an Endow m ent 

Foundation Incom e 

$ 2 
4 

$ 32 
568 
6 
37 

$ 4 
3 

$ 57 $ 5 $ 6 636 

57 

$ 57 

6 636 

- 95 - 

EXHIBIT D-3 

Tota 

$1,570 
6,924 
108 
128 
12 
12 

256 
7,994 
103 
8 
2 
12 

$ 18 $ - 
4 7 
3 3 

8,729 

8,729 

8,365 

8,365 



CITY O F NE.W  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

EXPENDA BLE TRUST FUNDS 
COM BINING STATEM ENT O F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
YEAR ENDED DFCEM BER 31, 1999 (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS) 

REVENUES: 
Contributions, gifts and 
donations 
Interest incom e 

']'ota] revenucs 

EXPENDITURES: 
Health and hum an smwices 
Culture and recreation 

Total expenditures 

Delgado- 
A lbania 
Plantation 

Com m ission 

$ 175 
99 

Institute 
Edward of Mental 
W isner Hygiene 

$ 455 $ 
246 124 

274 701 124 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OI7 
REVEN UES O V ER 
EX PEN I)ITURES 274 

638 
146 

638 146 

FUND BALANCES, 
BEGINN ING OF YEAR 

. 
2,893 

_
4 7

.~72 

FUND BALAN CES 
EN D OF YEAR 

(22) 

Place 
LaHache DeFrance- 
M usic Joan of Arc 

6 $ 4 
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EXHIBIT D-4 

Kiw anis 
Club 

Lee Circle Ella W est 
Sim on Sprinkler Freem an Endow m ent 

Hersheim System Foundation Incom e 

$ 2 
2 

4 

4 

$ 45 

Tota 

$ 632 
516 

$1,068 
472 

1:48 .
1~
_~ o 

146 
638 

98 
1,332 

784 1,430 

45 364 110 

53 $ 5 $ 6 591 8,365 8,255 

$ 5 
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CITY O F N EW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS - ENDOW M E-N'I INCOM E TRUST FUNDS 
COM BINING BALANCE SHEET 
DECEM BER 31, 1999 (AM OUNTS IN THOUSANDS) 

ASSETS 

Ca sh 
Investm ents 
Due from other funds 
A ccounts receivable 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Due to other funds 
D ue to com ponent units 

FUND BALANCES: 
Unreserved - undesignated 

Total lim d balances 

TOTAL LIABIlATIES AND 
FUND BALANCES 

Isaac 
Delgado 
M em oria 

$ 18 
345 
3 

$ 366 

366 

- 98- 

Lafayette 
Cem etery 

John No. 1 M ahalia 
McDonogh Under W ill of Zim m erm an 
School Lilly Violet Tom b 

$ 6 
2 

$ 8 

8 

$ 3 
2 

L..~s 

$ 5 

5 

$ 5 

$ 3 

~
.. _ 23 

$ 3 

3 



EXHIBIT D-5 

M rs. 
Otto 

Joachim 

$ 1 

$ 1 

$ ] 

Sickles 
Legacy 

$ 1 
183 
34 

$ 218 

218 

Helen 
Adler 
Levy 
Library 

$ 36 

6 

$ 4 
3 

7 

- 99 - 

Tota 

$ 32 
568 
37 
6 

$ 39 
558 

1 

$ 4 $ - 
3 

7 

4 
3 

7 

636 591 

636 591 



CITY O F N EW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS - ENDOW M ENT INCO M E TRUST FUNDS 
CO M BINING STATEM ENT O F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31. 1999 (AM OUNTS IN THOUSANDS) 

REVENU ES: 
Contributions, gifts and 
donations 
Interest incom e 

Total revenues 

EX CESS OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCES, 
BEG INN ING O F YEAR 

FU N D BA LAN CES 
END O F Y EA R 

Isaac 
Delgado 
Mem oria 

$ 19 

19 

19 

347 

$ 3
= =6~ 

- 100 - 

Lafayette 
Cem etery 

John No. 1 M ahalia 
M cDonogh Under W ill of Zim m erm an 
School Lilly Violet Tom b 

$ 8 

$
_ . =

S 

$ 5 

$ 5 

$ 3 

S
. _ _ 2 



EXHIBIT D-6 

M rs. 
Otto 

Joachim 

$ 1 

Sickles 
Legacy 

$ 23 

23 

Helen 
A dler 
Levy 
Library 

Tota 

$ 3 $ 45 

3 45 

195 $ 32 591 

- 101 - 

$ - 
39 

39 

39 

552 



C ITY O F NEW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

AGENCY FUNDS 
COM BINING STATEM ENT O F CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31. 1999 (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS) 

EXHIBIT D-7 
Page 1 of 2 

CLEARING FUND 
ASSETS 

Ca sh 
Accounts receivable 
Due from other flm ds 
D ue ti-om other governm ents 

LIABILITIES 

A ccounts payable 
Other payables and accruals 
D ue to other funds 
D ue to other governm ents 
Due to com ponent units 

DEPOSIT FUND 
ASSETS 

Cash 
Investm ents 
Accounts receivahlc 
Due from other fim ds 
D ue ti'om other govern m ents 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 
O ther payables and accruals 
Due to other funds 
D ue to other governm ents 

Balance Balance 
January 1, Decem ber 31 

1999 Additions Deductions 1999 

$14,795 $2,359,479 $2,346,563 

8,991 
264 

15,018 
1.794 

8,988 
1.418 

$24 ,050 $2,376,291 $2,356,969 

$~24,05~0 .$1,252,222 $1,232,900 

$ 1 
5 

62 
31 
93 
91 
70 

$ 13,391 
294 
123 

1.652 

$ 12,951) 
13 
93 
191 

1.660 

$ 7,247 $ 15,460 $ 14,907 

$ 17 $ 2,423 $ 2,238 
6,982 3,588 3,021 
248 48 24'7 

$ 7,247 $ 6,059 $ 5,506 

- 102 - 

$27,711 

15,021 
640 

$ 5,070 
4,494 
17,962 
15,625 

221 

$ 1,703 
5,812 
123 

162 

$ 202 
7,549 

49 

(Continued) 



CITY O F N EW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

AGENCY FUNDS 
COM BINING STATEM ENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31, 1999 (AMO UNTS IN THOUSANDS1 

EXHIBIT D-7 
Page 2 of 2 

ESCROW  FUND 
ASSETS 

Cash 
Investm ents 
A ccounts receivable 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 
Other payables and accruals 
D uc to other flm ds 
Due to component urdts 

TOTAL ALL AG E;NCY FUNDS 
ASSETS 

Cash 
InvestlYIel'Jt S 
Accounts receivable 
Due from other funds 
Due ti-onl other governm ents 

LIABILITIES, 

Accounts payable 
Other payables and accruals 
Due to other funds 
Due to other govern m ents 
D ue to com ponent units 

Balance Balance 
January 1, Decem ber 31, 

1999 Additions Deductions 1999 

$ 4,482 $ 89,170 $ 91,219 
21,972 18,396 9,914 

$2 6,454  $ 107,566 $ 101,133 

$ 445 $ 13,126 $ 10,145 
26,009 34,247 30,979 

156 8 
36 

$26,454 $ 47,565 $ 41,132 

$20,539 
27,503 

93 
9,182 
434 

$2,462,040 
18,690 

123 
15,018 
3.446 

$2,450,732 
9,927 

!)3 
9,1'79 
3.078 

$
.  
57,75

=~1 $ 2,499,317 $ 2,473,00~9 

54,837 
307,778 
18,266 
924,404 

561 

$ 46,904 
303,574 
12,137 

916,578 
345 

$57,751 $ 1,305,846 $ 1,279,538 

- 103 - 

$ 2,433 
30,454 

$ 3,426 
29,277 

148 
36 

$31,847 
36,266 

123 
15,021 

802 

$ 8,698 
41,320 
18,159 
15,625 

257 

(Concluded) 
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GENERAL FIXED A SSETS A CCOUN T GRO UP 

This account group is used to account for fixed assets which are not used in proprietary fund 
operatior~s or accounted for in trust funds. 

- 105 - 



C ITY O F N EW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

SCHEDULE O F GENERA L FIXED ASSETS BY ASSET CLASS AND SOURCE 
DECEMBER 31, 1999 (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

EXHIBIT E-1 

General fixed assets: 
Land 
Buildings and improvem ents 
Equipm ent 
Construction in progress 

Total general fixed assets 

Investm ent in general fixed assets from 
Special revenue funds 
Capital projects funds: 
General obligation bonds 
Federal grants 
State grants 
M iscellaneous capital funds 
Gifts 
M iscellaneous revenues 
G eneral fund revenues 
Unidentified sources* 

Total investm ent in general tixed assets 

* Purchases prior to January 1, 1982, for which a funding source could not be identified 

- 106- 

$ 30,716 
192,881 
66,861 
207,347 

$ 9.445 

216,419 
41,708 
19,957 
12,858 
2,566 
17,808 
56,828 
120,216 



CITY O F NEW  O RLEANS, LO UISIANA 

SCHEDULE O F G ENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY F:UNCTION AND ACTIVITY 
DECEM BER 31. 1999 (AM OUNTS IN THOUSANDS) 

Function and Activity 

General governm erlt 
The Council 
The M ayor 
D epartment of Law 
Judicial and Parochial 
Departm ent of Finance 
Unattached boards and com m issions 
Departm ent of Civil Service 
G eneral services 
G eneral govern m ent 
Total general governm ent 

Public safety: 
Departm ent of Police 
D epartm ent of }:ire 
D epartm ent of SaI~ty and Permits 
Total public safety 

Public works: 
D epartm ent of Streets 
Department of Sanilation 
D epartm ent of ]hoperty M anagem ent 
D epartm ent U tilities 
Total public works 

llealth and llum an Services: 
Departm ent of Health 
D epartm ent oftlum an Services 
Total health and hum an services 

Culture and recreation: 
Public Library 
Cultural Com m ission 
D epartm ent of Recreation 
Total culture and recreation 

Urban developm ent and housing 

Econom ic developm ent and assistance 

Land 

EXHIBIT E-2 

Buildings and 
Im provem ents Equipm ent Tota 

$ 448 $ 12,039 

14,179 
14,627 

1,868 
993 

_  
2,861 

49 
160 
209 

478 

.~12,524 
13~002 

Total general fixed assets allocated 
to thnctions $30~716 

Construclion in progress 

Total general fixed assets 

- 107 

445 

65,253 
77,737 

9,585 
7,893 
4~159 
21,637 

339 
6,464 
3,690 

10,493 

7,681 
6,341 
14,022 

7,229 
5,582 
56~181 
68.992 

87 
74 

__
8,636 

25,448 
9,840 
116 

35,404 

10,113 
1,736 
1,641 

93 
13,583 

1,943 
407 

2,350 

1,198 
319 

_  
3,78

_
6 

_ _
5,3o3 

1,506 

79 

752 
15,622 

167 
1,053 
1,540 
2,273 

87 
74 

79,432 
101,000 

36,901 
18,726 
4,275 
59,902 

10,452 
8,217 
5,331 

93 
24,093 

9,673 
6,908 
16,581 

8,905 
5,901 
72,491 
87,297 

1,506 

79 

$ 66,861 290,458 

207,347 

$ 497,805 



CITY O F N EW  O RLEA N S, LO UISIA NA EXHIBIT E-3 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY 
YEAR ENDED DE'CEMBER 31, 1999 (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS) 

Function and Activity 

Geueral govcrnnlent: 
The Council 
The M ayer 
Department of l,aw 
Judicial and Parochial 
Department of Finance 
Unattached boards and 
con/lllissiolls 
Department of Civil Scrvice 
G eneral services 
General governm ent 
Total general govern m ent 

Public safety: 
Department of Police 
D epartm ent of Fire 
Dcparhnent of S~tety and Perm its 
Total public saiety 

Public w orks: 
Departm ent of Streets 
Department of Sanitation 
Department of Property M anagem ent 
Dcparltnen! Utilities 
Total public w orks 

tlealth and human se]wices: 
D epartlnent of lqeahh 
D epartm ent of l]um an Services 
Total health and hulllan services 

Culture and recreation: 
Public Library 
Cultural Com m ission 
D epartm ent of Recreation 
Total culture and recreation 

Urban developm ent and housing 

Econom ic developm ent and 
assistance 

Conslruclion in l)rogtcss 

Total general fixed assets 

General 
Fixed Assets 
January 1, 

1999 

2,209 
84 
74 

_  
79,432  
101,899 

32,811 
18,671 
4,227 
55,709 

9,965 
8,143 
4,286 

79 
22,473 

9,894 
3,730 
13,624 

8,599 
5,901 
71,294 
85,794 

1,359 

77 

196,743 

$477,678 

108 

General 
Fixed Assets 
Decem ber 31 

Additions Deductions 1999 

3O 
267 $ 1,400 
24 
17 
96 

64 
3 

501 1.400 

4,090 
55 
48 

4,193 

487 
74 

1,046 
13 

1,620 

53 
3,179 
3,232 

306 

1,197 
1,503 

147 

2 

19,702 

$30,900 

275 

275 

9,098 

10,77
= .~ 

$ 752 
15,622 

167 
1,053 
1,540 

2,273 
87 
74 

79,432 
101,000 

36.901 
18,726 
4,275 
59,902 

0,452 
8,217 
5,332 

92 
24,093 

9,672 
6,909 
16,581 

8,905 
5,901 
72,491 
87,297 

1,506 

79 

207,347 



DEBT SERVICE REQUIREM ENTS 
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C ITY O F N EW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA EXHIBIT F-1 

SCHEDULE O F G ENERA L BONDED SERVICE REQUIREM ENTS UNTIL MATURITY 
DECEM BER 31. 1999 (AM O UNTS IN THO USANDS) 

Year 

2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
2029 
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GeneralO bligations 
Bonds 

nclpal Interes 

$ 22,425 
25,430 
28,150 
29,900 
19,964 
16,994 
16,688 
14,395 
14,069 
13,807 
13,715 
13,670 
13,687 
13,698 
13,822 
13,990 
14,189 
14,463 
14,809 
37,070 
39,265 
41,560 
7,985 
8,410 
8,860 
9,330 
7,805 
4,580 
2,090 
2,216 

$497,036 

$ 22,680 
21,595 
20,034 
18,300 
28,268 
31,284 
31,620 
31,927 
32,253 
32,534 
32,658 
32,730 
32,748 
32,761 
32,660 
32,512 
32,362 
32,097 
31,780 
9,545 
7,385 
5,097 
2,674 
2,269 
1,842 
1,392 
918 
513 
26O 
136 
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C ITY O F NEW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

CO M PONENT UNITS - GOVERNM ENTAL FUNDS 
COM BINING BALANCE SHEET 
DECEM BER 31, 1999 (AM OUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

EXHIBIT G -1 

ASSETS 

Cash 
Investm ents, at cost or am ortized 
cost 

Receivables (nct, where applicable 
of allowances for uncollectibles): 
Accounts 
Accrued interest 

D ue from other governlnents 
O ther assets 

TOTAL A SSETS 

LIABILITIES, EQ UITY 
AND OTHER CREDITS 

Liabilities: 
A ccounts payable 
O ther payables and accruals 
D ue to prim ary govern m ent 
D ell:fred reverm es 

Total liabilities 

New Orleans New O rleans 
Dow ntow n Tourism Econom ic 
Developm ent M arketing Developm ent 

District Corporation Corporation 

$1,711 $ 419 $ 

3,331 

933 
39 

844 

4 1 

1,343 
102 2,100 

Tota 

$ 2,140 $1,295 

3,331 4,014 

938 
39 

1,343 
3,046 

839 
46 
412 
978 

$ 422 
52 

1,273 
1,064 

2,811 

$ 481 
9 

490 

Equity and other credits: 
Invcstm ent in genelal fixed assets 759 86 

Fund balance: 
Reserved for capital project 
Permanently restricted 
Unreserved: 
Designated for subsequent 
year's expenditures 
U ndesignated 

Total tund balances 

Total equity and other credits 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY 
AN D O TH ER CREDITS 

1,625 

1,634 
29 

3,288 

4,047 

$2,100 

25 
1,267 11 

1,292 

1,378 

2,111 

2,111 

$ 903 $ 525 
61 55 

1,273 634 
1,064 651 

3,301 1,865 

845 803 

1,625 
2,100 

1,659 
1,307 

2,425 

1,719 
772 

6,691 4,916 

7,536 5,719 
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CITY O F N EW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

COM PONENT UNITS -GOVERNM ENTAL FUNDS 
COM BINING STATEM ENT O F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANG ES IN FUND BALANCES 
YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31,1999 (AM OUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

EXHIBIT G-2 

REVENUES: 
Taxes 
Interest incom e 
M iscellaneous 
Total revenucs 

EXPEN DITURES: 
General govern m ent 
Public works 
Culture and recreation 
Total expenditures 

New O rleans New O rleans 
Dow ntow n Tourism Econom ic 

Developm ent M arketing Developm ent 
District Corporation Corporation 

$ 3,896 
312 
23 

4,231 

4,223 
805 

5,028 

Excess ofrcvenues over 
expenditures (797) 
O ther, net 

FUND BALAN CES, 
BEG INNING OF Y EAR, 

FUND BALANCES 
END OF YEAR 

(797) 

4,085 

$4,181 
21 

2,281 

._ ~6 % ! 
$ 26 

26 

2,633 27 

_  
3,389 

_ G_6 022 27 

461 (1) 

461 (1) 

Tota 

$ 8,077 
333 

2,330 
10,740 

6,883 
805 

3,389 
11,077 

$ 7,675 
432 

1,439 
9,546 

4,503 
2,254 
3,461 
10,218 

(337) (672) 
785 

(337) 113 

831 2,112 7,028 4,803 
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C O M PO N EN T U N ITS - PR O PR IETA R Y FU N D S 
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C ITY O F NEW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

CO M PONENT UNITS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
CO M BINING BALANCE SHEET 
DECEM BER 31, 1999 (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

ASSETS 

Current assets: 
Cash 
Certificates of deposit 
Investm ents 
F, eceJvables (net of allowances 
for uncollectibles): 
Property taxes 
Accounts 
Accrued interest 
Grants 
Other 

D ue from other com ponent units 
Due from prim ary govern m ent 
Inventory of supplies 
Prepaid expenses and deposits 

Total current assets 

Advances to prim ary governm ent 
Restricted assets - cash and 
investm ents: 
Custom er deposits 
Conslructiol~ account 
Current debt service account 
Future debt service account 
Contingcncy (renewal and 
replacement) account 
Operation and m aintenance account 
Capital im provem ents 
Escrow funds 
llealth insurance reserve 
Other 

Total restricted assets 

O rleans 
Parish 

Com m tm ication 
District 

New 
O rleans 

Audubon Internationa 
Com m ission Airport 

$1,035 $ 128 

2,243 

391 323 
55 

640 
307 

387 
333 

3,669 
_  

2,173 

Propcrty, plant and equipm ent - 
at cost, less accunm lated 
depreciation 1,066 

Other assets 

TOTAL A SSETS .~4,73 2 
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3.135 

2.355 

$ 2,,101 

20.054 

9,:360 
265 

1,261 
154 
882 

34,377 

4r946 

Sew erage 
and 
W ater 
Board 

$ 2,966 

172.040 

153 
9,666 
1,715 
3,394 
1,586 
135 
200 

5,607 
731 

98.193 

5,257 
55,599 

4,570 
10,032 8,065 

2,051 
5,952 
39,480 

369 

3.179 

_  
5~490 65..633 

116~515 

_  
12,364 

377,593 
4,222 

57,101 

13,244 
2.433 

141.699 

883,221 
4.695 



 

M unicipal 
Yacht 
Harbor 

M anagem ent 
Corporation 

$ 57 

1,428 

189 

French 
M arket 

Corporation 

$ 478 

214 

118 

139 
33 

1,742 982 

404 

705 

1,393 
62 

176 

1,404 
1,618 

61 

Upper 
Pontalba 
Building 

Restoration 
Corporation 

1,160 

21 

1.365 

705 
_  

4,714 1,365 

3,983 7,358 
96 

6,834 $13,150 

7,904 
134 

Canal 
Street 

Developm ent 
Corporation 

EXHIBIT H-I 
Page 1 of 2 

Tota 

$ 896 $ 9,074 

195.979 

357 

216 

1,329 

153 
20,250 
2,103 
3,610 
2,365 
475 

2,979 
6,148 
1,958 

2,798 245,094 

8,325 
4,626 
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5.37 

5,257 
56,964 
9,098 
18,159 

2,227 
5,952 

100,34(I 
1,987 
13,244 
6,378 

219.606 

1.405.965 
26.137 

9,994 
15,226 
176,744 

515 
17,176 
1,863 
1,145 
1,399 
1,008 
1,298 
6,319 
1.487 

234.174 

5.037 

5,159 
68,704 
7,278 
20,119 

2,014 
7,182 

113,774 
130 

10,015 
4.578 

238.953 

1.370.721 
25.001 

1,902,173 $ 1,873,886 

(Continued) 



CITY O F NEt/l/O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

COM PO NENT UNITS - PRO PRIETARY FUNDS 
COM BINING BALANCE SHEET 
DECEMBER 31, 1999 (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

LIABILITIES AN[) EQUITY 

Current liabilities (payable 
ti-om current assets): 
Accounts payable 
Retainages payable 
O ther payables and accruals 
Due to other com ponent units 
Due to prim ary governm ent 
D elerred revenues 
Total current liabilities 

(payable from current assets) 
Current liabilities (payable fl-om 
restricted assets): 
Retainages payable 
Capital projects payable 
Accrued interest 
Lim ited tax bonds 
Bonds payable, current portion 
Re',,enue bonds 
Deposits and other 
Total current liabilities (payable 
from restricted assets) 
Total current liabilities 

Orleans 
Parish 

Com m unications 
District 

Long-term liabilities: 
Claim s payable 
Loans payable 
Limited tax bonds (net of current portion) 
Revenue bonds (net of current portion) 
Less unam ortized discounts 
ReJhnding bonds (net of current portion and 
unamortized loss on advance relunding) 
O ther 
Total long-term liabilities 

Total liabilities 
Equity: 
Contributed capital 
Reserved lbr em ployees pension benelits 
Retained earnings: 
Reserved tbr property, plant 
and equipm ent 
Reserved tor bond debt service 
Reserved tbr capital im provem ents 
Unreserved 
Total retained earn ings 
Total fund equity 

TO'J'A L LIA BI[ATIES A ND FUND 
EQUITY 

$ 53 

8 

88 

New 
O rleans 

A udubon Internationa 
Com m ission Airport 

$ 4,323 

307 

$ 5,311 

1,487 

1,034 

149 4,630 72832 

149 

149 

4,586 
4,586 
4,586 

~ ,73 ~ 

- 118- 

185 
1,417 

751 
1,628 

3,981 
8,611 

43,504 
12,905 
(1,346) 

971 
56,034 
64,645 

71.897 
71,897 
71,897 

3,237 
1,409 

7,580 

_ _ _~:~214 

14,440 
22,272 

196,301 

196,301 
218,573 

196.247 

10,400 
2,000 
59,551

. 

.~ 71,951. 
268,198

. 

Sewerage 
and 
W ater 
Board 

$ 9,221 
506 

34,611 
135 
256 

44.729 

1,914 

395 

5,635 

5.257 

13.201 
57.930 

4,698 

12,635 
67,850 

85,183 
143,113 

148,117 
171,834 

697,357 
10,286 
57,101 

764,744 
1.084,695 



EXHIBIT H-I 
Page 2 of 2 

M unicipal 
Yacht 
Harbor French 

M anagem ent M arket 
Corporation Corporation 

$ 7 

129 

142 

$ 157 

513 

100 
12 

Upper 
Pontalba Canal 
Building Street 

Restoration Developm ent 
Corporation Corporation 

$ 117 $ 

33 
382 

278 782 532 

131 

131 
409 

88 

99 
881 

2,040 1,663 

2,04
.

0
_  

2,449 

470 

3,915 

4,385 
4.385 

1,663 
2,544 

2.894 

4,714 
1,821 
1,177 

7,7!~ 
10,606 

s 6,8
.=== = 234 s 1=_3,150 

19 

165 

92 

276 
808 

4,880 

4,880 
5,688 

4,896 
4,896 
4,896 

6 

13 

9 

28 

Total 

$ 19,195 
506 

36,761 
475 

2,002 
21 

58,
_
96o  

1 :.914 
3,237 
2,019 
1,417 
13,511 

839 
9.191 

32.128 
28 91.088 

4.867 

4,867 
4,895 

8.582 

2,272 
2~272 
10,854 

119 - 

4,698 
4,867 
56,139 
84,458 
(1,346) 

201,181 
971 

350,968 
442.056 

355,840 
17],834 

697,827 
25,400 
64,837 
144,379 
932

_
443 

460.117 

20,574 
1,495 

32,201 
1,008 
610 
11 

55,899 

1,783 
1,741 
1,825 
4,852 
7,948 
2,061 
7.734 

27.944 
83.843 

5,743 
6,191 
60,829 
86,036 
(1,429) 

221,387 
946 

379,703 
463.546 

343,367 
156.613 

688,616 
25,607 
62,977 
133.160 
910.360 

1.410.340 

$1,902,173 $ 1,873,886 

(Concluded) 



CITY O F NEW  O R LEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

COM PONENT UNITS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
CO M BINING STATEM ENT O F REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNING S 
YEAR ENDED DECI:;M BER 31, 1999 (AM OUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services 
Tax revenues 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses 
Personal services 
Contractual services 
M aterials and supp]ies 
D epreciation and am ortization 
O ther 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income (loss) 

Nonopcrating revenues (expenses) 
lnterest revenue 
Interest expense 
])cdicated taxes 
Spccific grants - The Audubon 
Institute, lnc. 
Other - net 
Unrealized gain 

Total nonoperaling revenues 
(expenses) 

Income (loss) before transfers 
Transfer out to prim ary governm ent 

Net income (loss) 
D epreciation on fixed assets acquired 
by contributions 

O rleans 
Parish 

Com m unication Audubon 
District Com m ission 

$ 280 
1,241 

48 
422 
163 

2,154 

_(~d,l_s4O 

71 

2.415 

(15) 

2,471 

317 

$ 22,640 

674 

23,314 

13,807 
12,776 

5,585 

32,168 

(8,854) 

1,569 
(3,811) 
6,624 

3,785 
4,584 

12,751 

3,897 

317 3,897 

Increase (decrease) in retained earnings 317 3.897 

P, etained earnings, be~,inning of year 
as restated 

Retained earnings, end of year 

4,269 

$4,586 

- 120 - 

68,000 

$71,897 

New 
O rleans 

nternationa 
A irport 

$56,132 

Sew erage 
and 
W ater 
Board 

$ 94,838 
32,857 

56,132 127,695 

14,748 
19,225 
1,453 

22.211 

57,637 

(1,50~  

4,753 
04,530) 

31,858 
58,194 

27,629 
8,168 

125,849 

1,846 

8,124 
(4,655) 

12 

11,641 1,976 

_ _ .t1864 

359 

359 

._ _~8771 

9.130 

62,821 

$71,951 

5,457 

7.303 

7,303 

7,303 

757,441 

$764,744 



EXHIBIT H-2 

M unicipal 
Yacht 
Harbor French 

M anagem ent M arket 
Corporation Corporation 

$1,156 

1,156 

457 
279 
38 
106 
35 

915 

241 

(128) 

(128~ 

113 

113 

$ 5,547 

689 

_  
6,236 

1,503 
2,680 
209 
580 
8 

4,980 

1,256 

218 
(98) 

120 

1,376 
._ ~_900) 

476 

113 476 

4,272 

_
s 4,385

=  

7,236 

$7,712 

Upper 
Pontalba Canal 
Building Street 

Restoration Developm ent 
Corporation Corporation 

$1,086 

4 

1,090 

83 
496 
8 

262 
13 

862 

228 

$ 1,531 

268 

1,799 

126 

1 
221 
286 

Tota 

$182,930 
32,857 
1,635 

$173,404 
32,120 
1 775 

217,422 207,299 

62,862 
94,891 
1,757 

57,016 
8,673 

634 225,199 

59,786 
88,128 
1,753 

54,896 
8,345 

212.908 

1,165 
_ _~ 7,777) _ (5,609) 

62 
(174) (334) 

4,880 

M ,8J _++ 

- 121 - 

(334) 

831 

831 

831 

1,441 

$ 2,272 

14,797 
(23,730) 
9,051 

3,785 
18.186 

13,323 
(22,282) 
8,881 

1,677 
14,698 

22,089 16,297 

14,312 
_ -- (1,000) 

13,312 

10,688 
_  (900) 

9,788 

8,771 8,948 

22,083 18,736 

910,360 891,624 

$ 932,443 $ 910,360 



CITY O F NEW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

cO M PONENT UNITS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
COM BINING STATEM ENT O F CASH FLOW S 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

O rleans 
Parish 

Com m unication 
District 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to 
tlet cash provided by operating activities: 
Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income 
(loss) to net cash provided by 
(used lor) operaling activities: 
D epreciation and am ortization 
Loss on disposal of property 
Provision 1or claim s 
Provision tbr doubtlhl accounts 

Decrease (increase) in cun-cnt assets: 
Taxes receivable 
A ccounts receivable 
O ther receivables 
Due from other flmds 
Due from prim ary govern m ent 
hw entory 
Prepaid expenses and deposits 
O ther assets 
Increase (decrease) in cun'ent liabilities 
(Decrcase) increase in capital projects 
payable 
A ccounts payable 
O ther payables and accruals 
Due to other thnds 
Due to prim aD' governm ent 
A dvances fiom  other funds, net 

New 
Orleans 

Audubon Internationa 
Com m ission Airport 

Sew erage 
and 
W ater 
Board 

$(2,154) $(8,854) $(1,505) $ 1,846 

422 

48 
8 

88 

De fcrred revenues 
Increase in inventory of materials 
and supplies 
Other (128) 
(Decrease) increase in accrued salary/ 
com pensation 

5,585 
302 

(291) 

22,211 

17 

(2,095) 

(73) 

(174) 

27,629 

7,165 
1,002 

(19) 
(2,201 ) 

215 
(396) 

1fi97 
(2,188) 355 

41 
(590) 

43 

Net cash provided by (used 
tor) operating activities __~1,7003)3 (3,162) 1.~7,184 

Cash flows fl'om noncapital financing activities 
Advances from prim ary governm ent 
Paym ent of loans payable 
Residual equity transtiers 
Other revenues 
Dedicated taxes 

Net cash provided by (used tbr) 
noncapital linancing activities 

- 122- 

(5,338) 

30,013 

(200) 
1,988 

__ L2o~ 1,958 



M unicipa 
Yacht 
Harbor 

M anagem ent 
Corporation 

French 
M arket 

Corporation 

Upper 
Pontalba Canal 
Building Street 

Restoration Developm ent 
Corporation Corporation 

EXHIBIT H-3 
Page I of 2 

Total 

$ 241 $ 1,256 $ 228 $ 1,165 $ (7,777) $ (5,609) 

106 580 262 

(12) 
8 

(143) 

59 
lll 

32 

8 

221 57,016 
302 

7,165 
1,027 

8 (] 1) ]40 

(13) 
(86) 

87 
167 
42 

6 

30 

(1) 
oo 

(200) 

3 
5 

(1,201) 

9 

138 (602) 

(19) 
(4,449) 

8 
(143) 
(273) 
221 
(583) 
(86) 

1,623 
(1,695) 
239 
152 

(I ,013) 

10 

41 
(6,488) 

54,896 

7,200 
17 

112 
1,141 
(923) 

(472) 
(426) 
767 
101 

(587) 
4,629 
203 
50 
200 
(119) 
(4) 

(5,528) 
(131) 

. 2~ Q2) _ (107) 

402 2,050 752 
_ (460) 45,076 

(1oo) 

_ OoJ 3 

- 123 - 

55.410 

(I00) (394) 
(200) 
1,988 2,814 

_  
2,371 

1,688 4,791 

(Continued) 



CITY O F NEW  O R LEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

CO M PONENT UNIT - PRO PRIETARY FUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW S 
YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31, 1999 (AM OUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

Cash flows from capital and related 

O rleans 
Parish 

Com m unications 
District 

financing activities: 
Acquisition and construction of 
property and eqnipm ent 
Decrease (increase) in reslricted assets 
(lncrcase) decreasc in restricted 
liabilities 
Proceeds from properly taxes 
dedicated to coushuction 
Principal payments on bonds payable 
Capital contributed by federal 
and state grants 
Interest paid on bonds payable 
Grants from Audubon Institute 
Proceeds from issuance of bonds 
Bond issuance costs 
Passcngcr facilities charges collected 
O ther 

N et cash used for capital and 
related financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Paym ents for purchase of investm ents 
Proceeds from sale and m aturities 
of investm ents 
lnterest and dividends on investm ents 

Net cash provided by (used for) 
investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 

Cash and cash equivalents, 
beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, 
end of year 

$ (163) 

2,400 

2,237 

New 
Orleans 

Audubon Internationa 
Com m ission Airport 

Sew erage 
and 
W ater 
Board 

$ (9,981) $(33,434) $ (47,285) 
2,028 

(425) 

6,624 
(2,260) 

5,393 
(3,512) 
3,785 

(552) 

(6,330) 

10,879 

(12,940) 

35,001 
(1,032) 
12,611 

_ (49,6f~0) 

(4,605) 

8,335 

(4,690) 

1,10o 
_ ~  (4~  

(1,093) 

71 1,536 

_ 9,02~ 

(488) 

1,523 

$ 1,035
=  

- 124 - 

1,536 

(526) 

654 

$ 128 

(48,628) 
4,699 

(71,850) 

84,333 

(292,704) 

302,721 
8.028 

18.045 

1,801 

1.405 



EXHIBIT H-3 
Page 2 of 2 

M unicipal 
Yacht 
Harbor 

M anagem ent 
Corporation 

96 

(5) 

(128) 

French 
M arket 

Corporation 

(19o) 

(98) 

Upper 
Pontalba Canal 
Building Street 

Restoration Developm ent 
Corporation Corporation 

$ (99) 
(183) 

(155) (122) 

(172) 

Total 

$ (90,962) $ (76,086) 
1,941 2,425 

(425) 

6,624 
(13,667) 

24,607 
(211,540) 
3,785 
35,001 
(1,032) 
1"!,611 

~ (47~812) 

(146) 

6,510 
(14,778) 

11,644 
(20,447) 
1.677 

51,148 
(474) 

12,233 
(120) 

(37) 2~ ) _~ 099 (122) .~ ),869) (26,414) 

(1,428) (1,542) 

~ (1,428) 

(1,063) 

1,120 

$ 57 

_ ~.1,542) 

220 

62 

(296,767) (364,127) 

25,1,139 
14~396 

62 46 (28,232) 

105 

258 1,008 

$ 478 

- 125 - 

(536) 

1,432 

$ 896 

(72,337) 

91.733 

374,179 
15.068 

25.120 

58,907 

32.826 

$ 19,396 $ 91,733 

(Concluded) 
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C ITY O F N EW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

G ENERA L AN[) DEBT SERVICE FUNDS EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION 

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY' BASIS) 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED. AM OUNTS IN THOUSANDS) 

Year 

1990 

1991 

1992 

1993 

1994 

1995 

1996 

1997 

1998 

1999 

General 
Government (1) 

Public 
Safety 

$ 79,698 $123,643 

120,965 

92,515 

86,034 

95,321 

121,827 

118,622 

142,853 

129,525 

132.020 

136,514 

152,717 

135,640 

135,634 

135,702 

138,800 

155,604 

155,123 

154,573 

(l) Gcneral governnaent expenditurcs include other financing uses 

- 128- 

Public 
W orks 

$55,245 

58,018 

57,205 

55,549 

57,694 

62,396 

49,740 

56,139 

53,033 

57.312 

Health 
and 

Hum an 
Services 

$15,686 

14,521 

16,739 

17,053 

14,610 

12,946 

14,301 

15,124 

12,699 

12.865 



TA BLE 1 

Culture 
and 

Recreation 

15,384 

16,384 

18,707 

17,145 

17,505 

18,838 

17,869 

21,648 

20,571 

22,267 

Urban 
Developm ent 
and Housing 

$15,156 

1,050 

222 

2 

2 

245 

336 

166 

205 

222 

Econom ic 
Developm ent 

and 
A ssistance 

$11,427 

- 129- 

Debt 
Service 

$ 51,534 

25,064 

36,128 

45,539 

44,796 

40,759 

45,509 

47,04(I 

49,699 

45.585 

Total 

$367,773 

372,516 

374,233 

356,962 

365,562 

392,713 

385,177 

438,574 

420,855 

424,844 



C ITY O F N EW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

GENERA L AND DEBT SERVICE FUNDS REVENUES BY SO URCE 

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

Year 

1990 

1991 

1992 

1993 

1994 

1995 

1996 

1997 

1998 

1999 

Taxes 

$171,324 

$173,750 

183,234 

186,842 

187,327 

194,735 

199,355 

202,828 

214,612 

221,915 

Licenses 
and 

Perm its 

$31,752 

$ 31,284 

32,591 

34,464 

33,150 

35,296 

34,639 

44,462 

55,166 

53.672 

Inter- 
governm enta 

$50,370 

$17,731 

20,630 

21,546 

18,245 

18,825 

17,038 

17,547 

18,407 

18,545 

(1) Other financing sources are included as miscellaneous revenues 

- 130 - 

Charges 
for 

Services 

$ 33,520 

$35,908 

37,434 

37,723 

39,637 

43,555 

41,778 

44,690 

43,170 

44,039 

Fines 
and 

Forfeits 

$ 9,684 

$ 8.869 

11,682 

10,326 

10,856 

10,430 

10,498 

12,957 

11,514 

10,803 



TA BLE 2 

Interest 
Incom e 

$13,455 

9,487 

6,568 

6,765 

4,257 

7,284 

8,089 

10,406 

8,811 

8.229 

Contributions, 
G ifts and 
Donations Miscellaneous (1) 

$ 299 

322 

292 

16,047 

30,724 

6,612 

484 

589 

6,613 

1,128 

$19,077 

56,181 

60,619 

7,907 

22,545 

34,082 

21,603 

44,780 

33,493 

25,312 

- 131 - 

Debt 
Service 

$ 53,377 

49,612 

40,357 

35,075 

35,675 

36,782 

39,578 

40,787 

43,048 

44,828 

Total 

$382,858 

383,144 

393,407 

356,695 

382,416 

387,601 

373,062 

419,046 

434,834 

428.471 



C ITY O F NEiW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

G ENERAL AN[) DEBT SERVICE FUNDS EXPENDITURES BY FUNCIlON 

(GAAP BASIS) 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS tUNAUDITED. AM O UNTS IN THO USANDSI 

Year 

1990 

1991 

1992 

1993 

1994 

1995 

1996 

1997 

1998 

1999 

G eneral 
Government (1) 

$ 76,205 

120,815 

93,929 

81,627 

90,076 

101,508 

103,316 

122,846 

131,544 

129,653 

Public 
Safety 

$122,299 

135,425 

152,499 

134,272 

134,566 

135,374 

138,257 

157,019 

154,299 

155,136 

(1) General government expenditures include other financing uses. 

- 132 - 

Public 
W orks 

$ 56,897 

55,633 

59,345 

57,053 

53,692 

55,686 

52,848 

59,333 

53,744 

54,645 

Health 
and 

Hum an 
Services 

$15,602 

14,354 

17.202 

17,019 

14,606 

12,570 

14,682 

15,074 

12,414 

12,877 



TABLE 3 

Culture 
and 

Recreation 

$15,378 

16,397 

18,795 

17,012 

17,469 

18,714 

17,824 

21,850 

20,381 

22,213 

Urban 
Developm ent 
and Housing 

Econom ic 
Developm ent 

and 
Assistance 

$ 15.151 $ 11.427 

1,171 

245 

4 

223 

358 

166 

176 

239 

- 133 - 

Debt 
Service 

$51,534 

25,064 

36,128 

45,539 

44,796 

40,759 

45,509 

47,040 

49,699 

45,585 

Total 

$ 364,493 

368,859 

378,143 

352,522 

355,209 

364,834 

372,794 

423,328 

422,257 

420.348 



C ITY O F N EW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

GENERAL A ND DEBT SERVICE FUNDS REVENUES BY SOURCE 

(GAAP BASIS) 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED, AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

Year 

1990 

1991 

1992 

]993 

1994 

1995 

1996 

1997 

1998 

1999 

Taxes 

$171,855 

173,616 

184,101 

187,341 

186 702 

195 076 

199 417 

203 088 

212 721 

221 915 

Licenses 
and 

Perm its 
Inter- 

governm enta 

$ 31,752 $ 50,472 

31,284 

32,591 

34,464 

33,150 

35,296 

34,639 

44,462 

55,166 

53,672 

17,678 

20,487 

21,546 

18,227 

18,572 

17,590 

16,927 

18,514 

18,548 

(1) Olher financing sources are included as miscellaneous revenues 

- 134 - 

Charges 
for 

Services 

$33,83'7 

35,908 

37,666 

37,760 

39,637 

43,555 

41,778 

44,717 

43,174 

44,039 

Fines 
and 

Forfeits 

$ 9,684 

8,869 

11,682 

10,326 

10,856 

10,430 

10,498 

2,957 

1,515 

0,803 



TA BLE 4 

Interest 
Incom e 

$13,455 

9,487 

6,568 

6,765 

4,257 

7,284 

8,067 

10,406 

8,811 

8,229 

Contributions, 
G ifts and 
Donations Miscellaneous (1) 

$ 299 

322 

292 

16,047 

30,742 

6,612 

484 

588 

6,614 

1,128 

$ 3,134 

41,985 

37,421 

7,472 

21,896 

20,208 

22,916 

23,710 

27,451 

24,102 

- 135 - 

Debt 
Service Tota 

$ 53,377 

49,612 

40,357 

35,075 

35,675 

36,782 

39,578 

40,787 

43,048 

44.828 

$ 367,865 

368,761 

371,165 

356,796 

381,142 

373,815 

374,967 

397.642 

427,014 

427,264 



CITY O F N EW  O R LEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

PRO PERTY TAX LEVIES A ND CO LLECTIO NS 
LAST TEN FISCAl.. YEARS (UNAUDITED, AM OUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

Fisca 
Year 

Total 
Levied 

Collected through 
Decem ber 31. 1999 

TABLE 5 

Balance 
O utstanding at 

Decem ber 31. 1999 
m ount Percent A m ount I-'ercen 

Real estate taxes: 
1990 $ 144,620 $ 142,981 

1991 

1992 

1993 

1994 

1995 

1996 

1997 

1998 

1999 

Personal property 
laxes: 

1990 

1991 

1992 

1993 

1994 

1995 

1996 

1997 

1998 

1999 

158.047 155.969 

153,070 150,859 

149,627 

146.451 

45.005 

147,297 

144,041 

142.095 

155.297 150.835 

157,517 153,777 

163,715 155,434 

172,016 159.563 

$ 70,248 

74,939 

75,053 

72,866 

74,955 

79,258 

85,470 

88,126 

94,777 

91,514 

$ 64,692 

70,131 

70,340 

68,265 

71,074 

75.098 

77,507 

82,589 

87,645 

81,111 
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98.87 

98.69 

98.56 

98.44 

98.35 

97.99 

97.13 

97.63 

94.94 

92.76 

92.09 

93.58 

93.72 

93.69 

94.82 

94.75 

90.68 

93.72 

92.47 

88.63 

$ 1,639 

2,078 

2,211 

2,330 

2,410 

2,910 

4.462 

3,740 

8,281 

2,453 

$ 5,556 

4,808 

4,713 

4,601 

3,881 

4,160 

7,963 

5,537 

7,132 

10.403 

1.13 

1.31 

1.44 

1.56 

1.65 

2.01 

2.87 

2.37 

5.06 

7.24 

7.91 

6.42 

6.28 

6.31 

5.18 

5.25 

9.32 

6.28 

7.53 

11.37 

Collected 

170 

94 

94 

110 

150 

301 

526 

4,814 

4,133 

159,563 

$ 

49 

49 

20 

67 

123 

281 

657 

4,288 

81,111 



C ITY O F NEW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

A SSESSED AND ESTIM ATED ACTUA L VALUE O F TAXABLE PRO PERTY 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED. AM OUNTS IN THOUSANDS) 

Fisca 

1990 

199! 

1992 

1993 

1994 

1995 

1996 

1997 

1998 

1999 

Real Prooe 

Net 
Assessed 
Value(l) 

Estim ated 
Actual 
Value 

Personal Property 

Net 
Assessed 
Value 

Estim ated 
Actual 
Value 

TABLE 6 

Tota 

Net 
A ssessed 
Value 

Assessed to 
Estim ated Estim ated 
Actual Actual 
Value Value 

$ 992,145 $8,504,076 $492,316 $3,282,107 $1,484,461 $11,786,183 

1,001,971 8,588,298 485,333 3,235,553 1,487,304 11,823,851 

938,752 8,020,709 468,707 3,124,713 1,407,459 11,145,422 

918,234 7,870,555 456,806 3,045,373 1,375,040 10,915,928 

894,733 7,669,118 467,805 3,118,700 1,362,538 10,787,818 

885,899 7,593,398 467,699 3,117,993 1,353,598 10,711,391 

948,777 

960,554 

977.783 

8,132,351 

8,233,296 

8,380,973 

1,013,240 8,684,889 

533,425 3,556,167 

548,893 3,659,287 

578,512 

592,741 

(1) An)otl~~ts aJe/}el oflhe tmmeslead exemption. 

3,856,747 

3,951,607 
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1,482,202 11,688,518 

1,509,447 11,892,583 

1,556,295 12,237,720 

1,605,981 12,636,496 

12.6 

12.6 

12.6 

12.6 

12.6 

12.6 

12.7 

12.7 

12.7 

12.7 



CITY O F NEW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

PRO PERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNM ENTS 

TABLE 7 
Page 1 of 4 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEA RS (UNAUDITED, NUMBER OF MILLS 

Direct Property Tax Rates 
City alim ony, See. 15 Act 
4 of 1916; Art. XIV Sec. 
24 Const. 1921 Act 151 
of 1962 

Interest and redem ption 
city bond, Sec. 15, A ct 
4 of 1916 (Amended 
Act 575 of 1966) 

Special tax for sewerage, 
water and drainage, Act 
197 of 1938 and Act 
626 of 1960, Art. XIV, 
Sec. 23.1, 23.4-23.12 
Const. 1921 

Special tax for 
m aintenance, operations 
and extension of the 
drainage system , Act 
565 of 1966, Art. X IV, 
Sec. 23.2 Const. 1921 
and Art V], See. 22.36 
and 32 Const. 1974.1 
and Art. VII, Sec. 23, 
1974 Const. LSA R.S. 
47:1705 (B) 

Special tax for 
establishing and 
m aintaining a 
zoological garden in 
A udubon Park, Art. X 
Sec. 10 and Sec. 801 
of Title 39 Louisiana 
Const. 1972 approw ~d 
by voters in a 
rcfercl'tduln N ovem ber 
1972 

Special dedicated tax 
to operate the Public 
Library Act V/l, Part 
11 Sec. 23 of Louisiana 
Const. 1974, LSA R.5, 
47:1705(B) approved 
by voters in N ovem ber 
1986 

1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990 

14.91 14.91 14.91 14.91 14.91 14.91 14.91 14.91 14.01 14.01 

26.90 26,90 26.90 26.90 26.90 26.90 26.90 26.90 35.30 35.30 

4.00 4.00 

22.59 22,59 22.59 22.59 22.59 22.59 22.59 22.59 21.23 21.23 

44 .44 .44 .44 .44 .44 .44 .44 .41 

4.32 4.32 4.32 4.32 4.32 4.32 4.3;! 4.32 4.06 4.06 
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CITY O F NEW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIANA 

PROPERTY TAX RATFS - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNM ENTS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED, NUMBER OF MILLS) 

TA BLE 7 
Page 2 of 4 

Special tax dedicated to 
m aintenance of double 
platoon Fire 
Department and trin e 
platoon Police 
Departm ent, Act 7 of 
1920 Art. X IV , Sec. 25, 
Const. 1921 

Special tax (additional) 
for increase in pay to 
officers and m embers of 
Police and Fire 
D epartm ent, A ct 260 of 
1928, Art. X IV, Sec. 25, 
Const. 1921 

Special tax to establish 
and m aintain an 
aquarium by the 
A udubon Com m ission 
A ct. VII, Part II See. 
23, ofLa. Const. 
1974. LSA R-5, 
47:1705(B) approved 
by the voters in 
N ovember 1986 

Special tax, Police w ithout 
tlom estead Exem ption: 
additional m ffJ'ages for 
police protection, A ct 
1103 of 1990; Art. VII, 
Sec. 23 

Special tax, Fire w ithout 
ltom estead Exem ption: 
additional m illages lor 
fire protection, Act 
1103 of 1990; Art. VII, 
Sec. 23 

Special tax, N eighbofllood 
]lousing lm provenlenl 

1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990 

4.27 4.27 4.27 4.27 4.27 4,27 4.27 4.27 4.01 4.01 

2.13 2.13 2.13 2.13 2.13 2.13 2.13 2.13 2.00 2.00 

4.11 4.11 4.11 4.11 4.11 4,11 4.11 4.11 3.86 3.86 

5.26 5.26 5.26 5.26 5.26 5,26 5.26 5.26 5.00 

5.21 

1.25 

5.21 5.21 5.21 5.21 

1.25 1.25 1.25 2.50 
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5,21 5.21 

2,50 2.50 

5.21 4.00 

2.50 



CITY O F NEW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNM ENTS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED, NUMBER OF MILLS) 

Capital im provem ents & Infra- 
structure Trust Fund 

Special tax, New Orleans 
Econom ic D evelopm ent 
Fund 

Special tax, Parkways and 
Park and Recreation 

TABLE 7 
Page 3 of 4 

1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990 

2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 

1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 2,50 2.50 2.50 2.50 

D epartm ent 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3,00 3.00 3.00 3.00 
Special tax, Street and 
Traffic Control Device 
M aintenance 

Total direct propcrty 
tax rates 

1.90 1.90 1.90 1.90 1,9~ 0 1.90 1.90 1.90 _ _ :_._- 

100.04 100.04 100.04 100.04 100,04 100.04 1_ _00,04 100_ .04 97.88 88.88 

O verlapping l'roperty Tax R ates 
SpeciaJ lax to provide 
funds for Board of 
A ssessors according 
to Scc. 1925.1, 
1925.2A title 47 
1 ,a. reviscd statute 
A ct 450, 1986 1.19 1.19 1.19 1.19 1.19 1.19 1.19 1.19 1.12 1.12 

Special lax, Orleans 
Parish Levee Board for 
support, m aintenance 
and construction of 
levees and levee 
drainage as authorized 
by Act 6, Sec. 39, 
Const. 1974 5.46 5.85 5.85 5.85 5,85 5.85 5.13 5.85 5.13 5.13 

Special tax, Orleans 
Parish Levee Board, fol 
support, m aintenance 
and construction of 
levees and levcc 
drainage Art. X VI, Sec. 
2 Const. 1921 am endcd, 
ratified Art. 6, 
Scc.31 of the 1974 
Const. 6.55 6.16 6.16 6.16 6.16 6.16 6.16 6.16 6.16 6.16 
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CITY O F NEW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

PRO PERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNM ENTS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED, NUMBER OF MILLS 

TA BLE 7 
Page 4 of 4 

Special tax for Orleans 
Parish School Board, for 
support, m aintenance 
and construction of 
Public Schools of the 
City of N ew Orleans as 
levied by said Board 
annually, Act 51 of 
1920, Art. X II, 
Sec. 16 Const. 1921 
Act 264 of 1926; 
Act 751 of 1964 

Special tax, Law Enforcem ent 
D istrict of Orleans Parish, 
1.P,S 33:90001-9010 

"/'oral overlapping property 
tax rates 

Tota 

1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990 

51.10 48.80 45.40 45.10 45.10 45.10 45.10 45.10 42.39 42.39 

3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 
. 3.0 2.90 2.80 

67.30 65.00 61.60 .6)..30 .61.30 .61.30 .60.58 ~6!.20 57.60 54.80 

167.34 165.04 161.64 161.34  ~61.34 161.34 160.62 161~24 .155.4.__ __ __
88 

,
143.68 

Note: The above taxes are collected on the basis of 100% of valuation. 
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CITY O F N EW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

COM PUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN 
DECEMBER 31. 1999 (UNAUDITED, AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

Assessed value 

Debt lim itation - 35%  of total assessed value* 

Am ount of debt applicable to debt lim itation 

General obligation bonds 
Lim ited tax bonds 

Less assets m debt sezwice fond available for retirement of 
general obligation bonds 

Total am ount ot'debt applicable 1o debt lim it 

Legal debt m argin 

TA BLE 8 

$2,212,297 

774~304 

485,156 
11.880 

497,036 

32.605 

464.431 

*Per Act 4 of 1916 of the Legislature of the State of Louisiana, as am ended by Act 576 of 1966, as 
am ended by Act 420 of 1978, as am ended by A ct 159 of 1984, as am ended by Act l of 1994. 
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C ITY O F NEW  O R LEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

RATIO OF G FNERA L O BLIGATION BONDED DEBT 
TO ASSESSED VALUE AND BO NDED DEBT PER CAPITA 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED, AMO UNTS IN THO USANDS 

TA BLE 9 

Fisca 
Year 

1990 

1991 

1992 

1993 

1994 

1995 

1996 

1997 

1998 

1999 

Ratio of 
Assessed Value General Bonded Bonded 
Real Estate and Obligation Debt to Debt Per 

Population* Personal Property Bonded Debt Assessed Value Capita (1) 

497 

497 

497 

497 

497 

497 

497 

497 

497 

497 

$1,918,540 $ 368 610 

1,896,329 

1,802,997 

1,770,985 

1,786,595 

1,784,739 

1,914,889 

1,969,443 

1,969,443 

2,212,297 

*Per 1990 U .S. Census. 

(l) Bonded debt per capita not in thousands 
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383 721 

442 142 

429 243 

415 625 

432 261 

414 711 

448 081 

474 42l 

485 156 

19.21 

20.24 

24.52 

24.24 

23.26 

24.22 

21.66 

22.76 

24.09 

21.93 

742 

772 

890 

864 

836 

870 

834 

901 

955 

976 



C ITY O F N EW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

RATIO O F ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES FOR 
TOTAL DEBT TO TOTAL GENERA L EXPENDITURES 
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED, AM OUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

TABLE 10 

Flsca 
Year 

1990 

1991 

1992 

1993 

1994 

1995 

1996 

1997 

1998 

1999 

Principa 

$ 21,913 

8,628 

11,580 

12,614 

13,618 

11,538 

17,550 

17,870 

17,245 

23,040 

Interest 

$27,509 

14,807 

21,153 

22,969 

21,966 

17,307 

20,718 

21,600 

23,077 

21,799 

Total Debt 
Service 

$49,422 

23,435 

32,733 

35,583 

35,584 

28,845 

38,268 

39,470 

40,322 

44,839 

(1) Includes general and debt service funds only 
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Ratio of Debt 
Serv ice to 

Total General Total General 
Expenditures(l) Expenditures 

$ 367,773 

372,516 

374,233 

356,962 

365,562 

392,713 

372,441 

415,593 

418,640 

434,408 

13.44 

6.29 

8.75 

9.97 

9.73 

7.35 

10.27 

9.49 

9.63 

10.32 



C ITY O F NEW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

CO M PUTATION O F DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT 
DECEM BEP, 31. 1999 (UNAUDITED. AM OUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

Bonded 
Debt 

City ofN ew ()rleans: 

General obligation and lim ited tax bonds $ 497,036 

Sewerage and W ater Board 

Total direct City debt 

Overlapping debt: 

Orleans Parish School Board (1) 

Orleans Levee District (1) 

Total overlapping debt 

Total direct and overlapping debt 

86,120 

58.577 

641,733 

359,079 

117,939 

477.018 

TABLE 11 

Percentage 
Overlapping 

100 %  

100 

100 

100 

100 

Overlapping 
Debt 

$ 497,036 

86,120 

58.577 

641,733 

359,079 

117.939 

477.018 

(1) The fiscal year of the Orleans Parish School Board and Orleans Levee District ends on June 30th 
Overlapping debt is based on June 30, 1999 financial inform ation. 
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CITY O F NEW  O R LEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

PRO PERTY VA t.UE A ND CO NSTRUCTIO N 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS [UNA UDITED. AM OUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

Value 
N eal 
Estate Personal Tota 

1990 $8,504,076 $3,282,107 $11,786,183 

1991 8,588,2!)8 

! 992 8,020,709 

3,235,553 11,823,851 

3,124,713 11,145,422 

1993 7,870,555 3,045,373 10,915,928 

1994 7,669,118 3,118,700 10,787,818 

1995 7,593,398 

1996 8,132,351 

1997 8,233,296 

1998 8,380,973 

3,117,993 10,711,391 

3,556,167 11,688,518 

3,659,287 11,892,583 

3,856,747 12,237,720 

1999 8,684,889 3,951,607 12,636,496 

Sourcc: Department of Safety and Perm its 

Construction 
N eslaentlal 

erm its Valuatio~ 
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3,118 

3,413 

10,203 

11,358 

2,993 

2,595 

2,163 

2,131 

1,962 

2.089 

$97,043 

55,703 

54,735 

99,151 

98,675 

105,590 

79,469 

62,761 

104,227 

122,342 

onres entlal 
aluation erm 

870 $ 80,671 

892 96,701 

1,241 90,768 

3,039 90,433 

824 131,997 

604 39,063 

365 175,218 

1,501 123,250 

339 146,053 

531 161,068 



TA BLE 12 

o m m ercla 
erm ll 

591 

730 

1,033 

233 

904 

627 

160 

90O 

184 

294 

alUatlon 

$ 46,236 

43,716 

77,]16 

70,176 

?7,500 

219.679 

28,921 

97,325 

49,028 

78,293 

naustrla 
erm its valuation 

64 $12,278 

53 20,922 

2 8,340 

1 6,887 

20 5,700 

47 22,548 

8 846 

18 1,163 

2 11,796 

3 184 
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C ITY O F N EW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS 

DECEMBER 31, 1999 (UNAUDITED, AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS 

TABLE 13 

Nam e of Taxpayer 

Entergy Services 
BelISouth Telecom m unications 
Banc O ne 
tlibem ia N ational Bank 
W hitney National Bank 
International Pdver Center 
M an'iot Hotel Properties 
AT&T Com m unications 
CS& M  A ssociates 
Crescent Real Estate Equities 

Type of Business 

Electric and gas utilities 
Telephone utilities 
Financial institution 
Financial institution 
Financial institution 
Real Estate 
H otel 
Telecom m unications 
Real Estate 
Real Estate 
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Percentage 
1999 of Total 

Assessed Assessed 
Value Value 

70,099 
$ 67,488 
32,107 
23,391 
20,148 
17,439 
14,978 
14,764 
12,625 
12,347 

4.13 %  
3.98 
1.89 
1.38 
1.19 
1.03 
.88 
.87 
.74 
.73 

$ 285,386 16.82 % 



C ITY O F NEW  O RLEA NS, LO UISIA NA 

DEM OG RA PHICAL AND M ISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS 
(UNAUDITED) 

LocatioJ 

Southeastern Louisiana between Lake Pontchartrain and the M ississippi River 

TABLE 14 

Size: 

363.5 square miles, with 199.4 square miles (54%) of land 

Population: 

496,938 (1990 U.S. Census) 

Climate: 

Average winter temperature (October - M arch) 59.8 degrees; average summer temperature 
(April - September) 77.4 degrees; annual average humidity - 63%; annual average rainfall - 
53.9 inches 

Public SafeO,: 

D eparlm en! of Police 
Police districts .. 8 
Budgeted positions - 2,044 

Departm ent of Fire 
Fire districts - 6 
Budgeted positions - 750 

Public W orks 

D eveloped expressways 
Paved roadways with curbs, gutters and subsurface drainage 
Asphalt center strip roadways with some related subsurface drainage 
Temporary surfaces, roadways 
U nopened or undeveloped streets 

Budgeted positions - 401 

Recreation: 

City of New Orleans P, ecreation Centers 
Stadium s 
Pools: 
Outdoor 
lndoor 
Tennis court locations 
Playgrounds 
Other unique sites (cultural activities) 
Acreage 
A ssociated agencies' acreage 
M unicipal golf com ses 
Budgeted positions 

Source: City Records. 
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35 m iles 
067 m iles 
355 m iles 
273 m iles 
29 m iles 

9 
7 

14 
3 
9 

124 
5 

425 
4,691 

7 
247 
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Deloitte & 
Touche 

Deloitte & "1" 
Suite 3700 
One Shell Square 
701 Poydras Street 
New Orleans, Louisiana 70139-3700 

2ITOR 

~04~b~1-2727 - 
504) 561-7293 

INDEPENDENT AUDITO RS' REPO RT O N COM PLIANCE AND O N INTi"RNAL CONTRO L 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT PERFORM ED IN 
ACCORDA NCE W ITH GO VERNM EN T A UDITING STANDARDS 

The Honorable M ayor and M embers of 
the City Council of the City of New Orleans, Louisiana 

W e have audited the general purpose financial statem ents of the City of New Orleans, Louisiana 
(the "City"), as of and for the year ended December 31, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated 
June 27, 2000. W e conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Com pliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City 's general purpose financial statements 
are frcc of m aterial m isstatem ent, we perform ed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grants, noneom pliance w flh which could have a direct and m aterial effect on 
the determ ination of general purpose financial statem ent am ounts. However, providing an opinion on 

compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be 
reported under Governmenl Auditing Standards. 

M atters involving com pliance with laws and regulations related to federal financial assistance are 
reported on by other auditors in separate reports on com pliance related to federal financial assistance 

program s. 

Internal Control O ver Financial Reporting 

In planning and perform ing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting 
in order to determ ine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the general 
purp ose financial statem ents and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. 
tlowcver, we noted certain m allets involving the internal control over financial reporting and its 
operation that we consider to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve m atters com ing to 
our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the desigu or operations of the internal control over 

financial reporting that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the City's ability to record, process, 
sum m arize and report financial data consistent with the assertions of m anagem ent in the general purpose 
financial statem ents. Reportable conditions are described in detail in the attached appendix. 

DeloitteTouche 
Tohmatsu 



A m aterial weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or m ore of the internal control 
com ponents does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that m isstatem ents in am ounts that would be 
m aterial in relation to the general purpose financial statem ents being audited m ay occur and not be 
detected within a tim ely period by employees in the norm al course of perform ing their assigned 
functions. O ur consideration of the intern al control over financial reporting w ould not necessarily 
disclose all m alters in the internal eontrol that m ight be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not 
neeessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be m aterial weakn esses. 
However, of the reportable conditions described in the attached appendix, we eonsider com m ent No. 00-1 
to be a m aterial weakn ess. 

W e also noled other m ailers involving tbe internal control over financial reporting that we have reporled 
to the m anagement of the City in a separate letter dated June 27, 2000. 

This report is intended solely for the inform ation and use of the Audit Com m ittee, m anagem ent, the state 
of Louisiana Legislative Auditor and officials of the applicable federal and state agencies and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties, 

t.~e 

June 27. 2000 
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CITY O F NEW  O RLEA NS 

A PPENDIX 

M ATERIAl. W EAK N ESS 

CO M M ENT 00-1 

FIX ED A SSET INV ENTORY 

Observation 

The City of New Orleans (the "City") has not performed an inventory of its significant fixed assets for a 
number of years to confirm additions and deletions. In the year ended December 31, 1998, the City attempted 
to im plem ent a new Fixed Asset M anagem ent System in AFIN Advantage 2.0. During the conversion from 
the previous fixed asset system to the new system , a com plete listing of prior assets owned, current year 
additions, and current year deletions were not added to this new system . This failure in the conversion 
process precluded the City from producing a complete listing of all assets owned as of December 31, 1999. 
W ithout an accurate detail of all fixed assets owned, the City has experienced difficulties relating to fixed 
asset m anagem ent, recording additions and disposals, and safeguarding its assets. 

This situation will becom e m ore critical due to the issuance of Governm ental Accounting Standards Board 

Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and 
Local Governments, which will require the addition of infrastructure capital assets including bridges and 
roads. The im plem entation of this statem ent will require the City to engage a specialist to determ ine these 
am ounts. This statem ent will be effective for the City in the fiscal year ending December 31,2002. 

Recom m endation 

The City should attempt to rectify all problem s with the conversion process im m ediately. A policy should be 
adopted to ensure that all significant fixed assets are counted on a periodic basis (i.e. all assets counted every 
three years). Since there has been a system conversion in the prior year, all assets should he counted during 
the initial year when im plem enting this procedure. Also, controls should be established to reconcile the 
system 's fixed asset amounts to a sub ledger that should detail each item by identifiable asset numbers on at 
least a quarterly basis. 

M ana~enaenl's Resuonse 

The City concurs with the recomm endation. In July 2000, after the 1999 audit has been completed, the City 
staff with assistance from a consultant will begin m anually updating the eurrent fixed asset data by adding the 
old data. 

The departm ental user personnel w ill be trained on both the fixed asset procedm es and the use of the fixed 
asset system . After the training, the departm ental personnel will be required to validate the data that is on file 
for their departm ents. 

The City will work with a consultant to develop policies and procedures to allow the City to become 
G A SB 34 com pliant. 
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Com pletion Date 

Decem ber 31,2000 

Contact 

W ayne DeLarge, Comptroner 
Ronnie Ravain, Purchasing A gent 
Earl J. Kilbride. M IS D irector 
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REPORTAI3LE CONDITIONS 

COM M ENT 00-2 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE DETAIL 

Observalion 

The City does not m aintain a complete detail of accounts payable in its Special Revenue, General and Capital 
Projects fund. As a result of this condition and our enhanced testing of accounts payable, an adjustment to 
increase accounts payable by approximately $1,400,000, $2,000,000 and $3,200,000 was proposed by us and 
recorded in the Grant Recipient Fund, General Fund, and the Capital Projects funds, respectively. 

Recom nrendaiion 

W e recomm end that the City develop and m aintain a detail of its accounts payable for all funds. Such a 
detail would minimize the potential for material adjustments to the general purpose financial statements, and 
if used properly, m ay assist in the m anagem ent of cash flow by aging the City's accounts payable to 
acceptable levels. Currently, such aging does not occur. 

M anaeem en['s Resl~onse 

W e disagree. The adjustment recorded by the auditor does not affect unreserved fund balance in our general 
accepted accounting principles statem ents, ltowever, we will attem pt to develop a detail listing of paym ents 
m ade subsequent to year end that relate to cmTent year encmnbrances in order to m aintain a detail listing of 
such accounts payable. 

Com plelion D ate 

December 31, 2000 

Contact 

W ayne D eLarge, Com ptroller 

CO M M ENT 00-3 

CA SH-BAN K RECON CILIATION S 

Observations 

The City did not perform reconciliations of cerlain of its bank accounts on a tim ely basis, and in the case of 
"zero" balance accounts, these reconciliations were not perform ed at all. Also, the City does not follow all of 
its accounting policies and procedures relating to cash. Finally, the process em ployed in reconciling bank 
accounts was not standardized, creating unnecessary inconsistencies in the form at of the bank 
reconciliations. 

Recom naend_aLl~  

"/'he City should begin following its existing policies and procedures relating to cash, or modify existing 
policies and procedures as necessary  especially as they relate to the reconciliations of all bank accounts. The 
City should consider m inim izing the number of cash deposit points am ong its various departm ents in order to 
reduce the nmnber of reconciliations required. This would also elim inate the delay between actual deposits 
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and recorded deposits, which occurs when a deposit is not physically made until after (or before) the deposit 
is recorded in GFS. Additionally, the City should standardize the process and form at of its bank 
reconciliations. 

/V1anaRem ent's ]~esDonse 

]'he City reconciles our bank accounts which are under the oversight of Treasury while Accounting balances 
what is processed in AFIN system . W e required additional staffi ng to complete reconciliation in a tim ely 
basis. W e will coordinate our efforts to improve this process and will review existing policies and 
procedures as they relate to the reconciliation of all bank accounts. 

Com pletion D ate 

Ongoing 

Contact 

Cynthia Foster, Treasurer 
W ayne DeLatge, Com ptroller 
Calvin Aguillard, Financial System Adm inistrator 

CO M M ENT 00-4 

RECONCILIATION OF DUE TO/DUE FROM  COM PON ENT UN ITS 

Observation 

During our testing of due to/due from com ponent units, we noted that there were num erous out of balance 
conditions between the City's financial statem ents and various component units. The City is not fonowing 
its own guidelines that were established in January 1998 that required quarterly reconciliation of the due 
to/due from balances with com ponent units. 

Recom m endation 

Accounting personnel should begin to follow the City's policy to reconcile these balances on a quarterly 
basis. ]'here also should be a procedure where a due to/due from m atrix is prepared by accounting personnel 
that would provide a detail of each com ponent unit balance and the related City's balance. This m atrix 
should be reviewed by the comptroller on a quarterly basis and any differences should be resolved 
immediately. 

M anaeem enl's ]~.esnonse 

W e concur that quarterly reconciliation m ust be provided for the due to/from balances with com ponent units 

Com pletion ])ate 

Decem ber 31,2000 

Contact 

W ayne DeL~rge, Com ptroller 
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Deloitte & 
Touche 

June 27. 2000 

The tlonorable M ayor and M embers 
of the City Council of the City of New Orleans 

D ear M ayor and M em bers of the City Counc 

REC, I:IVE(:I 
LEG E L/,;Tv'F_/:,LIr!ITOR 

.e,o,.o ~ T.,uo.e LL. ,o,o'.hono~ 041 581-27~7 
Suite 3700 Fac,~;im ile: (504) 561-7293 
One Shell Square 
701 Poydras Street 
New Orleans, Louisiana 70139 3700 

In planning and performing our audit of the general purpose financial statements of the City of New 
Orleans, Louisiana (the "City") for the year ended December 31, 1999 (on which we have issued our 
report dated June 27, 2000), we developed the following recommendations concerning certain matters 
related to its intern al control and certain observations and recom m endations on other accounting

, 

adm inistrative, and operating m atters. A description of the responsibility of m anagem ent for establishing 
and maintaining internal control, and of the objectives of and inherent limitations of internal control is set 
forth in the attached Appendix, together with a corrective action plan, and should be read in conjunction 
w ith this letter. O ur com m ents are presented in Exhibit I and are listed in the table of contents thereto. 

See also "Status of the 1998 Recom m endations" on pages 15 through 17. 

W e will be pleased to discuss these comm ents with you and, if desired, to assist you in im plem enting any 
of the suggestions. 

This report is in tended solely for the infonnalion and use of the Audit Com m ittee
, nranagem ent, the state 

of Louisiana Legislative Auditor, and officials of applicable federal and state agencies and is not intended 
to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

DeloitteTouche 
Tohmatsu 
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EX H IBIT I 

INTERNAL CONTROL STRUCTURE 

GENEIL, kL AND POLICE LITIGATION RESERVES 

Observation 

The City m aintains a database of open claim information for its general and police litigation reserves. For 
many of the open claims, information is missing for one or more of the data items (e.g., date of occurrence) 
It does not appear thai the City's personnel is fam iliar with operating the database. "Ihis situation results in 
errors when supplying inform ation to third parties. 

The data that lhe City com piles and provides to lhe actuaries for its police and general litigation claim s is 
insufficient and incomplete to perform an actuarial analysis based on appropriate actuarial m ethods and 
reasonable assum ptions; rather, the estim ate of reserves is based on extrem ely lim ited data and inform ation 

Recom m endation 

W e recom m end thai the City m aintain an updated database that is review ed for accuracy on a periodic basis 
Also, the City should provide additional training for its personnel in order to accurately update this database 
and a review process should be established when providing third parties with requested inform ation. 

M anal!enlent~s Response 

W e concur with auditor's recom m endations and we will proceed with developing m ethod of getting 
inform ation through a cooperative endeavor w ith outside auditors and consultants. 

Completion Dale 

M arch 2001 

Contact 

M avis Early, Cib, Attorn ey 

W ORKERS' COM I)EN SAT1ON RESERVES 

Observation 

The City's third party claim s adm inistrator inform ed us that individual claim files do not contain case reserve 
inform ation. This is contrary to standard industry practice. Although case reserv e infonnation is included in 
the com puter system in total, there is no docum entation or audit trail supporting any changes in case reserves 
W e did not, therefore, use the incurred loss data. 

Recom m endation 

W e recom m end thal the City develop and m aintain a database thai captures historical cunm lative incurred 

losses, paid losses, and open and closed claim count information by date of injury. Building a history of the 
City's cum ulative losses at annual valuation dates grouped by accident year will enable users of the data to 
determ ine whether changes in reserve requirem ents are due to increases/decreases in estim ated losses for 



previously reported claim s or increases/decreases in current period occurrences. ]'his database will also 
allow the City to analyze the trends in loss frequency or severity. 

M ana~em ent's Resnonse 

W e concur with auditor's recom m endations and we are proceeding with m eeting w ith the auditor and 
consultants to develop the databases as required. 

Com pletion Date 

Decem ber 31, 2000 

Contact 

M avis Early, C, ity Attorney 

ENCUM BRANCES 

Observation 

It appears that many encumbrances in the capital projects fund are several years old. As projects are 
constructed, a decrease in the originally encumbered balance would be expected; however, m any old 
encumbcred balances had no activity in 1999 and remain outstanding at year end. It also appears that the 
"eloseout" procedures that were established in the current year were not implem ented by accounting 
personnel. 

Reconnnendation 

A dctailed review of outstanding encumbrances should be perform ed at the end of each fiscal year. 
Encumbrances should not be allowed to rem ain a part of the reserved fund balance if it does not appear likely 
that the expcnditure will be m ade. 

M anaeenaent's Reslm nse 

W e concm w ith auditor's recom m endation. W e will review guidelines and procedures for closeout of capita 

projects. 

Com l~letion D ale 

M arch 30, 2000 

Contact 

Knox Tumlin, Capital Projects Administrator 
Calvin Aguillard, Financial System s Adm inistrator 
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ACCOUNTING FOR GENERAL LONG-TERM  DEBT 

Observation 

The City has sew:ral outstanding debt issues. The City has not implem ented the m odule available in the GFS 
system relating to the general long-term debt account group fund in the general ledger system and does not 
m aintain am ortization schedules for long-tem a deht. Debt schedules prepared during the year were not 
detailed enough to aid in the preparation of the financial statem ents or the related long-term debt footnotes. 
M anual recordkeeping related to debt issues could result in accounting errors or delays in the reporting 
process. The City could not provide a summ ary schedule of all debt outstanding that should be included in 
the general long-term debt account group fund as of December 31, 1999. 

.R.ecom m cndation 

The Cily should maintain debt am ortization schedules and should implement the GFS module or obtain other 
suitable software that would allow the City to properly record all debt outstanding in the general ledger 
system . This will assist the City in the budget preparation and financial reporting process as well as allow the 
City to evaluate its debt position. 

M anaeem ent's Resnonse 

W e agree with the observation and recomm endation; however, the m odule offered by AM S does not fulfil 
our requirements. The Finance Departm ent will work with M IS to obtain software which will provide this 
data. 

Completion Date 

D ecem ber 31,2000 

Conlact 

Cynthia l]. Foster, Treasurer 

STAG ING LIBRA RY 

Observation 

Currently, there is no secure staging library to prevent program m ers from m odifying, program code between 
the tim e it is approved and the tim e it is m oved into production. Unapproved/unauthorized changes to City 
program s could be m ade without detection which could effect the processing integrity, and thus, reliability of 
City inform ation. 

All completed or m odified programs must be tested and then approved prior to mow:m ent into production 
ltowever, the program is not secure from further m odification by the program m er while it is waiting to be 
approved and m oved to production. Any unauthorized changes, unintentional or intentional, m ay not be 
detected. 

Recom m endation 

A secure staging library  should be developed, and all testing and approvals should be done from tlfis library. 
The staging library should not allow programm ers to have update capabilities. This procedure would prevent 
further m odification to program s after they have been tested and approved. 
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M anal~em ent's Resnonse 

W ork on the actual implem entation of a staging library for transitioning program s from test to production 
which had begun was placed on hold to complete the activities and effort surrounding the Year 2000 updates 
This project will be resumed in 2000 and should be complete by year's end. 

.Com pletion Date 

December 31,2000 

Contact 

Earl J. Kilbridc. M IS Director 

DIAL-IN ACCESS 

Observ ation 

1"he City does not monitor dial-in access activity. Additionally, there is extensive us(: of PC anywhere and 
sim ilar utilities at the City. This could result in failure to detect unauthorized system activities from externa 
sources which could affect the confidentiality and reliability of system inform ation and the system itself. 

The use of dial-in access has significantly increased during the past few years. Also, a number of Local Area 
Networks of olher departm ents dial-in to the City's internal netw ork to exchange inform ation. Currently, 
there does not appear to be appropriate controls surrounding dial-in access. There is no nronitoring ofdiaM n 
users nor other stronger authentication features like dial-back being utilized. Lack of appropriate controls in 
this area could lead to unauthorized access to City's systems not being detected or reasonably prevented from 
ex [erllal sourcc~s. 

p, eeommendation 

M anagem ent should include the daily review of dial-in access to the m onitoring procedures which are 
currenlly perform ed. Additionally, the City should regulate and adm inister the use of all m odem connections 
to networked PCs. 

M anaecm enl's Resnonse 

The City has reduced the number of persons who are gaining access to its network/system s using 
PCAnywhere type software. Persons who have a need for offsite access and have been authorized are given a 
private network account through a local provider. These accounts m ust authenticate upon connection. The 
City is in the process of installing AD SL lines in m ost if not all of the locations which needed to gain access 
remotely. This project should be completed by the end of the year and will greatly reduce', the dial-in access. 

At all tim es, those gaining access to the m ainfiam e directly from an SAA server connection. They are only 
allowed access to the mainframe. Once they have attached to the server with a user name, they are subject to 
the security prolection offered by Computer Associates' "Fop secret software, which protects all of the 
production applications and data sets. 

Reports are available from our firewall software. M IS will begin generating reports that show all the 
unsuccessful attem pts at gaining access to our system s. 
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Completion Data 

Ongoing 

Contact 

Ear] J. Ki]bride, M IS D irector 

INFORM ATION SECURITY POLICY 

Observation 

During our review of information security practices, we noted that user IDs for term inated or transferred 
employees are not promptly revoked. There is no m echanism or procedure by which these IDs in need of 
revocation are com m unicated to the M IS departm ent. 

Non-adherence to prescribed inform ation security standards and procedures increases the risk of loss or 
com prom ise of production data and m isuse of company resources. Active user accounts for term inated or 
transferred employees pose an unnecessary risk. 

Recom m endalion 

W e recommend the City take m easures to develop and implement a means of insuring that all active user lDs 
are for current employees, and that the perm issions for those IDs accurately reflect the individuals current 
access needs. 

M am n,em ent's Response 

W e agree w ith this recom m endation. W ith the im plem entation of the new llum an Resource system in April 
of 1999, M IS w ill be able to generate a regular report that w ill identify to the M IS security offi cer those City 
employees who have terminated and/or transferred. 

Com pletion D ate 

Ongoing 

Contact 

Earl J. Kilbride, M IS Director 
John Evans, M IS Security 

SOFTW ARE LICENSE COM PLIANCE 

Observation 

W hile the City's policy states that insuring proper software license compliance is the responsibility of the 
users, there is no consistent m eans of m onitoring for the use of unlicensed software. 

Federal authorities interpret the use of unlicensed softw are as unauthorized use of intellectual property and 
infringement of copyright protection laws. Offenders (both employers and their employees) may be subject 
to significant civil and criminal penalties, including fines, jail sentence and property forfeiture. 

- 5 - 



Recom m endation 

To help manage this risk, we recommend that m anagement implement additional procedures to control the 
use of copyrighted software, including: 

~ The authorization of periodic audits of installed software to help ensure com pliance with such policy; 
and 

~ Institute the centralized filing of software to ensure availability of licenses in the event of an outside 
audit. 

M anaeem enl's Resnonse 

M IS will work with the Chief Adm inistrative Offi ce to add the authorization of periodic audits to the current 
policy. M 1S v, ill then begin those audits. 

Review of the recom m endation to centralize the filing of software will be conducted to detern fine the best 
way to accomplish such a task. 

Com pletion I)ale 

Ongoing 

Contact 

Earl J. Kilbride. M IS Director 

INTERN ET CON N F~CTION 

Observation 

The City has im plem ented an lnternet connection, and has begun utilizing the connection in a lim ited 
capacity, with intentions to expand this use. Only users with Chief Administrative Offi cer authorization m ay 
use this resource. The risk of creating an Internet connection could result in external attacks, release of 
confidential information, and destruction of system s. 'll~e inform ation security policies have not been 
updated to reflect this expansion. 

The City has plans to expand its presence on the lntern et and allow system access via that path. Allowing 
access to the lnternet without establishing an Internet Security and Usage Policy could result in usage not 
consistent w ith the City's expectations. The security policy should address key issues related to how the City 
will ensure its risk and exposure are minim ized. W e would expect an Internet Security and Usage Policy to 
document the business purposes for the lntem et and overall strategy for minimizing risks and exposures to 
the Internet. This strategy would guide the procedures, such as "access and use" that users follow to help 
ensure consistent usage and risk m itigation. 

Recom m endation 

The City should define its Internet security strategy that defines the ]nternet services the City will utilize and 
how its Internet network w ill be protected. D eveloping policies and procedures to ensure that the Internet's 
design, configuration, technology and adm inistration w ill protect the City's intern al networks. A s the City's 
internal netwolk, extern al connections and lntern et usage changes, these policies and procedures should be 
reviewed and m odified. 
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M ana~em ent's ]',es~onse 

The City agrees with this recom mendation. Although many of the issues addressed in the Observation and 
Recomm endation have been actually implem ented, fl~e City's computer security policy has not been updated 
to reflect those strategies. M IS will work with the Chief Administralive Office to m odify the procedures 
currently in place to cover the Inter'net Security and Usage. 

Com pletion Date 

Ongoing 

Contact 

Earl J. K ilbride./v/IS D irector 

- 7 - 



A CCO UN TIN G , AI)M INISTRA TIVE AND O PERA TING M ATTER S 

FIN AN CE D EPARTM  ENT STAFFING 

Observation 

The staffi ng level and workload distribution for the Finance Departm ent have not been system atically 
evaluated for several years despite growth in City operations and com plex changes in financial reporting 
Failure to evaluate staffing and workloads can result in an ineffi cient use of City personnel resources. 

Recom m endation 

Reevaluate workloads and staffi ng levels in the Finance Departm ent to ensure that the processing of City 
financial information continues to be handled in the most effective and efficient manner possible. 

M anaffem ent's Nesnonge 

W e concur with auditor's finding. In June 2000, the City Council approved a revised pay plan for positions 
w ithin the Finance Departm ent. W e are currently reviewing staffing and workload distribution of every 
bureau. In conjunction with Civil Service we are developing a recruitment plan to provide effective staffing 
in the Finance D epartm ent. Please note that any staffing enhancem ent m ust be approved by the City Counci 
Chief Adm inistrative Office. and Civil Service. 

Com pletion D ate 

O ngoing 

Contact 

M arlin N . Gusm an, Chief Adm inistrative Offi cer 
M arina M . Kahn, D irector of Finance 

FUND BALAN CE OF Tills G ENERA L FUN D 

Observation 

Over the last several years, the City has appropriated portions of its prior year fund balance in its general fund 
in order to m eet increasing expenditure requirem ents. For each of the past two years, expenditures in the 
general fund have exceeded revenues. If these appropriations continue at flae sam e rate as the past three years 
and if additional revenue sources do not m aterialize, the City's general fund could be: in a deficit position on a 
budgetary basis in the near future. 

Recom m endation 

M any nm nicipalities establish m inim um levels of fund balance beyond which lcvels they will not exceed 
except in unusual or extraordinary  circum stances. W e recom m end that the City establish for budgeting 
purposes a m inim um level of fund balance. 
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M anacem ent's ResDonse 

The Chief Adm inistrative Offi ce will develop a policy and establish param eters for the requirement of a 
m inim um level of fund balances. This policy would be agreed upon by both the adm inistrative and legislative 
branches of government. 

Com pletion1 Date 

Ongoing 

Conlact 

M arlin N . Gusm an, Chief Adm inistrative Offi cer 

INTERNAl, AUI)IT FUNCT1ON 

Observation 

Currently, the City's intern al audit function is lim ited in the scope and breadth of its activities due to 
insufficient size and staffi ng levels of its staff. The size and complexity of City operations warrants the 
allocation of additional, qualified personnel to perform internal audit activities on an ongoing basis. The 
internal audit function is an im portant elem ent in providing assurance to the City that its internal control 
structure is adequate and functioning properly. The lack of significant ongoing internal audit activities m ay 
expose the City to an undue level of risk of loss of financial resources, instances of noncompliance or other 
control risks. The following is a suggested list of areas in which an internal auditor could add significant 
value to the City: 

~ Intern al control reviews 

~ Independent audits of various accounts and financial activity 

~ Federal program com pliance review s 

~ Accounting policy com pliance reviews 

~ Additional operational reviews and special projects 

Due to the existing staffing level and workload of the Internal Audit departm ent, internal audit activities are 
not being perform ed on a regular basis. As a result, the City m ust place greater reliance on its system s of 
internal control and the annual extern al audit to provide assurance relating to its financial statem ents and 
control system s. "ltm City also cannot proactively perform audits to isolate problem areas or identify areas of 
weakness which m ay exist. 

Recom m end_ alton 

Consider expanding the size and staffi ng levels of the Intern al Audit department. Altern atively, the City 
should consider outsourcing that function by hiring outside consultants to aid the City in perform ing internal 
audit activities. The duties and responsibilities should be set forth in order to address the areas suggested 
above. 
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M anagem enl'A __Response 

W e concur and have proceeded to enhance our internal audit departm ent through outsourcing these services 

Currently various consultants are providing this fnncfion. 

Conrplelio n DaLe 

Ongoing 

Contac.t 

M arlin N. Gusman, Chief Administrative Officer 

I~INAN CIAL STATEM ENT PREPARATION 

Observation 

At fiscal year-end, the Accounting departm ent personnel prepare trial balances for all funds of the City to 
prepare the annual financial report, Accounting departm ent personnel spend a significant am ount of lim e 
preparing year end trial balances in a personal computer-based spreadsheet program . The City's general 
ledger software does not currently prepare the reports needed by the Accounting department for the creation 
of the annual financial report. M anually reentering the data is ineffi cient and increases the potential for error 

in creating the annual financial report. 

Recom m en._ ._  d a_ t_i~n 

Explore altern atives to m anually reentering information that is already m aintained in an electronic form at. 

These alternalivcs could include: 

Developm ent of autom ated reports that m eet the Accounting departm ent's needs 
Establishing a responsibility and a time frame for testing the system 's ability to download data to a 
personal computer-based spreadsheet template that m eets the accounting department's needs. 

W e concur with the recommendation in general; however, the utilization of a special data sheet did not cause 
problem s or delays. W e will coordinate development of automated reports with M IS and AM S. 

Completion 1).aLe. 

M arch 31,2001 

Contacl 

W ayne I)eLarge, Com ptroller 
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NEW  REPORTING M ODEL 

Observation 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") has adopted new requirements for annual 
financial statem ents of stale and local govern m ents. GA SB Statem ent N o. 34 "Basic Financial Statem ents 
and M anagem ent's D iscussion and Analysis for State and Local Governm ents" w ill significantly change the 
way govern m ents report their finances to the public. The financial reports prepared under the new system 

will not only improve information provided for major funds, but, most importantly will provide financial 
inform ation from a total govern m ent prospective. Under GASB Statem ent No. 34, the City will be required 
to provide: (1) a financial manager's analysis discussing the City's overall financial position and results of 
the previous ye, ar's operations, (2) a statement of net assets and a statement of activities disclosing all of its 
assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses, (3) disaggregated information about the most important or major 
funds, including the general fund, and (4) a supplementary schedule comparing original, final, and actual 
inform ation on the budgetary basis for the City's general fund and major special revenue funds. Th e new 
GASB statem ent will becom e effective for the City in the fiscal year ending after December 31,2002. 

Recom m endation 

In order to aw )id delays in issuing Com prehensive Annual Financial Reports under flae new reporting m odel, 
the City should begin the process of review ing the new G A SB statem ent and forming a plan to im plem ent the 
required revisions to the financial statem ents. Also, as part of this plan, the City should begin to gathcr any 
additional information that will be required under GASB Statement No. 34, such as the historical cost of 
infrastructure. Finally, the City should begin assessing the cost to implem ent the new statem ent in order for 
these am ounts to be included in future budgets. 

M anaecm ent's Resnonse 

W e concur with the auditor's recom m endation. W e will begin in July 2000 to coordinate this effort with the 
City Council, Chief Adm inistrative Office, Finance Departm ent and external auditors. 

Com pletion Date 

Ongoing 

Contact 

M arina M . K ahn. D irector of Finance 

BU SYN ESS CON TINUITY PLAN 

Observalion 

Critical business processing functions may not be recovered in the event of major damage or inaccessibility 
of key company facilities. 

Currently, the City of New Orleans lacks a "Business Continuity Plan." A Business Continuity Plan (BCP) 
contains the necessary  an'angem ents to perform key business functions in the event of a disaster. A plan 
would help rcduce the financial costs and the tim e necessary to replace key processing components after a 
disaster. The first step in completing a BCP involves a Business hnpact Analysis (B1A) to identify key 
business processes, their criticality to the organization, lhe im pact of not providing those processcs, potentia 
threats, and the likelihood of occurrence to the organization. The plan would be developed from an overall 



business perspective and would identify all business processes; however, the plan would only address those 
business processes deem ed critical. 

Reeommendaiion 

W e recomm end tile developm ent of a comprehensive, business-driven disaster recovery program , which not 
only concerns the recovery of data processing, but also puts heavy emphasis on preventing such disruptions 
and covers all critical business resources (e.g., work site, facilities, human resources, and technology, and 
business process activities). Prosperity should first perform a BIA, which will drive the recovery strategy. 
Based on this analysis, a BCP should be prepared and its effectiveness tested on a periodic basis to ensure 
continued existence of the organization in the event of a disaster. 

A BCP should include, but not be lim ited to 

The identification of key autom ated business processes required to continue when a disaster is declared 
Declaration procedures and respective roles and responsibilities. 
Escalation procedures. 
Interinr m anual procedures and com m unications. 
The specific arrangem ents to recover those key processes identified, including personnel, facilities, 
telecom nm nications, supplies and equipm ent. 
A process to identify changes within the organization and m ake updates to help ensure that the plan 
rem ains current. 
Periodic testing, where feasible and cost effective, to help ensure that the plan is operational. 

M ana~em ent's Resnonse 

The Chief Adrninistrafive Offi ce will prepare a Policy M emorandum requiring each department to develop a 
business continuity plan in the event of a disaster. 

Additionally, M IS has begun conversations with Corn DISCC to look into developing a full disaster recovery 
plan and process that will be a part of the City disaster recovery  plan. 

Com pletion I)ale 

D ecem ber 31,2000 

Contact 

M arlin N . Gusm an. Chief Adm inistrative Offi cer 

CAPITALIZATION POLICY 

.Observation 

The City currently has a policy to capitalize all expenditures for m oveable fixed assets that exceed $500 and a 
useful life greater than one year. This can result in significant expenditures of tim e and effort to account for 
low dollar value and/or short-lived assets. OM B Circular A-87 has recently been am ended to allow a 
capitalization floor of $5,000. 

- 12 - 



The City's capitalization policy should be reviewed to determine the cost/benefit of recording fixed assets 
with low dollar values or short life spans. Additionally, because of the change in OM B Circular A-87, an 
increased capitalization floor could result in additional grant reimbursem ents as item s which were considered 
capital under the old policy would be considered reimbursable under the new policy ~s supplies and could be 
funded more readily from federal funds. The City should consider increasing the limit to $5,000. 
Additionally, consider maintaining subsidiary records for those controllable assets whose value falls below 
the threshold. 

M zna~em enl's Resnonse 

W e agree w ith auditor recom m endation. The City's capitalization will be reduced to conform to OM B 
Circular A -87. 

Com pletion I)ale 

D ecem ber 31, 2000 

Contact 

W ayne DcLarge, Comptroller 

TRU ST FUND S 

_Observation 

D uring our audit of expendable and nonexpendable trust thnds, we noted that none of these trust funds were 
docum ented by form al legal trusts that could be located. A dditionally, the follow ing funds have had no 
activity recorded for m any years even though m any require annual expenditures to be m ade for specified 
purposes and have assets rem aining in the funds: 

a. lsaac D clgado M em orial 

This fired was established for the use and benefit of the lsaae Delgado Trade School (currently 
Delgado Community College). 

b. John M cDonongh School 

This fund was established for the support of public schools 

c. Lafayetle Cem etery #1 Under W ill of lAlly Violet 

The ordinance under which the fund, Lafayette Cemetery #1 Under W ill of Lilly Violet, was 
established requires the City to carry out the term s of the bequest, which states that the incom e be 
spent for the perpetual care and m aintenance and repairs of the fam ily tomb in Lafayette Cem etery #1 
and placing flowers thereon three tim es a year. 

d. M ahalia Zim m erm an Tomb 

This fired was established according to the terms of the will of M rs. M ahalia Zimmerm an for the care 
mad im provem ent of her tomb and grounds in W ashington Cem etery. 

- 13 - 



e. M rs. Otto Joachim  

This fund was established according to the term s of the will of M rs. Otto Joachim to perpetuate a 
subscription of National Geographic M agazine for the New Orleans Public Library. 

f. Place deFrance - Joan of Arc 

g. Sickles Legacy 

The Sickles Legacy Fund was established by the bequest of M r. Sim on Van Antwerp Sickles, in 
which lie bequeathed to the City of New Orleans a portion of his estate to establish a City Dispensary 
for gratuitous dispensing of m edieine and m edical advice to the poor of the City. 

h. Helen A dler Levy Library 

This fired was authorized to establish and m aintain the H elen Adler Levy M em orial Room at the Nc~ 
Orleans Public Library. 

Kiwanis Club Lee Circle Sprinkler System 

The K iwanis Club Lee Circle Sprinkler System Fund was established in ! 977 by a donation of $4,200 
by the Kiwanis Club to install a Subten'anean Lawn Sprinkler System at Lee Circle. 

Ella W est Freeman Foundation 

This fund was established for the purpose of producing copies of the M asonry M aintenance 
Guidelines M anual to be used by the Vieux Carte Comm ission. 

Recom nlendation 

W e recom m end that additional research of these trust funds be perform ed to determ ine the legal status and 
necessity of m aintaining these funds in trust for others. Additionally, the City should implement a system for 
detennining whether the requirem ents of each of these trusts are being m et, and the l:toard of City ]'rusts 
should become more involved in monitoring the activities of those funds which fall under its jurisdiction. 

M anaeem ent's Resnonse 

]he Law Dcpanm ent is currently reviewing the terms of these trust fund requirem ents and is reevaluating 
each as to activities and performance of trusts. Additionally, the Board of City Trusts will annually review 
said funds. 

Com pletion D_ _ajk~ 

Ongoing 

Contact 

M avis Early, ('it), Attorney 
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STATUS OF THE 1998 RECOM M ENDATIONS 

The following is a summ ary of the 1998 recomm endations from our report dated June 25, 1999 and the status 
of implementation thereof: 

M anagem ent should develop a database 
of current and historical general and 
police reserves and workers' 
com pensation reserves. 

Investigate why m edical losses are 
greater than indem nity losses as this 
distribution is opposite of what typically 
occurs in the industry. 

All original property docum ents 
m aintained by the City should be safe- 
guarded in fire proof cabinets. 

Identify and sell non-productive assets 
and use the cash generated to finance 
other uses 

~ A dopt a policy to ensure that all fixed 
assets are counted on a periodic basis 

A detailed review of outstanding 
encumbrances should be performed at 
the end of each fiscal year. 

Accounting personnel with the City 
should contact the appropriate personnel 
at each respective com ponent unit 
periodically in order to reconcile the 
due to/due fiom balances. 

The intern al audit departm ent should 
consider periodically perform ing 
smprise paycheck distributions at the 
various City departm ents, requiring 
proper identification of em ployees. 

M aintain debt amortization schedules 
and implem ent the GFS m odule relating 
to the general long-term debt account 
group in the general ledger system . 

Partially N ot 
/__mplemented Implemented J_~_plemented 
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A periodic: review of access applications 
should be performed. 

A secure staging library should be 
developed. 

Publish form al program change 
standards. 

Develop procedures to have program 
changes tested by users and are 
approved by users. 

M anagem enl should include the daffy 
review of dial-in activity to the 
m onitoring, procedures which are 
currently perform ed. 

Enhance the developed inform ation 
security policy based on its security 
strategy. "/'his inform ation security 
policy should be reviewed annually by 
m anagem ent and updated to reflect 
changes in the C ity's com puter 
environm ent. "/'he updated policy 
should be distributed to all current 
employees lo increase their inform ation 
security aw areness. 

lmplem enl additional procedures to 
control the use of copyrighted softw are 
including the authorization of periodic 
audits of installed software and 
centralized filing of softw are 

Reevaluate workloads and staffi ng 
levels in the Finance Departm enl. 

M any m unicipalities establish m inimum 
levels of fund balance beyond which 
levels they wifI not exceed except in 
unusual or extraordinary  circum stances. 
The City should establish for budgeting 
puq~oses a m inim um level of fund 
balance. 

Partially N ot 
Implem ented lmplem en_ted ~ ented 

X 

X 
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Consider expanding the size and 
staffi ng levels of the internal audit 
departm ent. 

Explore alternative to m anually 
reenterin~ inform ation that is already 
m aintained ill electronic form at. 

Begin the processing of assessing its 
records regalding the historical cost of 
infiastructure. 

Review the capitalization policy to 
determ ine the cost/benefit of recording 
fixed assets w ith low dollar values or 
short life spans. 

A Disaster Recovery Plan needs to be 
developed, docum ented and tested. 

Additional research of certain trust 
funds should be perform ed to determ ine 
their legal status and whether the 
requirem ents of each of these funds are 
being m et. 

The City should exercise additional 
oversight of com ponent units to ensure 
that their financial reports will be 
received in a tim ely m anner. 

The City should consider developing a 
form al long-term fiscal plan. 

Partially N ot 
I__mplem ented Im plem ented Im plem ented 
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APPENDIX 

MANAGEM ENT'S RESPO NSIBILITY FOR, AND THE O BJECTIVES AND LIM ITATIO NS O F, THE 
INTERNAL CO NTRO L 

The following comments concerning management's responsibility for internal control and the objectives of 
and the inherent lim itations in the intern al control structure are adapted from the Statem ents on Auditing 
Standards of the Am erican Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 

M anaeem ent's P.e~t~onsibilitv 

M anagem ent is responsible for establishing and m aintaining intern al control. In fulfilling this responsibility 

estimates and judgments by management are required to assess the expected benefits and related costs of 
controls. 

Obiectives 

The objectives of internal control are to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that 
assets are safe~,uarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and that transactions are executed in 
accordance with m anagem ent's authorization and recorded properly to perm it the preparation of financial 
statem ents in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Am erica. 

Lim itations 

Because of inherent lim itations in any intern al control structure, m isstatem ents due to error or fraud m ay 

occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation of internal control to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the intern al control m ay becom e inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the 
degree of com pliance w ith the policies and procedures m ay deteriorate. 
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CITY O F N EW  O RL EA N S 
TA BLE O F C O N TEN TS 

INDEPENDEN T A UDITOR S' REPORT ON TH E SCH ED ULE 
O F EX PEN D ITURES OF FED ERA l. A W A RD S 

SCH EDULE OF EX PEN DITURES OF 
FED ERA l. A W A RD S 

N OTES TO THE SCH EDULE OF 
EX PEN D ITIJRES OF FED ERAL A W A RD S 

INDEPENDEN T A UDITORS' REPORT ON COM PLIAN CE AN D 
ON IN TERN A L CON TROL OV ER FIN AN CIA L REPO RTIN G 
BA SED ON AN AUDYI" OF FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
PERFO RM ED IN A CCO RD A N CE W ITH G OV ERN M EN T 
A U D ITIN G STA N D A RD S 

IN D EPEN D EN T A U D ITO R S' RE PORT ON CO M PLIAN CE W ITH 

REQUIREM t~NTS APPLICABLE TO EACH M AJOR PROGRAM  
A N D IN TERN A l. CON TRO L O V ER COM PLIAN CE IN 
A CCORI)AN CE W lTIt OM B CIRCULAR A-133 

SCIIEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
Schedule I - Sum m ary of the Independent A uditors' Results 
Schedule II - Financial Statem ent Findings for the 

Year Ended D ecem ber 31, 1999 

Schedule 111 -- Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
for the Y ear Ended D ecem ber 31, 1999 .. 

CURR EN T STA TU S OF OTHER AUDITS 
PERFORM F.I) BY FEDERA L A UDITORS 

CURREN T STATUS OF OTHER A UDITS PERFORM ED BY 
O TH ER IN I)EPEN I)EN T AU DITO R S 

SUM M A RY OF' OTI IER IN DEPENDEN T A CCOUN TAN TS 
FISCA L A N D PRO GRA M M A TIC M ON ITORIN G O F TH E 

CITY OF N EW  ORLEAN S' SUB-RECIPIEN TS 

EX IT CON FEREN CE 

.PA G E 

25 

28 

32 

34 

36 

72 

7g 

79 
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:;ER11FIE D PUBLIC ACC O UNIAN"S 

INDEPENDENT AUDITO R S' R EPO RT O N TH E 
SC ltED U LE O F EX PEN D IT U R E S O F FED ERA L A W A R D S 

To the M em bers of the 
City Council and the 
ltonorable M arc It. M orial, M ayor 
City of N ew Orleans, Louisiana 

W e have audited tile Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards of the City of New Orleans, 
l,ouisiana, for the year ended D ecem ber 31, 1999. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal 
Aw ards is the responsibility of the m anagem ent of the City of N ew Orleans. Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal A w ards based on our audit. 
The accom panying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal A w ards is not a part of the City of N ew  
O rleans' general purpose financial statem ents for the year ended D ecem ber 31, 1999. The 

general purpose financial statem ents were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has 
been furnished to us. 

W e conducted our audit in accordance w ith generally accepted auditing standards, G overnm ent 
Auditing Standards issued by the Com ptroller General of the United States, and the provisions 
of O ffice of M anagem ent and Budget C'ircular A - 133 A udits of States, I ,ocal Governm ents and 
N on-Profit O rganizations. Those standards and the provisions of O M B Circular A -133 require 
that w e plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about w hether the Schedule 
of Expenditures of Federal Aw ards is free of m aterial m isstatem ent. A n audit includes 
exam ining, on a lest basis, evidence supporting the am ounts and disclosures in the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Aw ards. A n audit also includes assessing the accounting principles 
used and significant estim ates m ade by m anagem ent, as well as cvahmting the overall 
presentation of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Aw ards. W e believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
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INDEPEN D EN T A UD ITO R S' R EPO R T O N TH E 
SC H ED U LE O F FEDERA L FINA N C IA L A SSISTA N CE 

To the M em bers of the 
City Council and the 
Honorable M arc H . M orial, M ayor 
City of N ew Orlean s, Louisiana 
/'age 2 

(CONTINUED) 

In our opinion, the accom panying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal A wards of the City of 
N ew Orleans presents fairly in all m aterial respects, the expenditures of federal awards of all 
federal prograrns for the year ended D ecem ber 31, 1999, in conform ity w ith generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

A s further discussed in N otes 4, 5 and g, the City of N ew O rleans has been requested by federal 
agencies to rem it funds for ineligible and disallow ed costs, and has failed to com ply w ith certain 
contractual an d program m atic requirem ents w ith regard to its federal awards program s during 
the year ended D ecem ber 31, 1999 and in previous years. The determ inafion of w hether the 
identified instances of noncom pliance w ill ultim ately result in a disallow ance of costs cannot be 
presently determ ined. Accordingly, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Aw ards does not 
include any adjustments for those matters. 

In accordance w ith Governm ent A uditing Standards, w e have also issued a report dated June 23
, 

2000 on our consideration of the City of N ew Orleans intern al control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its com pliance w ith cel/ain provisions of law s, regulations, contracts and 
grants. 

BRU NO &  TERVA LO N 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC A CCO UN TA NTS 

June 23, 2000 

]l~rtlllO cE [~1 IF rid PU[}LIC ACCOUNTANTS 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 

CITY O F NE W  O RLEAN S 
N O TES TO TH E SCH EDULE O F EXPEND ITURES O F FEDERAL AW A RDS 

FO R THE YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31, 1999 

N O TE 1 - BACK G RO UND : 

N O TE 2 - 

The City of New Orleans, Louisiana, (the C~ty) was 
incorporated in 1805 . The City 's system of government is 
established by its Home Rule Charter which became 
effective in 1954 . The City operates under a Mayor- 
Council form of government . The City provides the 
following types of services as authorized by its charter : 
pub lic health and safety , streets , san itation , water and 
sewerage , planning and zoning , recreation , and general 
administrative service . Education and welfare are 
administered by other governmental entities . 

The accomp any ing Schedule of Exp enditures of Federa l 
Awards presents the activity of all Federal award 
programs of the City that were received directly from 
Federal agencies or passed through other governmental 
agencies . 

The City has prepared this Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards to comply with the provisions of Office of 
Management and Budget Circular A -133, Audits of States, 
Local Governments, and Non --Profit Organizations . OMB 
C:ircular A -133 stipulates that a Schedule of Expenditures 
of Federal Awards be prepared showing total expenditures 
for each federal awards program as identified in the 
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance and for other 
federal financial awards that have not been assigned a 
catalog number . 
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CITY O F N EW  O RLEAN S 
NO TES TO TH E SCH EDU LE O F EXPEND ITURES O F FEDERAL A W ARD S 

(CONTINUED) 
FO R TIlE  YE AR ENDED DECEM BER 31, 1999 

NO TE 3 - 

N O TE 4 - 

Grant expenditures in the Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards are generally recognized under the 
modified accrual basis of accounting when the related 
liability is incurred , if measurable . Vacation and sick 
leave are recognized when paid . Current grant 
expenditures include direct expenditures and expenditures 
of federal awards passed through from another 
governmental agency . 

The accounting policies of the City conform to generally 
accepted accounting principles as applicable to 
governmental units . The preparation of the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make assumptions that affect the reported 
amount of expenditures during the reporting period . 
Actual results could differ from those estimates . 

The City of New Orleans and certain sub -recipients who 
received funds from the City have expended certain 
lederal grant funds in a manner that may have violated 
certain restrictive provisions of the related grants . The 
related questioned cost amounts as reported in the 
current and prior Single Audit reports pertinent to such 
actions excluding audit findings that were no longer 
valid based upon the provisions of OMB Circular A -133 
Section 315 (b) (4) are as follows: 

City o f New Orleans 
December 31, 1996 through 

December 31, 1998 
December 31, 1999 

Total 

17 

$11,647,439 
_ _LI ZII4 ,569 



 

CITY O F NEW  O RLEAN S 
NO TES TO 'FILE SCHEDU LE O F EXPENDITURES O F FEDER AL AW ARD S 

(CONTINUED) 
FO R THE  Y EAR EN D ED DECEM BER 31, 1999 

N O TE 4 - , CO NTIN UE D : 

Sub-Recipients 
December 31, 1994 through 

December 31, 1999 

Total 

$1,672,444 

$1,672,444 

Also, as a result of sub-recipient monitoring performed 
by independent account:ants, questioned costs totaling 
$428,926 was noted . See page 78 for further details. 

The ultimate resolution or determination as to whether 
the questioned costs w ill be allowable or unallowable 
under the affected grants will be made by the various 
funding sources and cannot be determined at this time . 
As such , management of the City is presently unable to 
determine a reasonable estimate of the possible federal 
claims for refunds of the noted grant funds . 
Accordingly, no provision or adjustment has been made to 
the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards . 

NO TE 5 - INELIGIBLE/DISALLO W ED AND OUESTIONED CO STS: 

As of the date of this report, funding sources have 
reviewed the operations and activities of certain 
programs and have rendered determinations as detailed in 
the status of other audits performed by Federal Auditors . 
Such ineligible/disallowed costs aggregated $12,185,266 
with repayments and credit reductions of such 
ineligible/disallowed costs totaling $6,501,490 as of 
December 31, 1999 . When required , the repayment of the 
ineligible/disallowed costs is funded from non-federal 
funds . However, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal 
Awards has not been adjusted for any such repayments. 
See pages 69, 70 and 71 for further details. 
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CITY O F NE W  O R LEAN S 
NO TES TO TH E SCHEDU LE O F EXPEND ITURES O F FEDERA L AW ARD S 

(CONTINUED) 
FO R TH E YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31, 1999 

NO TE 6 - G R ANTEE LO AN S - UD AG : 

The City has received certain grant awards from the 
UnJted States Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD) for the purpose of providing loans to the private 
sector for completion of projects that will stimulate 
economic development activity in the City . Eleven 
individual loans are outstanding at December 31, 1999, 
totaling $12,725,000 which bear interest at rates ranging 
from zero percent -to -seven percent . These loans are 
receivable over a fifteen-to-thirty -year period and are 
recorded as deferred revenue at December 31, 1999. Once 
loan payments are received and the project is accepted by 
HUD , the City may use the amounts received for other 
a[[lowable economic development activities as specified in 
the grant agreement . 

The future maturities of 
December 31 , 1999 , are 
dollars): 

Year Ending 
December 31 , 

grantee loans receivable as of 
as follows (in thousands of 

2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 and thereafter 
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CITY O F NEW  O RLEAN S 
NO TES TO TH E SCHEDULE O F EXPEND ITURES O F FEDERAL AW ARDS 

(CONTINUED) 
FO R THE  YEAR  END ED DECEM BER 31, 1999 

N O TE 7 - 

During the years ended Dece,~ er 31, 1989, 1993, 1998 and 
3999, the City entered into contracts for Loan Guarantee 
Assistance under Section 108 of the Housing and Community 
Development Act of 1974 , with the Secretary of Housing 
and Urban Development (HUD) as guarantor. The City 
received these loans in order to fund its commitments to 
McFrugals , to the Historic Restoration , ]nc ., whose 
project includes the development of the "D. H. Holmes 
Property " for the following uses; namely , a first-class 
hotel, residential apartments , and a parking garage and 
to Jazzland for the development of the theme park . 
During the years ended December 31 , 1998 and 1999 
$15,467,537 was disbursed to Jazzland . These loans 
consist of notes originally totaling $36,300,000 and 
bearing interest at either 8 .70% to 8 .75% or variable 
interest rates based upon the London Interbank Offered 
Rate (LIBOR). As of December 31, 1999, the entire 
remaining balance of $30,230,000 is recorded as a 
liability in the City of New Orleans ' General Long -term 
Debt A ccoun t Group . 

The requirements to amortize the remaining Section 108 
loan is as follows : 

D . H . Holmes ProSect 

2 000 
2001 
2002 

Sub-Total 

Jazzland Project 

2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
Thereafter 

Interest_  Principal 

$ 317,000 
304 ,000 
289 ,000 

$ 210,000 
225 ,000 

4 .4 95 ,000 

910 ,000 4_ ~9 30 ,000 

- 0- 
860 ,000 
910 ,000 
970 ,000 

1 ,035 ,000 
2_ /~1 5 25,000 

Sub -Total 18 ,240,335 2_ _5~5 300 ,000 

Total 

2 0 



 

C IT Y O F NE W  O R LEAN S 

N O TES TO TH E SCH EDULE O F EXPEND ITUR ES O F FEDER AL AW ARD S 

(CONTINUED) 
FO R TH E YEAR END ED DECEM BER 31, 1999 

N O TE 8 - CO NTIN G ENC Y : 

N O TE 9 - 

The City of New Orleans is a recipient of numerous 
grants and awards of Federal funds . These grants and 
awards are governed by various Federal guidelines, 
regulations, and contractual agreements . 

The administration of the programs and activities 
funded by these grants and awards is under the control 
of the City of New Orleans and is subject to audit 
and/or review by the applicable funding sources. Any 
grant or award funds found not to be properly spent in 
accordance with the terms , conditions, and :regulations 

of the funding source may be subject to recapture. 

The audit of the federal award programs of the City of 
New Orleans for the year ended December 31, 1999 
disclosed instances of non-compliance with regard to 
the failure of the City to properly monitor the 
Department of Health and Human Services, Department of 
Housing and Urban Development and the Department of 
Labor grants to subrecip ients that may be material to 
the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards , but 
for which the u ltimate resolution cannot presently be 
determined . 

The City of New Orleans' major federal awards programs 
for the year ended December 31 , 1999 , were determined 
based upon program activity. The City's major federal 
awards programs for the year ended December 31, 1999, 
were all federally assisted programs for which program 
activity was equal to or greater than $2,504,339 
during the year ended December 31, 1999 . Additionally , 
three Type B high risk programs with funds less than 
$2,504,339 were substituted for three Type A low risk 
programs . 
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CITY O F N EW  O R LEAN S 
NO TES TO THE SCH EDU LE O F EXPENDIT UR ES O F FEDERAL A W A RDS 

(CONTINUED) 
FO R TH E YEAR END ED DECEM BER 31, 1999 

NO TE 10 - qENTS: 

Of the federal expenditures presented in the Schedule 
of Expenditures of Federal Awards, the City of New 
Orleans provided federal awards to subrecipients as 
follows : 

Program 
Title 

Com munity Developm ent 
Block Grants 

Special Purpose Grants 
Em ergency Shelter Grant 
Shelter Plus Care 
H om e Investm ent Partner- 
ship Program 

H ousing Opportunities for 
Persons w ith AID S 

Em ploym ent and Training 
Assistance/JTPA 

W e/fare-to-W ork 
Grants for Residential 
Treatm ent Program s for 
Pregnant and Post-Partum 
W om en 

H ealth Center G rants for 
tlom eless Population 

H IV Em ergency Relief 
Form ula Grant 

Healthy Start Initiative 

Total 

Federal CFDA 
Numb6Lr 

22 

4.218 
4.227 
4.231 
4.238 

14.239 

14.241 

17.246/17.250 
17.253 

93.101 

93.151 

93.914/93.915 
93.926 

Amount prov ided 
To SubreciDients 

6,243,230 

2.105,989 

7,942,364 
1,686,184 

546,993 

450,729 

4,590,151 
2.26_ ~8 Z06 

$35.53~4 4=77 



 

C ITY O F N EW  O R LEA N S 
N O TES TO TH E SCH EDU LE O F EXPENDITURES O F FEDERAL A W A RD S 

(CONTINUED) 
FO R TH E YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31, 1999 

NO TE 11 - 

The City of New Orleans receives non-federal funds from  the State of 

Louisiana to perform certain public programs. Expenditures and adjustments 
to expenditures for the year ended Decem ber 31, 1999 are as follows 

State Grantor Agency/ 
Program Nam e 

Louisiana D epartm ent of H ealth 
and ttum an Resources 
Low Risk M aternity 

Carver H igh Clinic 
B.T.W . School Clinic 
M obile D ental Care 
Itealthy Com m unities 
EPSDT D ental 
Carver Clinic 

B.T.W . Clinic 
Crisis Traum a Center 

Collaborative Children's Services 

Contract 
Num ber 

1385476/ 
18032/969 
1415855 
1946796 
1880051 
96-HLHT-074 
1880027/188019/35 
GW C6BHC-96/97/ 
17582 
D H H 17309/17583 
M H 00-1S-358 
M H99-15-302 
CFM S534464 

Louisiana D epartm ent of Cultu re, 
Recreation and Tourism 
Library State A id n/a 
Com iskey/Conrad/Pontchartrain OCR261 

LA Deoartm ent of Public Safetv 
Red Light Enforcem ent 
Buckle Up Lo uisiana 
Safe and Sober 

2:3 

9927 
9991-51 
0091-110 

Expenditures 
and 

Adjusm3ents 

129,626 
19,859 
20,642 
189,709 
(2,000) 

190,970 

141,757 
77,051 
125,746 

25,000 

108,441 
55,520 

100,327 
995 

1,314 



 

CITY O F NEW  O RLEAN S 
N OTES TO TH E SCH EDUL E OF EXPENDITURES O F FEDERAL AW ARDS 

(CONTINUED) 
FO R TItE YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31, 1999 

NOTE 11 - STATE GRANTS CONTINUED 

State Grantor Agency/ 
Program  N am e 

Contract 
Num ber 

A Com m ission on Law Enforcem en 

D ARE 
Correctional O fficer Training 
Electronic Equipm ent 
Block Training 
Crim e Lab Up Grade 
Post Training 

Facility Plannine and Contro 

Jazzland Project 
First Responder Equipm ent 
East N . O . Com m unity Center 
Behrm an Stadium 

D enartm ent of N atural Resources 

E-99-9-003 
P99-COR 
P99-9-001/002 
T99-9-001 
L99-8-003 
P99-9-BAS 

50-M L3-9-B-6 
50-M L3-98-12 
50-M L201-95B-6 
FPC50M L 

Expenditures 
and 

Adjustments 

103,438 
1,700 
14,025 
24,986 
102,444 
139,000 

Coastal Zone M anagem ent 2515-99-06 16,664 

Louisiana D enartm ent of Fam ilv Services 

Hearing O ffice Program 355700134 108,183 

Louisiana Departm ent of Transportation 
and D evelonm ent 

Earhart Corridor 

Tchoupitoulas Street 
Florida Avenue Bridge 

742-07-26 
742-07-62 
~ a 

Total State Grant Expenditures 

24 

867,733 
1,010,240 

_  2 1~ __84 



~ ' Tervalon 
MICHAEL B BRUNO CPA 
AI C)[)[ J 1ERVALON, JR , CI'A 
W AL DO J MORE I, J[{ CPA 

INDEPENDENT AUD ITO R S' REPO R T O N 
CO M  PL1ANCE AND O N INTERNAL CO N TR O L 

O V ER FINA N CIA L R EPO R TIN G  BA SED O N A N A U D IT O F 
FINA NCIAL STATEM EN TS PER FO RM ED IN A C CO RDA N CE W ITH 

G O VERNM ENT AUD ITING STANDA RD S 

q1"o the M em bers of the 
City Council and the 
H onorable M arc It. M ortal, M ayor 

of the C ity of N ew  O rleans 
N ew O rleans, Louisiana 

W e have audited the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Aw ards of the City of N ew 
Orleans, l,ouisiana as of and for the year ended Decem ber 31, 1999, and have issued our 
report thereon dated June 23, 2000. The general purpose financial statem ents w ere audited 
by other audilors w hose report has been provided to us. W e conducted our audit in 
accordance w ith generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Governm ent A uditing Standards. issued by the Com ptroller 
G eneral of the U nited States. A s discussed in N otes 4, 5 and 8, the C ity of N ew  O rleans has 
been requested by federal agencies to rem it funds for ineligible and disallow ed costs, and has 
failed to com ply w ith certain contractual and program m atic requirem ents w ith regard to its 
federal aw ard program s during the year ended D ecem ber 31, 1999 and in previous years. 

C om pliance 

A s part of obtaining reasonable assurance about w hether the City of N ew O rleans' schedule 
of expenditures of federal aw ards is free of m aterial m isstatem ent, w e performed tests of its 
com pliance w ilh certain provisions of law s, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance 
w ith w hich could have a direct and m aterial effect on the determ ination of the schedule of 
expenditures of federal aw ards' am ounts. H ow ever, providing an opinion on com pliance 

with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. 
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INDEPEND ENT A UDITO R S' R EPO RT O N 
C O M PLIA N C E A N D O N IN TER N A L C O N TR O L 

O V ER FIN A N C IA L R EPO R TIN G BA SED O N A N A U D IT O F 

FINA NCIAL STATEM EN TS PERFO RM ED IN A CCO RDA NCE W ITH 
G O V ERNM ENT A UDITING STANDARD S 

To the M em bers of the 
City Council and the 
ttonorable M arc It. M orial, M ayor 

of the City of N ew Orleans 
N ew Orleans, I,ouisiana 

(CONTINUED) 

The results of our tests of com pliance disclosed an instance of noncom pliance that m ight be 
m aterial to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, but for w hich the ultim ate 
resolution emm ot presently be determ ined. The instance of non-com pliance is identified in 
Schedule II as audit finding 99-01. W e also noted other im m aterial instances of 
noncom pliance that w e have reported to m anagem ent of the City of N ew  O rleans in a 
separate letter dated June 23, 2000. 

U nder the term s and conditions of certain contracts and grants, the City of N ew O rleans 
disburses grants and aw ards to certain sub-recipients w ho are audited by other independent 
auditors and m onitored by Independent A ccountants engaged by the City Council of N ew 
Orleans. Also.. the City of New Orleans is-peri0dically audited by federal agencies. The 
other independent auditors, independent accountants and federal auditors have furn ished their 
audit and agreed.-upon procedures reports to us. The audit and agreed-upon procedures 
reports contained instances of non-compliance pertaining to program m atic and financial 
activities ofce~lain sub-recipients and the City of N ew O rleans. The scope of our w ork w as 
not sufficient to express, and w e do not express an opinion on the com pleteness of the 
findings. H ow ever, inform ation on the effect of the reported findings is included in the 
Current Status of O ther A udits perform ed by Federal A uditors and other Independent 
A uditors section starting on page 68 and the Sum m ary of O ther Independent A ccountants 
m onitoring on page 78. 

N TER N A L C O N TR O L O V ER FIN A N C IA L R EPO RTIN G 

In planning and perform ing our audit, w e considered the City of N ew Orleans' internal 
control over financial reporting in order to determ ine our auditing procedures for the purpose 
of expressing our opinion on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Aw ards and not to 
provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. O ther independent 

auditors issued a report in which they reported separately on the results of their study and 
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IN DEPEN D EN T A U D ITO R S' R EPO R T O N 
C O M PLIA N CE A N D O N IN TER NA L C O N TR O L 

O V ER FINA N CIA L R EPO R TIN G BA SED O N A N A U D IT O F 
FINA N CIA L STA TEM EN TS PER FO R M ED IN A C CO R D A N C E W ITH 

G O V ER N M EN T A U D ITIN G STA N D A R D S 

To the M em bers of the 
City Council and the 

H onorable M arc H . M oria], M ayor 
of the City of N ew Orleans 

N ew Orleans, Louisiana 

(CONTINUED) 

evaluation of the City of N ew Orleans intern al control over financial reporting as a part of 
their audit of the general purpose financial statem ents. 

O ur consideration of the internal control over financial reporting w ould not necessarily 
disclose all m atters in the internal control that m ight be reportable conditions and, 
accordingly, w ould not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered 
to be m aterial w eaknesses. A m aterial w eakness is a condition in w hich the design or 
operation of one or m ore of the intern al control com ponents does not reduce to a relatively 
low level the risk that m isstatem ents in am ounts that w ould be m aterial in relation to the 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal A w ards being audited m ay occur and not be detected 

w ithin a tim ely period by em ployees in the norm al course of perform ing their assigned 
functions. W e noted no m atters involving the internal control over financial reporting and 
its operation that w e consider to be m aterial w eaknesses. H ow ever, w e did note other 
m atters involving the intern al control over financial reporting that w e have reported to 

m anagem ent of the City of N ew Orleans in a separate letter dated June 23, 2000. 

This report is intended for the inform ation and use of the m em bers oflhe City Council, the 
M ayor of the City of N ew Orleans, m anagem ent and federal awarding agencies and pass- 
through entities and is not intended and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 

BR UN O &  TERV A LO N 
C ER TIFIED PU BLIC A CC O U N TA N TS 

June 23,2000 
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at Tervalon 
MICHAEL B BRUNO CPA 
AtCID[ J I[I{VALON, JR CPA 
W AI DO J MOREl JB CPA 

INDEPEN DENT AU DITO R S' R EPORT ON CO M PLIAN CE 

W ITH REQUIREM ENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH M AJOR PROGRAM  AND 
INTERNA L CO NTRO L O VER CO M PLIAN CE IN A CCO RDA NCE 

W ITH O M B CIRCULAR A-133 

To the M em bers of the 
City Council and the 
H onorable M arc ] t. M orial, M ayor 

of the City of N ew Orleans 
N ew  O rleans, Louisiana 

C om pliance 

W e have audited the com pliance of the City of N ew Orleans w ith the types of compliance 

requirements described in the U. S. Office_o_f__M anagement and Budget (OM B) Circular A- 
133 Compli~ w _eSupplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the 
year ended December 31, 1999. The City of New Orleans' major federal programs are 
identified in the sum m ary of the independent auditors' results section of the accom panying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Com pliance w ith the requirem ents of law s, 

regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the 
responsibility of the City of N ew Orlean s' m anagem ent. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on the City of N ew Orleans' com pliance based on our audit. 

W e conducted our audit of com pliance in accordance w ith generally accepted auditing 
standards; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governm ent A uditing 
Standards, issued by the Com ptroller G eneral of the United States; and OM B Circular A - 
133,.Auditsof__A~Cates, Local Government& andNon-ProtTt Or eanizations. ]'hose standards 
and O M B Circular A -133 require that w e plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about w hether noncom pliance w ith the types of com pliance requirem ents referred 
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INDEPENI)ENT AUDITO R S' REPO RT O N CO M PLIANC E 

W ITH REQUIREM ENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH M AJOR PROGRAM  AND 
INTERNA L CO NTRO L O VER CO M PLIAN CE IN A CC O RDA NCE 

W ITH O M B C IR C U LA R A-133 

To the M em bers of the 
City Council and the 
H onorable M arc l t. M orial, M ayor 

of the City of N ew Orleans 
N ew O rleans, l,ouisiana 

(CONTINUED) 

to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. 
A n audit includes exam ining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of N ew Orleans' 
com pliance w ith those requirem ents and perform ing such other procedures as w e considered 
necessary in the circum stances. W e believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 

opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determ ination on the Cily of New Orleans' 
com pliance w ith lhose requirem ents. 

A s described in Schedule II1, audit findings 99-02, 99-05, 99-06, and 99-09 in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, the City of New Orleans did not 
com ply w ith the requirem ents to properly m onitor sub-recipients, ensure costs w ere properly 

docum ented and charged to the proper aw ard year, docum ent program incom e and 
com pliance w ilh m atching requirem ents, that are applicable to its Special Purpose Grants, 
llousing Opportunities for Persons w ith A ID S, W elfare to W ork, HIV Em ergency Relief 
Program , Ileallhy Start Initiative, H om e Investm ent Partnership, and Com m unity 
D evelopm ent Block Grant program s. Com pliance w ith such requirem ents is necessary in our 
opinion, for lhe City of New Orleans to com ply w ith requirem ents applicable to those 
program s. In addition, the results of our audit procedures disclosed instances of non- 
com pliance w ith the previously noted requirem enls that are required to be reported in 

accordance with OM B Circular A-133 and which are described in Schedule 111 in the 
accom panying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item s 99-03, 99.-07, 99-08, 99- 
10, 99-11, 99-.12, 99-13, and 99-14. 

In our opinion,, except for the City of N ew O rleans' failures to properly m onitor sub- 
recipients, ensure costs w ere properly docum ented and charged to the proper aw ard year, 
docum ent program incom e and com pliance w ith m atching requirem ents, as described in the 
preceding paragraph, the City of N ew Orleans com plied, in all m aterial respects, with the 

requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for 
the year ended I)ecem ber 31, 1999. 
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INDEPENDENT A UDITO R S' REPO RT O N CO M PLIAN CE 

W ITH REQUIREM ENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH M AJOR PROGRAM  AND 
INTER NA L CO NTRO L O V ER CO M PLIAN CE IN ACCO RI)AN CE 

W ITH  O M B C IRC U LA R A -133 

To the M em bers of the 
City Council and the 
1 tonorable M arc: It. M orial, M ayor 

of the City of N ew Orleans 
N ew Orleans, Louisiana 

(CONTINUED) 

Under the terms and conditions of certain contracts and grants, the City of N ew Orleans 
disburses grants and awards to certain sub-recipients who are audited by other independent 
auditors and m onitored by Independent Accountants engaged by the City of N ew Orleans. 
A lso, the City of N ew Orleans is periodically audited by federal agencies. The other 

independent auditors, independent accountants and federal auditors have furnished their 
audit and agreed-upon procedures reports to us. The audit and agr eed-upon procedures 
reports contained instances of non-com pliance pertaining to progrannnatic and financial 
activities of certain sub-recipients and the City of N ew  O rleans. The scope of our w ork w as 
not suffi cient to express, and w e do not express an  opinion on the com pleteness of the 
findings. How ever, inform ation on the effect of the reported findings is included in the 
Current Status of O ther A udits perform ed by Federal A uditors and other Independent 
A uditors section starting on page 68 and the Sum m ary of O ther Independent A ccountants 
m onitoring on page 78. 

The m anagem ent of the City of N ew Orleans is responsible for establishing and m aintaining 
effective internal control over com pliance w ith requirem ents of law s, regulations, contracts 
and grants applicable to federal program s. In planning and perform ing our audit, w e 
considered the City of N ew  O rleans' internal control over com pliance w ith requirem ents that 

could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our 
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and 
report on intern al control over com pliance in accordance w ith OM B Circular A --133. 

W e noted certain m atters involving the intern al control over com pliance and its operation 
that w e consider to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve m atters com ing 
to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal 

control over compliance that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the City of New 
Orleans' ability to administer a major federal program in accordance with applicable 
requirem ents of law s, regulations, contracts and grants. Reportable conditions arc described 
in Schedule Ill in the accom panying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item s 99- 
02, 99-03, 99-04, 99-05, 99-06, 99-07, 99-08, 99-09, 99-10, 99-11, 99-12, 99-13, and 99-14. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITO R S' REPO R T O N CO M P1A ANCE 

W ITH REQUIREM ENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH M AJOR PROGRAM  AND 
INTERNA L CO NTRO L O VER C O M PLIA NCE IN A CC O RD AN CE 

W ITH O M B CIRCULA R A-133 

To the M em bers of the 

City Council and the 
H onorable M arc H . M orial, M ayor 

of the City of N ew O rleans 
N ew O rleans, Louisiana 

(CONTINUED) 

A m aterial w eakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or m ore of the 
internal control com ponents does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that 
noncom pliancc w ith applicable requirem ents of law s, regulations, contracts and grants that 

would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be 
detected w ithin a tim ely period by em ployees in the norm al course of perform ing their 
assigned functions. O ur consideration of the internal control over com pliance w ould not 
necessarily disclose all m atters in the internal control that m ight be reportable conditions and, 
accordingly, w ould not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered 
to be m aterial w eaknesses, ttow ever, w e believe that the reportable conditions entitled 
M onitoring of Sub-R ecipients, Internal C ontrol-D epartm ental Program m atic A ctivities, 
A llow able C osts, Program  Incom e, and M atching are m aterial w eaknesses. Such 

reportable conditions are identified as audit findings 99-02, 99-04, 99-05, 99-06, and 99-09. 

W e also noted other m atters that w e have reported lo the m anagem ent of the C ity of N ew 
O rleans in a separate letter dated June 23, 2000. 

This report is intended solely for the inform ation and use ofthe m em bers of the City Council, 
the M ayor of the City of N ew Orleans, m anagem ent and federal aw arding agencies and pass- 
through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 

BR U N O  &  TER V A LO N 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCO U NTA NTS 

June 23, 2000 
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SC H E D U L E I 

SCH EDULE OF FINDING S AND QUESTIONED CO STS - 
SU M M A R Y  O F T H E IN D E PE N D E N T A U D IT O R S' I~ SU L T S 



 

SC tIED U L E I 

CITY O F N EW  O R LEA NS 

SCHEDIJLE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
SU M M  A R Y O F TH E IND EPEN D EN T A U D ITO R S' R ESU LTS 

FO R TH E Y EAR  EN D ED D EC EM BER 31, 1999 

1. Type of report issued on the financial statem ents unqualified 

2. D id the audit disclose any reportable conditions ill internal control 
_ __ Zt.Ls ___  

3. W ere any of the reportable conditions m aterial w eaknesses ves 

4. D id the audit disclose any noncom pliance which is m aterial to the financial statem ents of 
the organization uncertainty, ultim ate re solnti 

5. Did the audit disclose any reportable conditions in internal control over major programs 
yes _ 

6. W ere any of the reportable conditions in internal control over major programs material 
w eaknesses . .X.es . 

7. Type of report issued on compliance for major programs qualified 

8. D id the audit disclose any audit findings which the independent auditors are required to 

report under OM B Circular A-133, Section 510(a). yes _. 

9. The following is an identification of major programs 
CFDA N am e of 
N um ber Federal Program  

14.218 
14.227 

14.239 
14.241 
14.248 

16.579 
17.253 
93.914 

93.915 

93.926 

Com m unity D evelopm ent Block Grant 
Com m unity D evelopm ent Block Grant-Special Purpose Grants 
H om e Investm ent Partnerships Program  
H ousing Opportunities for Persons w ith A ids 
Com m unity D evelopm ent Block G rant- 

Section 108 Loan G uarantees 

Byrne Form ula Grant Progr am -Cops Ahead 
W elfare to W ork 

HIV Emergency Relief Project Grant 
H IV Em ergency Relief Form ula Grants 
H ealthy Start Initiative-Great Expectations Progr am 
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SC H ED U LE ] 

CITY O F NEW  O RLEAN S 

SCtlEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
SU M M A RY O F TH E IN D EPEN D EN T A U D ITO R S' R ESU LTS 

FO Il TH E Y EAR EN DED D ECEM BER 31, 1998 

(CONTINUED) 

The dollar threshold used to distinguish betw een Type A and Type B Program s, as described 

in OM B Circular A-133, Section 520(b) is as follows: 

ProAvam  

Type A 

A m ount 

$2,504,339 

D id the auditee qualify as a low -risk auditee under OM B Circular A -133, Section 530 _  

N o 
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SC H ED U LE II 

FIN A N C IA L STA T E M E N T FIN D IN G S FO R  T ItE 

Y E A R  E N D E D  D E C E M B E R  31, 1999 



 

SCH EDU LE 1I 
C ITY O F N ESV O R LEA N S 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FINA N C IA L STA TEM EN T FIN D IN G S 

CO M PLIANCE 

Audit Findin~ Re 

99-01 M onitoring 

CF1)A Title and N um ber 

F 

14.218 Com m unity D evelopm ent Block G rants 
14.241 H ousing Opportunities for Persons w ith A ID S 

14.231 Em ergency Shelter 
14.238 Shelter Plus Care 
14.239 Hom e Investm ent Partnership Program  
14.227 Special Purpose G rants 
17.246 Em ploym ent and Training A ssistance 
17.250 Job Training Partnership A ct 
17.253 W elfare to W ork 
93.101 ]'regnant and Post-Partum W om en 
93.151 H ealth Center Grants for H om eless 
93.914/ 
93.915 H IV Em ergency Relief Progr am 

Conditions and R ecom m endation 

Questioned Costs 

$:0- 

W e noted during our audit that the City of N ew Orleans had taken certain steps to im prove 
its intern al control over com pliance w ith respect to m onitoring. This w as perform ed by 
m anagem ent of lhe City of N ew Orleans having perform ed fiscal and program m atic 
m onitoring of certain sub-recipients, desk review s of certain sub-recipienl's cost control 
statem ents for lhe m onths of O ctober 1999 through D ecem ber 1999, and the City Council 
of N ew Orleans having engaged certain independent accountants to perform fiscal and 

program m atic m onitoring of certain sub-recipients. 



 

SC H ED U LE 11 
C IT Y O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FINA N C IA L STA TEM ENT FIN D IN G S 

CO M PLIAN CE, CO NTINUED 

A udit Findine R eference N um ber 

99-01 M onitoring, Continued 

Conditions and Recom m endations. Continued 

As a result, as described in Audit Finding Num ber 99-.02, the City of New Orleans m onitored 
approxim ately 42%  of the funds disbursed to sub-recipients and additionally perform ed 
program m atic m onitoring of 127 out of 194 sub-recipients. 

W e recom m end that m anagem ent continue in its efforts to ensure that an effective system for 
m onitoring com pliance w ith established procedures exist w ith regard to sub-recipient 
activities. 
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SC H E D U L E II1 

FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FO R T H E Y EA R  E N D E D  D E C E M B E R  31, 1999 



 

SCH EDULE I11 
C ITY  O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

D E 

A udit Findine Reference N um ber 

99-02 M onitoring 

Federal Proeram and Specific Federal Aw ard Identification 

CFD A Title and N um ber 

14.218 
14.239 
14.227 
14.231 
14.238 
14.241 
17.246 
17.250 
17.253 

93.101 
93.151 
93.914/ 
93.915 

Questioned Costs 

$-0- 

Com m unity D evelopm ent Block Grants 
H om e Investm ent Partnership Program  
Special Purpose Grants 
Em ergency Shelter 
Shelter Plus Care 

Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HOPW A 
Em ploym ent and Training A ssistance 
Job Training Partnership A ct 
W elfare to W ork 
Pregnant and Post-Partum W om en 
H ealth Center G rants for H om eless 

HIV Emergency Relief Program (Ryan W hite) 

Federal A w ard Year 

D ecem ber 31, 1999 

Federal_A gencies 

U . S. Departm ent of Labor 
U . S. Departm ent of Health and Hum an Services 
U . S. D epartm ent of H ousing and U rban D evelopm ent 

Pass-Through Entity 

17.246/17.250/17.253 State of Louisiana 
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SCH ED U LE III 
C ITY O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND' QUESTIONED COSTS, 

C O N TIN UED 

L C O N TR O L O V ER  C O M P 

A udit Findine Reference N um ber 

Criteria 

99-02 M onitoring, Continued 

OM B Circular A- 133 Com pliance Supplem ent Par1. 3, Section M  stipulates that a pass-thr ough entity 
is responsible for m onitoring of the sub-recipient's activities to provide reasonable assurance that 
the sub-recipienl adm inisters federal awards in com pliance w ith federal requirem ents. 

Conditions and Perspectives 

W e noted during our audit that m anagem ent of the City of N ew O rleans perform ed fiscal an d 
program m atic m onitoring of certain sub-recipients, desk reviews of certain sub-recipient's cost 
control statem ents for the m onths of O ctober 1999 through Decem ber 1999, and engaged certain 
independent accountants to perform  fiscal and program m atic m onitoring of certain sub-recipients 
as follow s: 
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SCH EDU LE II1 
C ITY O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCH EDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, 

C O N TIN UED 

A udit Findinu R eference N um ber 

99-02 M onitoring, Continued 

Condition and Perst)ective. Continued 

Federal 
Program 

CDBG 
ItOPW A 

Fiscal M onitoring 
A m ount 

Program m atic 
M onitoring 

Total Fiscal/ 
Disbursem ents N um ber of Independent Desk N ot N um ber 
to Sub-recipients Sub-recipients Accountants Review s M onitored M onitored 

$ 6,813,636 
2,105,989 

JTPA/Em ploym ent 
Training 7,942,364 
H ealthy Start 
Initiative 
Special Purpose 
Ryan W hite 
Pregnant & 
Post-Partum 
W om en 
Em ergency Sheltel 
G rant 

Shelter Plus Care 
ltom e Investm ent 
W elfare to W ork 
ttealth Grants- 
Hom eless 

2,268,206 
1,780,999 
4,590,151 

546,993 

819,500 
286,496 

6,243,230 
1,686,184 

._  4~ 72__9_ 

$3:%5534,477 

88 
14 

I 

1 
5 
29 

$ 1,542,390 
583,607 

$1,129,000 
88,885 

$ 4,142,246 
1,433,497 

3,571,749 -0- 4,37(I,615 

1,788,424 
123,609 

3,032,289 

479,782 
5,978 

127,902 

-0- 
1,651,412 
1,429,960 

298,990 -0- 248,003 

159,497 
-0- 

1,247,134 
764,265 

__ 3_ 0~000 

50,333 

-0- 
-0- 

609,670 
286,496 

4,99(;,096 
921,919 

4202.~229 

79 
13 

1 
0 

24 

1 

3 
0 
4 
] 

0 
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SCH EDU LE II1 
C ITY O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, 

C O N TIN U ED 

A udit Findine Reference N um ber 

99-02 M onitoring, Continued 

Questioned Costs 

For purposes of these conditions, w e have not questioned any costs 

The City of N ew  Orleans is continuing to ensure that sub-recipients are m onitored in 
accordance w ith federal requirem ents. 

R ecom m endation 

W e recom m end that the City of N ew Orleans continue in its efforts to ensure lhat a fiscal and 
program m atic m onitoring system  is com pletely established that w ould be in com pliance w ith 

federal requirernents. Such a system  should include the follow ing: 

~ Perform ing risk-based assessm ents; 
~ Review ing reports subm itted by the sub-recipient; 
~ Perform ing site visits to the sub-recipient to review financial and program m atic 

records and observe operations; 
~ A rranging for agreed-upon procedures engagem ents for certain aspects of sub- 

recipient activities; 
~ Review ing the sub-recipient's single audit or program -specific audit results; and 
~ Evaluating audit findings and the sub-rccipient's corrective action plan. 
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SCH EDU LE 111 
C ITY O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

LI 

n 

99-03 A udits of Sub-Recipient A ctivities 

CFD A Title and N um be 

14.218 
14.239 
93.914/ 
93.915 

93.101 

Questioned Costs 

Com m unity D evelopm ent Block Grant 
H om e Investm ent Partnership Program 

HIV Emergency Relief Project Grant-Ryan W hite 
Grants for Residential Treatm ent Program s 

Federal A w ard Y ear 

D ecem ber 31, 1999 

Federal A ~encies 

U . S. D epartm ent of H ousing and Urban D evelopm ent 
U . S. D epartm ent of H ealth and ttum an Services 

Pass-Thro_u_.gh Entity 

Criteria 

Iti V Em ergency Relief Form ula G rant-State of Louisiana 

O M B Circular A - 133 Com pliance Supplem ent Part 3 Section stipulates that a Pass-Through 
Entity is responsible for ensuring required audits are perform ed and that appropriate 

corrective action is perform ed on audit findings. 
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SC H ED U LE III 
C ITY O F N EW  O R L EA N S 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, 

C O N TIN U ED 

N T ER N A IJ C O N TR O L O V ER C O M PLIA N C E A N D FED ER A L C O M I'LIA N C E 

99-03 Audits of Sub-Recipient A ctivities, Continued 

nOltl 

W e noted during our audit that m anagem ent of the City of N ew Orleans :failed to ensure 
required audits w ere perform ed for the follow ing grant program s that w ere required to be 
subm itted during the year ended D ecem ber 31, 1999: 

G rant Program  

U . S. t lousing and Urban D evelopm ent 
H IV Em ergency R elief 
H ealth Center G rants for H om eless 

Grants for Residential Treatm ent 

N um ber of 
Sub-Recipients 

A dditionally, w e noted that certain sub-recipient audit reports that w ere received contained 
audit findings w hich included audit findings, liow ever, m anagem ent decisions as prescribed 
by OM B Circular A-133 were not issued w ithin six m onths of receipt of the audit reports. 
See audit finding 99-08 for further discussion of this condition. 

Cause 

The m anagem ent of the City of N ew Orleans has not adhered to established procedures w ith 
regard to ensuring audits are perform ed on appropriate sub-recipients. 

Questioned Costs 

For purposes ofthese conditions, w e are presently unable to assess w hether fhe failure of the 
City of N ew O rleans to ensure audits are performed on sub-recipients w ill result in any 

questioned costs. 



 

SCH ED U LE III 
C ITY O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEI)ERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, 

C O N TIN UED 

N TERN A L C O N TR O L O V ER C O M PLIA N C E A N D FED ERA L C O M PLIAN C E 

Effect 

99-03 A udits of Sub-Recipient A ctivities, Continued 

The City of N ew O rleans has not determ ined w hether certain sub-recipients have 
adm inistered their grants in accordance w ith file tei~ns and conditions of file sub-recipient 
agreem ents or w hether reim bursem ents to sub-recipients w ere for eligible costs. 

Recom m endation 

W e recom m end that m anagem ent of the City of N ew O rleans ensure that independent audits 
are perform ed, audit reports are review ed, desk reviews of independent audit reports are 
perform ed to determ ine com pliance w ith O M B Circular A - 133 and corrective action is taken 
for instances of noncom pliance w ithin six m onths after receipt of audit reports. A dditionally, 
the City should ensure that sub-recipients w ho receive the federal designated am ount of 
funds are audiled and reports are received for resolution in a tim ely m anner. 
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SCH|~DULE III 
C ITY O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCtlEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

NTER N A L C O N TR O L O V ER C O M PLIA N C E 

Audit Findine Reference N um ber 

99-04 Internal Control-D epartm ental 

Program m atic A ctivities 

CFD A Title and N um ber 

10.557 
10.565 
11.300 
14.221 

14.218 
16.579 
16.592 
20.600 

83.534 
93.585 

Questioned Costs 

Special Supplem ental-W 1C 
Com m odity Supplem ental Food Program  
Econom ic D evelopm ent Grants for Public w orks 
U rban D evelopm ent A ction G rant 
Com m unity D evelopm ent Block Grant 
Byrne Form ula G rant Program -CO PS A head 
Local Law  Enforcem ent B lock G rant 
State and Com m unity H ighw ay Safety 

Em ergency M anagcm enl 
Enpow erm ent Zones Program s 

Federal Aw ard Year 

D ecem ber 31, 1999 

.Federal A_ g~ncies 

U . S. D epartm ent of H ousing and U rban D evelopm ent 
U . S. D epartm ent of H ealth mid H um an Services 

U . S. Departm ent of Justice 
Federal Em ergency M anagem ent A gency 
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SC H ED U LE 11I 
CITY O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEI)ERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, 

C O N TIN UED 

A udit Findin~ Reference N um ber 

99-04 Internal Control-D epartm ental 
Program m atic A ctivities, Continued 

Pass-Through Entity 

Criteria 
State of Louisiana 

The A-102 Com m on Rule requires that non-federal entities receiving federal awards establish and 
m aintain intern al control designed to reasonably ensure com pliance with federal laws, regulations, 
and program  com pliance requirem ents. 

Conditions and Persnectives 

W e noted during our audit that the City of N ew Orleans could im prove its intern al control 
procedures with iegard to m onitoring departm ental federal program m atic activities. At Decem ber 
31, 1999, certain departm ents of the City of New Orlean s expended $23,474,000 to perform 
program m atic activities. 

How ever, certain intem al control procedures and characteristics as presented in tile Intern al 
C ontrol-lntegra|ed Fram ew ork, published by the Com m ittee of Sponsoring O rganizations of 

the Treadway Commission (COSO Report) are not presently utilized by the City of New 
O rleans. 

C ause 

The m anagem ent of the City of N ew Orleans has not considered certain aspects of the COSO 
Report to ensure an effective internal control system  is established for the m onitoring of 
certain departm ental federal activities. 

Questioned Costs 

For purposes of this finding, w e have not questioned any costs 



 

SCH ED U LE 1II 
CITY O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCIIEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, 

CO NTIN UED 

A udit Findine Reference N um ber 

Effect 

99-04 lntem al Control-D epartm ental 
Program m atic A ctivities, Continued 

N on-com pliance w ith federal regulations requiring that non-federal entities receiving federal 
aw ards establish and m aintain intem al control designed to reasonably ensure com pliance 
w ith federal law s, regulations and program  com pliance requirem ents. 

Recom m endation 

W e recom m end that m anagem ent of the City of N ew Orleans consider the follow ing 
activities in the developm ent of an overall departm ental m onitoring plan: 

Ongoing m onitoring built-in through independent reconciliations, staff  m eeting 
feed back, rotating staff, supervisory review , and m anagem ent review  of reports. 

Periodic site visits perform ed at decentralized locations and checks perform ed to 
determ ine whether procedures are being followed as intended. 
Follow up on irregularities and deficiencies to determ ine the cause. 
Intern al quality control review s perform ed. 
M anagem ent m eets w ith program m onitors, auditors, and reviewers to evaluate the 
condition of the progr am and controls. 
Internal audit routinely tests for com pliance w ith Federal requirem ents. 
The O ffice of Federal and Stale Program s and the O ffice of tile Chief 
A dm inistrative O ffice review s the results of all m onitoring or audit reports and 
periodically assess the adequacy of corrective action. 



 

SC H ED U LE Ill 

C ITY O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCltEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEI)ERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Audil Findine Reference N um ber 

99-05 A llowable Costs 

CFD A Title and N um ber 

14.218 Com m unity D evelopm ent Block Grants 
14.241 H ousing Opportunities tbr Persons w ith A ID S 
14.227 Special Purpose Grant 
93.914/ 

93.915 HIV Em ergency Relief Program 

Federal A w ard Y ear 

D ecem ber 31, 1999 

Federal Agencies 

U . S. D epartm ent of H ousing and U rban D evelopm ent 
U . S. D epartm ent of H ealth and H nm an Services 

Pass-Through Entity 

N one 

Criteria 

_Questioned Costs 

$:127_2,jA6_ 

OM B Circular A- 133 Com pliance Supplem ent Part 3, Section B stipulates lhat direct costs 
m ust conform w ith the criteria contained in OM B Circular N o. 87 including being supported 

by appropriate documenlation, such as vendor invoices, canceled checks, payroll journals, 
and general ledgers. 



 

SC H ED ULE Ill 
C ITY O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCtlEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEI)ERAI, AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

, 

C O N TIN U ED 

99-05 A llow able Costs
, Continued 

ions and Persnectives 

ltow ever, of the sub-contractors selected for testing
, six (6) sub-recipients subrnitted cost 

control statem ents but w ere not fiscally m onitored by June 30
, 2000. 

Cause 

The City of N ew O rleans has not adhered to established policies and procedures w ith regard 
to the tim ely m onitoring of sub-recipients who subm it cost control statem ents

. 

Questioned Costs 

For purposes of this finding, we have questioned the costs disbursed to the fifteen (15) sub- 
recipients as follow s: 

CFD A 
N um ber Pro

_ Lg_gL~m  

14.218 
14.241 

14.227 
93.914/93.915 

Com m unity D evelopm ent Block Grant 
H O PW A 
Special Purpose Grant 
H IV Em ergency Relief Program 

Total 

47 

A m ount 

$ 264,820 
90,604 
353,522 

_ _ _ L8,200 



 

SCH ED U LE III 
C ITY O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCtlEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, 

C O N T IN U ED 

A udit Findine Reference N um ber 

Effect 

99-05 A llow able Costs, Continued 

C O M PLIAN C E 

N on-com pliance w ith the City of N ew O rleans established policies and procedures and w ith 

applicable federal rules and regulations. 

Recom m endation 

W e recom m end lhat im m ediate steps be taken to ensure that the noted sub-recipients are 

m onitored and that appropriate supporting docum entation be obtained to verify the sub- 
recipient grant costs. 
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SC H ED U 1,E III 
C ITY O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCtiEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

D 

99-06 Program Incom e 

ederal Proeram and Soeeific Federal A w ard Identification 

CFD A Title and N um ber 

14.239 
14.241 

Questioned Costs 

$:0- 

H om e Investm ent Partnership Program  

ltousing Opportunities for Persons w ith A ID S 

Federal A w ard Y ear 

D ecem ber 31, 1999 

Federal A_g~encies 

U . S. D epartm ent of H ousing and U rban D evelopm ent 
U . S. D epartm ent of H ealth and H um an Services 

Pass-Through Entit~  

Criteria 

State of Louisiana 

O M B Circular A -133 Com pliance Supplem ent Part 3, Section J stipulate.,; that program  

incom e generated from the use of grant funds nm st be accurately accounted for and either 

deducted from outlays, added to the project budget, or used to meet matching: requirements. 
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SCH EDULE III 
C ITY O F N EW  O RL EA N S 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, 

C O N TIN U ED 

N L CO M PLIANCE 

99-06 Program Incom e, Continued 

Conditions and Persnectives 

W e noted during our audit that the City of N ew Orleans had not com pleted the establishm ent 
of a system to accum ulate and account for program  incom e data of sub-recipients and to 
ensure program incom e is utilized in com pliance w ith all applicable federal rules and 
regulations. 

Cause 

The City of N ew Orleans has not com pleted the establishm ent of a system  to accum ulate, 
account for and m onitor program incom e of sub-recipients. 

Questioned Costs 

W e have been unable to determ ine the financial impact of the non-reporting of program 
incom e. Therefore, for purposes of this condition, w e have not questioned any costs. 

Effect 

The City of N ew Orleans has not com plied w ith applicable federal rules and regulations 

Recom m endation 

W e recom m end that m anagem ent of the City of N ew O rleans continue to take the necessary 
steps to com plete a system  to accum ulate, account for, m onitor and ensure that program  
incom e is utilized in com pliance w ith all applicable federal rules and regulations. 
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SC H ED U LE 111 
C IT Y O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCliEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

N TER N A L C O N TR O L O V ER C O M PLIA N C E A N D FED ERA L C O M PLIAN C E 

99-07 D avis-Bacon A ct 

CFD A "l'itle and N um ber 

14.218 Com m unity D evelopm ent Block Grant 
14.239 H om e Investm ent Partnership Program  
14.227 Special Purpose G rants 

Federal A w ard Y ear 

D ecem ber 31, 1999 

Fcderal_A_ g_encies 

Criteria 

Questioned Costs 

$-0- 

U . S. ])epartm ent of H ousing and Urban D evelopm ent 

O M B Circular A - 133 Com pliance Supplem ent Part 3, Section D stipulates that a non-federal 
entity m ust ensure that contractors and sub-contractors are paid prevailing w age rates for 

projects covered by the Davis-Bacon Act. 



 

C ITY O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCitEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEDERAl, AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, 

C O N TIN U ED 

In 

99-07 Davis-Bacon A ct, Continued 

Conditions and Persnectives 

W e noted during our audit that m anagem ent of the City of N ew Orleans failed to adhere to 
established procedures for m onitoring the paym ent of prevailing w ages to w orkers by 
contractors or sub-contractors for the noted grants. 

Cause 

The m anagem ent of the City of N ew Orleans failed to adhere to established procedures 

Questioned Costs 

For purposes of the noted condition, w e have not questioned any costs 

Effect 

The City of N ew O rleans is not ensuing that construction contractors are paying em ployees 
prevailing w age rates established by the D epartm ent of Labor. 

R ecom m endation 

W e recom m end that m anagem ent of the City of N ew Orleans adhere to established 
procedures w ith regard to m onitoring contractors and/or sub-contractors for com pliance w ith 
the D avis-Bacon A ct. 



 

SCH EDU LE III 
C ITY O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

A udit Findine Reference N um ber 

99-08 M anagem ent D ecisions 

CFD A Title and N um ber 

14.218 
14.239 
14.241 
93.914/ 
93.915 

Questioned Costs 

$-0- 

Com m unity D evelopm ent Block G rant 
H om e Investm ent Partnerships Program  
H ousing Opportunities for Persons w ith A ID S 

H IV Em ergency Relief Progr am  

Federal A w ard Y ear 

D ecem ber 31, 1999 

Federal A ~Lencies 

U . S. D epartm ent of H ousing and U rban D evelopm ent 
U . S. D epartm ent of Labor 
U . S. D epartm ent of H ealth and H um an Services 

Pass-Through Entity 

State of Louisiana 
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SCH FDU LE III 
C IT Y O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCIIEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, 

CO NTINUED 

P 

A udit Findina R eference N um ber 

99-08 M anagem ent D ecisions, Continued 

Criteria 

OM B Circular A- 133, Subpart D, Section 400(d)(5) stipulates that a pass-through entity shall 
issue a m anagem ent decision on audit findings w ithin six m onths after receipt of the sub- 
recipient's audit report and ensure that the sub-recipient takes appropriate and tim ely 

corrective action. Section 405(a) stipulates what information should be contained in the 
m anagem ent decision. 

Conditions and Persneetives 

W e noted during our audit that m anagem ent of the City of N ew Orleans had not issued 
m anagem ent decisions as prescribed by OM B Circular A -133 on sub-recipient audit reports 
that contained audit findings w ithin six m onths after receipt of the audit reports. 

C ause 

The M anagem ent of the City of N ew Orleans has not adhered to established policies and 
procedures to ensure m anagem ent decisions are issued on sub-recipient audit findings w ithin 
six m onths of receipt of the sub-recipient's audit report. 

Questioned Costs 

}:or purposes of this condition, w e have not questioned any costs 

J~ffect 

The City of New Orleans has not complied with Sub-part D, Section 400(d)(5) of OM B 
Circular A -133. 
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SCH EDULE 111 
C ITY O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, 

C O N TIN UED 

NTERN A L C O NTR O L O V ER C O M PLIA NC E A N D FED ER A L C O M PLIA N C E 

A udit Findine Reference N um ber 

99-08 M anagem ent D ecisions, Continued 

Recom m endation 

W e recom m end lhat m anagem ent of the City of New Orleans ensure adherence to established 
procedures. 
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SC H ED U LE 111 
C ITY O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEDERAl, AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

, C O M PLIA N C E 

in 

99-09 M atching 

Federal Proeram  and Specific Federal A w ard Identification 

CFD A Title and N um ber 

Questioned Costs 

$944,933 

14.239 ttome Investment Partnerships Program (HOM E) 

Federal A w ard Y ear 

D ecem ber 31, 1999 

U . S. D epartm ent of H ousing and U rban D evelopm ent 

Pass-Through Entity 

Crileria 

N one 

OM B Circular A- 133 Com pliance Supplem enl Part 3 Section 6 stipulates that a non-federal 
entity m ust provide m atching or cost sharing of a specified am ount or percentage as provided 
in the contract or grant agr eem ent w ith the federal govern m ent. 
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SC H ED U LE III 
C IT Y O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, 

C O N TIN UED 

L 

9% 09 M alching, Continued 

C onditions and Persnectives 

W e noted during our audit that the City of N ew Orleans m ust provide eligible m atching 
contributions of 12.5%  of its actual Hom e Expenditures. The grantor agency has allowed the 
City of N ew Orleans to provide the m atch in the form  of certain non-federal expenditures 

(i.e. forgiven taxes, appraisal value of donated land or real property, infrastructure, site 
preparation, non-federal cash, etc.) incun'ed or provided by the sub-recipient. However, 
M anagem ent of the City of N ew  O rleans failed to docum ent the m atch of H om e funds for 
the year ended Decem ber 31, 1999. 

Cause 

A system  for the reporting, tracking and m onitoring of the sub-recipient data has not been 

established. 

Questioned Costs 

For purposes of this finding, w e have questioned the am ount of m atching funds which w ere 
not docum ented. This amount totals $944,933, which is 12.5% of the Hom e funds drawn 
down in the am ount of $7,559,466. 

Effect 

N on-com pliance w ith federal requirem ents on providing a 12.5%  m atch of H om e fund 
expenditures. 

Recom m endation 

W e recom m end thal M anagem ent of the City of N ew Orleans take im m ediate steps to 
docum enl the m atch of H om e gr ant expenditures. 
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SC H ED U LE 111 
C ITY O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEDERAl. AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

NTER NA L CO N TR O L O V ER C O M PLIA N C E A N D FED ERA L CO M PLIA N C E 

it Fin 

99-10 A llow able A ctivities and Costs 

Federal Proeram  and Svecific Federal A w ard Identification 

CFD A  Title and N um ber 

93.914/93.915 HIV Em ergency Relief Grant 

Federal A w ard Y ear 

D ecem ber 31, 1999 

Federal A ~ nc~ _  

U . S. D epartm ent of H ealth and H um an Services 

Pass-Through Entit~  

Criteria 

N ot Applicable 

Questioned Costs 

$J_2~490 

O M B Circular A -133 Com pliance Supplem ent Part 4, A llow able A ctivities and A llow able 
Costs specify the types of activities and costs, w hich are either specifically allow ed or 
prohibited by the law s, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant agreem ents 
pertaining to the program . 
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SC H ED U LE III 
C ITY O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

E 

A udit Findine Reference N um ber 

99-10 A llow able A ctivities and Costs, Continued 

Conditions and Pcrsnectives 

D uring our audit, w e w ere inform ed by the m anagem ent of the City of N ew  O rleans that a 
sub-recipient is being investigated for gross m ism anagem ent of Ryan W hite Title I funds 
resulting in the inability to provide services. 

Cause 

The m anagem ent of the City of N ew Orleans is of the opinion that m anagem ent of the 
agency com m itted fraud and other illegal activities. 

Questioned Costs 

A s a result of a fiscal m onitor's review of the A gency, the City of N ew  O rleans questioned 
$42,490 in grant lim ds. 

Effect 

N on-com pliance w ith federal regulations w hich stipulate that federal funds m ust be utilized 
for allow able activities and that costs be properly supported. 

W e reconam end that m anagem ent of the City of N ew Orleans continue in their efforts to 
determ ine the full extent of the fraud and illegal activities. 



 

SCH EDU LE III 
C ITY O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

DERA L CO M PLIANCE 

U 

99-11 Special Tests and Provisions - 
On-Site Inspections 

:ederal Propram and Snecifie Federal A w ard Identification 

CFDA Title and N um ber 

Questioned Costs 

$-0: 

14.239 Home Investment Partnership Program (HOM E) 

Federal A w ard Y ear 

D ecem ber 31, 1999 

Federal A gencies 

U . S. D epartm ent of H ousing and U rban D evelopm ent 

Pass-Through Entity 

N one 

Criteria 

OM B Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement Part 4, Section 4.14.239 - Housing Quality 
Standards stipulate that during the period for w hich the sub-recipienl m aintains subsidized 
housing for H mne A ssisted Rental H ousing, the disbursing agency m ust perform on-site 
inspections to determine com pliance w ith property standards and verify the inform ation 

submitted by the owners no less than certain presented years for defined project levels (1 to 
26 or more units). 



 

SCH EDU LE III 
C IT Y O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

L O V 

A udit Findine Reference N um ber 

99-11 Special Tests and Provisions - 
On-Site Inspections, Continued 

Conditions and Perspectives 

W e noted during our audit that m anagem ent of the City of N ew O rleans had 11oi perform ed 

on-site inspections of rental rehabilitation projects funded with HOM E funds. At December 
31, 1999, the City of N ew Orleans had funded seventeen individual rental rehabilitation 

projects. 

The City of N ew O rleans has not adhered to established policies and procedures to perform  
on-site inspections. 

Effect 

N on-com pliance w ith federal requirem ents to perform on-site inspections 

Recom m endation 

W e recom m end that m anagem ent of the City of N ew Orleans take im m ediate steps to ensure 
on-site inspections are perform ed as required by federal legislation. 



 

SCH ED U LE III 
C IT Y O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEDERAl, AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Re 

99-12 Financial Reporting 

F 

CFD A Title and N um ber 

C O M PLIA N C E 

.Questioned Costs 

$-0- 

14.218 Community Development Block Grant (CI)BG) 
14.239 H om e Investm ent Partnership Program  
14.231 Em ergency Shelter Grants 

Federal A w ard Y ear 

[)ecem ber 31, 1999 

Federal Ayencies 

U . S. I)epartm ent of H ousing and Urban D evelopm ent 

P ass-Th!'ough Entity 

N one 

Criteria 

OM B Circular A - 133 ('om pliance Supplem ent Part 4, Section 4.14.218 - Reporting specifies 

that the financial information per the Summary Report (CO4PR03) and lhe CDBG Financial 
Summary (CO4PR26), which is included in the Consolidated Annual Performance and 
Evaluation Report (CAPERS) must agree to the accounting records. 
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SC H ED U LE II1 

C ITY O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCtlEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEI)ERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

N D FED  

A udit Findine Reference N um ber 

99-12 Financial Reporting, Continued 

Conditions and Persnectives 

C O M PLIAN C E 

W e noted during our audit that the financial inform ation for all H UD grants w hich w ere 
included in the sum m ary report section of the CAPERS and the CD BG financial sum m ary 
did not agr ee to the accounting records. 

Cause 

The City of N ew Orleans has experienced significant problem s w ith the Integrated 

Disbursement and Information System (IDIS) that has resulted in inaccurate information 
being generated. 

Effect 

D ue to the problem s w ith the 1DIS, the City of N ew Orleans w as unable to provide accurate 
financial inform ation to HUD . 

W e recom m end that m anagem ent of the City of N ew O rleans continue to investigate and 
correct the present problem s w ith the Integrated D isbursem ent and Inform ation System . 
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SC H ED U LE 111 
C ITY O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCItEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

N TER NA L C O N TR O L O V ER C O M PLIA N C E A N D FED ERA l. C O M PLIAN C E 

A udit Findine Reference N um ber 

99-13 Reporting 

ederal Prom'am and SPecific Federal Aw ard Identification 

CFD A Title and N um ber 

14.248 Com m unity D evelopm ent Block Grant- 
Section 108 Loan G uarantee 

Federal Aw ard Y ear 

D ecem ber 31, 1999 

Federal_Agency 

U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 

Pass-Through Entity 

N one 

Criteria 

~)uestioned Costs 

$-
_
0- 

O M B Circular A -133 Com pliance Supplem ent Part 3, Section L-R eporting specifies that 

reports of federal awards or activities m ust be tim ely subm itted to the Federal awarding 
agency, include all activity of the reporting period, mid be fairly presented in accordance w ith 
program requirem ents. A lso, the contract betw een ItUD , the City of N ew O rleans and the 
related third party specified that certain m onthly financial reports w ere required to be 
subm itted to I]UI). 
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SCH EDU LE 111 
C IT Y O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

IN TERN A L C O N TR O L O V ER C O M PLIA N C E A N D FED ERA l, C O M PLIA N C E 

Audil Findine Reference N um ber 

99-13 Reporting, Continued 

Conditions and PersPectives 

W e noted during our audit that m anagem ent of the City of N ew Orlean s did not provide 
H UD w ith m onthly financial reports that disclose the w ithdraw als and balances of funds in 
the Section 108 loan fund account. 

Cause 

The m anagem ent of the C ity of N ew O rleans did not adhere to established procedures for 

preparing federal financial reports. 

Effect 

N on-com pliance w ith federal requirem ents-and the Section 108 loan agreem ent 

R ecom m endalion 

W e recom m end that m anagem ent of the City of N ew  O rleans take im m ediate steps to ensure 
adherence to eslablished reporting procedures. 
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SCH EDU LE III 
C IT Y O F N E~V O R LEA N S 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

INTER NA L C O N TR O L O V ER C O M PLIAN C E A N D FED ER A L C O M PLIA N CE 

A udit Findin~ Reference N um ber 

99-14 Reporting 

CFD A Title and N um ber 

93-914 H IV Em ergency Relief Program  
93-926 H ealthy Start Initiative 

Federal A w ard Y ear 

D ecem ber 31, 1999 

Federal AA~,encies 

U . S. D epartm ent of H ealth and ttum an Services 

Pass-Through Entity 

N one 
Criteria 

Questioned Cost 

$-0- 

OM B Circular A - 133 Com pliance Supplem ent Part 3, Section L - Reporting specifies that 
federal program  reports should include all activity of the reporting period, are supported by 
applicable accounting records, and are fairly presented in accordance w ith program  
requirem ents. 
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SC H ED U LE III 
C ITY O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 
FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

INTERNAL CO NTRO L O VER CO M PLIANCE AND FEDERA l, CO M PLIANCE 

~_udit Findine Reference N um ber 

99-14 Reporting, Continued 

Conditions and Persnectives 

W e noted during our audit that certain grant expenditures and receipts that w ere reflected on 

the related financial reports subm itted during the year ended D ecem ber 31, 1999 did not 
agr ee in total to the grant expenditure and receipt am ounts recorded in fl~e general ledger as 
follow s: 

A m ount Per Renort Am ount Per Accountino Records 
CFDA 

Grant N am e N um ber Receipts Ex_ p_.enditures Receipts E_E_x_.penditures 

H IV Em ergency 
Relief 93.914 $4,546,028 $4,915,894 $4,676,337 $5,445,629 

H ealth Start 

Initiative 93.926 $1,844,105 $7,358,074 $1,719,311 $2,251,016 

Cause 

The m anagem ent of the City of N ew Orleans encountered significant problem s in utilizing 
the paym ent m anagem ent system . 

Questioned Costs 

For purposes of this finding, w e have not questioned any costs 

Effect 

Certain federal financial reports contained inaccurate financial inform ation 

Recom m endation 

W e recom m end that m anagem ent of the City of N ew Orleans take im m ediate steps to ensure 
accurate financial inform ation is provided to federal agencies. 
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C U R R EN T STA T U S O F O T H E R  A U D IT S 
PE R FO R M E D  B Y  FE D E R A L A U D IT O R S 



 

CITY O F NEW  O RLEAN S 
CURRENT STATU S O F O TH ER AU DITS 
PERFO RM E D BY FEDER AL AU DITO R S 

FEDERA L AUD ITORS - U . S . DEPAR TMENT OF COMMERCE 
OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 

SUBJECT - 

AUDIT PERIOD - 

PURPOSE OR AUD IT 

F IND INGS 

REG IONA L LOAN CORPORAT ION (THE COR PORA T ION 

SEPTEMBER 25 , 1979 THROUGH AUGUST 9, 1994 

The purpose of the audit was to exam ine the 
revolving loan fund status , record keeping , and 
eligibility of loan applicants to determine 
whether the City and the Corporation complied 
with (i) grant terms and conditions, (ii) the 
RLF Plan, (iii) the Public Works and Economic 
Development Act of 965, as amended , (iv) Office 
of Management and Budget Circular A-J02, (v) EDA 
Title IX Revolving Loan Fund Guidelines, and 
(vi) the Code of Federal Regulations. 

The OIG determined that the City of New Orleans and the 
Corporation : 

o Failed to contribute the required matching share of 
$333,333 for the initial grant amendment; 

o 

o  

Inappropriately applied for the second grant amendment of 
$500,000; 

Maintained inadequate accounting records to reflect 
regional loan fund (RLF) activity and does not document 
actual or allocable administrative expenses; 

Failed to prov ide support for funds removed from the RLF 
for administrative costs resulting in questioned costs of 
$],[)44,323; and 

o Maintained insufficient loan documentation 
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F IND INGS 

CITY O F NEW  O R LEAN S 
CURRENT STATU S O F O TH ER AUDITS 
PERFO RM ED BY FEDER AL AU DITO R S 

(CONT INUED) 

On January 5, 1998, the Corporation received a final decision with 
regard to the audit . The decision required the following audit 
resolution steps : 

The Corporation will direct 
into an EDA Revolving Loan 
repaid ; 

repayments on HUD -CDBG loans 
fund until the $333,333 is 

The finding with regard to the $500,000 second grant 
amendment was not sustained and required no further action ; 

The Corporation is required to maintain adequate accounting 
records to reflect if>an fund activity and to document 
actual or allocable administrative expenses; 

The questioned costs of $],044,323 was reduced to $152,700 
and was required to be immediately repaid ; and 

The Corporation was required to improve the documentation 
of loans to conform with sound record keeping standards . 
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CITY O F NEW  O RLEAN S 
CUR RENT STATU S O F O TH ER AUD ITS 
PERFO RM E D BY FEDER AL AUD ITO R S 

(CONTINUED) 

FEDERA L AUD ITORS - U . S . DEPAR TMENT OF HOUS ING AND 
URBAN DEVELOPMENT (HUD) - OFFICE 
OF INSPECTOR GENERA L 

SUBJECT - 

AUD IT PER IOD - 

BA CKGROUN D 

HOM E INV ESTMENT PARTNERSH IP PROGRAM 

JANUARY 33 , 1992 THROUGH A PRIl, 30 , 1994 

In May of ]994 , the U . S . Department of Housing and Urban 
Development , Office of Inspector General , began an audit of the 
Home Investment Partnersh ips program as adm inistered by the City of 
New Orleans . The audit report No . 95-FW-255-I007 dated March 24 , 
1995, was intended to determine whether the City of New Orleans 
managed its Home program effectively and complied with the 
applicable regulations . 

The audit disclosed numerous instances of what was deemed m isuses 
of Federal funds , regulatory violations, inefficiencies, and 
numerous uncorrected deficiencies . Moreover , the audit stated that 
the City had seriously mismanaged Home activities and that 
officials responsible for administering the program did not 
properly plan , implement, or monitor Home activities or always take 
corrective action upon notice of problems . 

Consequently , a substantial amount of the grant award was 
questioned with additional amounts identified as ineligible . Costs 
determined to be ineligible per the report were $280,1!51 while an 
additional $6,322,800 was questioned because of a lack of 
satisfactory documentation to support the eligibility of the costs . 

The U . S . Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and the 
City of New Orleans have reached a repayment agreement that 
provides over a five year period an annual payment of $1,070,590. 
As of December 31, 1999, the City of New Orleans has repaid HUD a 
cumulative amount of $3,391,180. Also, per the agreement HUD will 
re-apply all payments made by the City of New Orleans to the Home 
Investment Partnership Program . 
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CITY O F NEW  O RLEAN S 
CURRENT STATU S O F O TH ER AU DITS 
PERFO RM ED BY FEDERA L AUD ITO R S 

(CONTINUEI)) 

FEDERA L AUD ITORS - U . S . DEPARTMENT OF LABOR - 

SUBJECT - 

AUD IT PER IOD - 

BACKGROUND 

JOB TRA IN ING PARTNERSH IP ACT 

INCEPT ION OF PROGRAM THROUGH DECEMBER 31 , 1990 

On May 5, 3.994 and on March 28, 1997, judgements totaling 
$4,535,000 and $894,615, respectively, were rendered against the 
City of New Orleans relative to disallowed costs determined by the 
U . S . Department of Labor for the Job Training Partnership Act 
Program . 

The City of New Orleans has paid or received credit for 
approximately $3,110,310 with the remaining balance being repaid 
with video poker revenues . 

73_ 



 

C U R R E N T ST A T U S O F O T H E R  A U D IT S 

PE R FO RM ED BY  O TH ER IN D E PEN D EN T A U D IT O R S 



 

CITY O F NEW  O RLEAN S 
CURR ENT STATU S O F O TH ER AUD ITS 

PERFO RM ED BY O TH ER INDEPEND ENT AUD ITO R S 

ORGANIZAT!~N - NEW ORLEANS AFFORDABLE HOME OWNERSHIP, INC 
(Formerly Urban Homeowner 's Corporation of 
New Orleans) 

AUDIT PERIOD - AUGUST 29, 3_989 (Inception) through December 31 
1994 

-  JUST IN SCANLON , CPA 

FIND INGS AN D OUEST ~ONED COSTS 

The New Orleans Affordable Home ownership , Inc . is a sub-recipient 
of Home program funds from the City of New Orleans . An audit which 
was performed on the organization for the period August 29, 1989 
through December 31, 1994 contained several compliance findings 
with related questioned costs totaling $1,290,328. However, the 
cognizant agency has not rendered a final determination in this 
m atte r . 
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CITY O F NE W  O RLEAN S 
C UR R EN T STATU S O F O TH ER AU D ITS 

PERFO RM ED BY O THER INDEPENDENT AU D ITO R S 

(CONTINUED) 

ORGAN I ZAT I ON NEW ORLEAN S AFFORDABLE HOME OWNERSH IP , INC . 
(Formerly Urban Homeowners Corporation of New 
Orleans) 

AUDIT PER IOD - JANUARY I , 1995 THROUGH DECEMBER 31 , 1995 

PA LL E T , M EUM ER & LEB LA N C , L .L .P 

The New Orleans A ffordable Home ownership is a sub -recipient of 
Home Program funds from the City of New Orleans . An audit which 
was performed for the year ended Decemb er 31, 3.995 contained 
several compliance findings with related questioned costs totaling 
$152,368. The cognizant agency has not rendered a final 
determination with regard to this matter . 
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CITY O F NEW  O RLEAN S 
CURRENT STATU S O F O TH ER AU DITS 

PERFO RM ED BY O TH ER INDEPEND ENT  AU DITO R S 

(CONT INUED) 

ORGAN IZATION_  
-  

AUDIT PER IOD - 

NEW ORLEAN S A FFORDABLE HOME OWNERSH IP , INC 

JlhNIJlkRY i , 1996 THROUGH DECEMBER 31 , 1996 

OTHER INDEPENDENT AUD ITOR - JUST IN SCAN L ~N , CPA 

V TND INGS AND OUEST IONED COSTS 

The New Orl[eans Affordable Home ownership is a sub -recip ient of 
Community Development Block Grant (CFDA 14 .218) funds from the City 
of New Orleans . An audit performed for the year ended December 31, 
1996 contained several compliance findings with related questioned 
costs totaling $45,438. The Cognizant Agency has not rendered a 
final determination with regard to these findings . 
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CITY O F NEW  O RLEAN S 
CUR RENT STATU S O F O THE R AUD ITS 

PERFO RM ED BY O THE R INDEPENDENT AUD ITO R S 

(CONTINUED) 

ORGAN IZAT ION - 

AUDIT PERIOD - 

TH IRD SH ILOH HOU SING , IN C 

JANUARY ] , 1996 TO DECEMBER 31 , 1996 

LUTHER SPEIGHT & CO 

Third Shiloh Housing , Inc . Is a sub -recipient of Community 
Development Block Grant (CFDA ].4 .218) funds from the City of New 
Orleans . An audit performed for the year ended December 31 , 1996 
contained several compliance findings with related questioned costs 
totaling $160,111. The Cognizant Agency has not rendered a final 
determination with regard to these findings . 
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CITY O F NEW  O RLEAN S 
CUR RENT STATU S O F O TH ER AU DITS 

PERFO RM E D BY O THE R INDEPEND ENT AUD ITO R S 

(CONTINI~ ]D) 

ORGAN IZATION - MULT I-SERV ICE CENTER FOR THE HOMELESS 

AUD IT PER IOD - YEAR S ENDED DECEMBER 31 , 1995 AND 1994 

LUTHER C . SPE IGHT & COM PAN Y - RE PORT DATED 
SEPTEMBER 16 , 1996 

FIND INGS AN [) OUEST IONED COSTS 

The Multi-Service Center for the Homeless is a sub -recipient of 
funding from the City Council grants and the city of New Orleans 
Emergency Shelter Grants (HUD) for the aforementioned periods. The 
Independent Accountants ' Report On Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures 
relative to the Organization 's compliance with certain laws and 
regulations reported an allegation of fraud against an employee of 
the Organ ization . The results of the engagement was reported to 
the Organ ization 's Board of Directors and the State Legislative 
Auditor . 

Current Statu s 

This matter has been referred to the Federal Bureau of 
Investigation who, is presently reviewing the matter for trial. 
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CITY O F NEW  O RLEAN S 
CURRENT STATU S O F O TH ER AUDITS 

PERFO RM ED BY O THE R INDEPEND ENT AU DITO R S 

(CONTINUED) 

MULT I-SERV ICE CENTER FOR THE HOMELESS 

AUD IT PER I_O]D - YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996 

BRI~ O & TERVA LON , CPA S 

The Mu].ti-S;erv ice Center for the Homeless is a sub -recip ient of 
Emergency Shelter Grants (CFDA 14 .231) from the City of New 
Orleans . An audit performed for the year ended December 31, 1996 
contained several compliance findings with related questioned costs 
totaling $24,199. The Cognizant Agency has not rendered a final 
determination with regard to these

.
findings . 
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C ITY O F N EW  O R LEA N S 
SU M M AR Y  O F O T H ER  IN D EPEN D EN T A C C O U N TA N T S 

FISCA L AND PRO G RA M M ATIC M O N ITO RIN G O F TH E 
CITY O F N EW  O R LEAN S' SUB-RECIPIENTS 
FO R TH E Y EA R EN D ED D EC EM BER 31, 1999 

The City Council of the City of New Orleans engaged Independent 
Accountants to perform fiscal and programmatic monitoring on 
twenty-eight (28) sub-recipients who received Home Investment 
Partnership , Community Development Block Grant, Emergency Shelter 
Grant , Healthy Start Initiative , Job Training Partnership , 
Employment Training Assistance, Welfare-to-Wok , Housing 
Opportunities for Persons with AIDS, and HIV Emergency Relief 
Program grant funds for the year ended December 31, 199 . 

As a result of the Independent Accountants ' Monitoring of 
recipients' activities, approximately $428,926 of federal 
were questioned . 

sub - 
funds 

The management of the City of New Orleans has issued management 
decisions on such monitoring findings and is working towards either 
resolv ing or receiv ing reimbursement of all questioned costs , 
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CITY O F NEW  O RLEAN S 
EXIT CO NFERENCE 

Councilmember Oliver Thomas 
Councilmember James Singleton 
Councilmember J . Kenneth Johnston 
M s . Marina Kahn 
Mrs . Etta Morris 
Mr . Wayne M . DeLarge 
Ms . Ellen Lee 

M s . The lm a French 
Mr . John Roussel 

Ms . Mary Pettingi]l 

Ms . Angela Cryer 

M r . 
Mr . 
M r . 

City Council ~ ]dit Committee 
City Council Audit Committee 
City Council Audit Committee 
Director of Finance 
Deputy Director of Finance 
Comptroller 
Director of Neighborhood 
Development 
Assistant to the Mayor 
Deputy Director- 

Neighborhood Development 
Assistant to the Mayor 

for Fiscal Affairs 
Program I)irector 

BR UN O  &  
CERTIFIED PU BLIC ACCO UN TANTS 

June 23, 200(I 

B n m o < ERTIFIE O PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
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Tervalo n 
MICHAEL B BRUNO CPA 
A[CIDE J 1ERVAI ON JR C,~'A 
W A[ DO J MORE] JR , CPA 

IN D EPEN D EN T A U D ITO R S' C O M M EN TS TO  M A N A G EM EN T 

To the M em bers of the 
City Council and the 
ltonorable M arc l t. M ortal, M ayor 
City of N ew  O rleans, Louisiana 

W e have audited tile schedule of expenditures of federal aw ards of the City of N ew O rleans 
for the year ended D ecem ber 31, 1999 and have issued our report thereon dated June 23, 
2000. In planning and perform ing our audit of the schedule of expc.nditures of federal 
aw ards, w e considered the City of N ew  O rleans' internal control over financial reporting and 
com pliance. 

D uring our audit, w e becam e aw are of certain m atters that are opportunities for strengthening 
internal control and operating efficiency. The m em or~indum  that accom panies this letter 

sum m arizes our com m ents and suggestions regarding those m atters. 

This letter does not affect our report dated June 23, 2000 on the schedule of expenditures of 
federal aw ards of the City of N ew Orleans. This report is intended solely for the inform ation 
and use of the City Council, the M ayor of the City of N ew Orleans, m anagem ent, and federal 
aw arding agencies and pass-through entities, such as the State of Louisiana and the 
Legislative A uditor's O ffice. 

4298 ELYSIAN FIELDS AVENUE, NEW ORLEANS, LA 70122 (504) 482-8733 FAX (504) 486-8296 



 

C ITY O F N EW  O R LEA N S 
IN D EPEN D ENT A U D ITO R S' C O M M ENTS TO M AN A G EM ENT 

D EC EM BER 31, 1999 

A LL M AJO R FEDERAL PRO G RAM S 

1. Encum brances 

W e noted during our audit that am ounts recorded as encum brances in the City of N ew 

Orleans' financial records had not been adjusted for the past three (3) years. 

W e recom m end that im m ediate steps be taken to reconcile encum brances 

C O M M U N IT Y D EV ELO PM EN T BLO C K  G R AN T 

2. M onilorine of Program m atic A ctivities 

W e noted during our audit that the City of N ew Orleans expended approxim ately $8M  
in CDBG departm ental related activities. Such departm ents included Econom ic 
D evelopm ent,/:ire D epartm ent, Safety &  Perm its, Sanitation, etc. 

W e requested and received, but not on a tim ely basis, a sum m ary of the departm ental 
program m atic accom plishm ents. 

W e recom m end that the established policies and procedures that require independent 
evaluations and/or program m atic review s be adhered to and utilized to ensure 
progr am m atic com pliance. Such reports can then be utilized to respond to requests of 
independent auditors and/or federal agencies. 

B llt~ lO CEI,~TIFIED PUBIIC ACCOUNIANIS 2 
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C IT Y O F N EW  O R LEA N S 

IN D EPEN D ENT A U D ITO R S' C O M M EN TS TO  M A NA G EM EN T 
D EC EM BER 31, 1999 

C O N TINUED 

3. Program m atic A ctivities 

(HOM E) 

W e noted the follow ing during our audit of the ltom e program 

The m anagem ent of the H om e Program  provided, but not on a tim ely basis, a detailed 
listing of all H om e program  participanls for the year ended D ecem ber 31, 1999; 

Six (6) instances out of eighteen (18) participants tested whereby such participants 
failed to certify that they did not receive prior H om e assistance; 

Six (6) instances out of eighteen (18) participants tested whereby conflict of interest 
statem enls w ere not m aintained; 

Seven (7) instances out of eighteen (18) participants tested whereby Housing 
Standards Code and Section 8 Housing Quality Standards documentation was not 
m aintained. 

One (1) instance out of eighteen (18) participants tested whereby the participant's 
program file could not be located; and 

Two (2) instances out of five (5) contracts examined whereby the sub-recipients' 
contract did not contain a provision w hich required that docum entation be m aintained 

reporting m atching am ounts. 

A lso, w e noted during our audit of the City of N ew O rleans program m atic m onitoring, 
that m anagem ent of the H om e Program  could strengthen its present procedures by 
incorporating certain additional m onitoring procedures into the overall review . Such 
additional procedures could include m onitoring essential aspects of sub-recipient 
program m atic requirem ents as docum ented in the contractual agreem ent betw een the 
City of N ew O rleans and the related sub-recipient. 

B run o C-ERIIF lED pUBLIC ACCOUNIANTS 3 



 

C ITY O F N EW  O R LEA N S 
IN D EPEN D EN T A U D ITO R S' C O M M EN TS T O  M A N A G EM EN T 

D EC EM BER 31, 1999 
C O N TIN UED 

4. Program m atic D ata Base 

W e noted during our audit that m anagem ent of the H om e program  did not have available 
a tracking system or data base that w ould provide essential inform ation of certain 
program m atic activities such as: 

1. M atching of grant funds by sub-recipients; 

2. Program incom e generated by sub-recipients; 

3. Documenting that 221 (d)(3) subsidy limits were not exceeded; 

4. Real Property acquisitions by sub-recipients; and 

5. Home-Owners or Tenants for all Home Projects 

W e recom m erld that im m ediate steps be taken to correct the noted ~:ondition 

SPEC IA L PU RPO SE G R A N T 

5. A nnual Pro~,,ress R eoort 

B run o 

W e noted that the Annual Progress Perform ance Report of sub-recipients w as not 
subm itted to the federal agency as required. 

W c recom m end that m anagem ent adhere to estahlished procedures 

C[ RIIFIE D PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 4 



IN DEPEN D EN T A U D ITO R S' C O M M EN TS TO M A N A G EM EN T, 
C O N TIN U ED 

To the M em bers of the 
City Council and the 
H onorable M arc l t. M orial, M ayor 

This report is inlended solely for the inform ation and use of the m em bers of the City Council, 
the M ayor of the City of N ew Orleans, m anagem ent and federal aw arding agencies and pass- 
through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone olher than these 
specified parties. 

BR U N O  &  TER V A L O N 

C ER TIFIED PUBLIC A C C O U N TA N TS 

June 23,2000 

B n m o GERIlFIED PUBUC ACCOUNTANTS 5 
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SUM M A RY SC HEDULE O F PRIO R FEDERA L A UDIT FINDING S 

For the Year Ended: Decem ber 31. 1998 

Finding Title: Monitoring 

Reference Num ber: 98-01 

Amount of Questioned Costs in Findings: $0 

Status of Questioned Costs (check one) Resolved N/A __. Llnresolved 

nitial Year of Finding: 1996 

Page Num ber: 33 

Program Name(s): U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development, Job Training Partnership 
W eltare to W ork, HIV Em ergency Relief, Healthy, Start Initiative 

Federal G rantor Agency: 

CFDA Number(s) 

14.218, 14.241, 14.239, 14.227, 17.246, 17.250, 17.253 
93.914/93.915.93.926 

Status_ of Finding (check one) 

Fully Corrected 
Patially Corrected 
Change of Corrective Action 

Description of Status 

x 
Not Corrected 
No Further Action Needed 

include corrective action planned and anticipated com#letion dale. if aol~licable 

The m anagement of the City of the New Orleans have developed procedures to strengthened their 
m onitoring reviews of sub-recipients. 

Preparer's Signature 

Phone Num ber: (~'-~ h/ 



SUM M A RY SCHEDULE O F: PRIO R FEDERA L A UDIT FIINDING S 

For the Year Ended: Decem ber 31, 1998 

Finding Title: M onitoring 

Reference Num ber: 98-02 

Amount of Questioned Costs in Findings: $0 

Status of Questioned Costs (check one) Resolved N/A Unresolved 

nitial Year of Finding: 1996 

Page Num ber: 33 

Program Name(s): U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development, Job Training Partnership 
W elfare to W ork, HIV Emergency Relief, Healthy, Start Initiative 

Federal Grantor Agency: 

CFDA Number(s) 

U.S. Dept. of Housing and Urban Developm ent, U. S. Dept. of 
Labor/Health and Hum an Services 

14.218,14.241,14.239 
14.227, 17.246, 17.250 
17.253,98.914/93.915, 
93.926 

Status of Findinq (check one) 

Fully Corrected 
Patially Corrected 
Change of Corrective Action 

Description of S!atus 

Not Corrected 
No Further Action Needed 

nclude corrective action planned and anticipated com Dletion date. if applicable 

The City of New Orleans is continuing to strengthen their m onitoring reviews 

Preparer's Signature 

Phone Number: ~oa 



SUM M A RY SCHEDULE O F: PRIO R FEDERA L A UDIT FINDING S 

For the Year Ended: Decem ber 31, 1998 

Finding Title: Audits of Sub-recipient Activities 

Reference Num ber: 98-03 

Amount of Questioned Costs in Findings: $0 

Status of Questioned Costs (check one) Resolved N/A Unresolved 

nitial Year of Finding: 1996 

Page Num ber: 39 

Program Name(s): Community Development Block Grant, Home Investment Partnership 
Ryan W hite 

Federal G rantor Agency: U.S. Departm ent of Housing and Urban Developm ent, U.S 
Departm ent of Health and Hum an Services 

CFD,A, Number(s): 14.218, 14.239, 93.914, 93.215 

Status of Finding (check one) 

Fully Corrected 
Patially Corrected 
Change of Corrective Action 

Description of Status 

Not Corrected 
No Further Action Needed 

nclude corrective action 131armed and anticipated cc~m Dletion date if aoolicable 

The m anagem ent of the City of New O rleans will aggressively enforce the required audits of sub- 
recipients. 

Preparer's Signature 

Phone Num ber 



SU M M A RY SC HEDULE O F PRIO R FEDERA L A UDIT FINDING S 

For the Year Ended: Decem ber 31, 1998 

Finding Title: Allowable Costs 

Reference Num ber: 98-04 

Amount of Questioned Costs in Findings 

Status of Questioned Costs (check one) 

nitial Year of Finding: 1998 

Page Num ber: 42 

Program Name(s) 

Federal G rantor Agency 

CFDA Number(s) 

$1,842,801 

Resolved Unresolved: 

Com m unity Dev. BLock Grants, Housing Dept. for Persons with ALas, Special 
Purpose Grants, Healthy Start Initiative, HIV Em ergency Relief Program 

14.218 
93.926 

Status of Finding (check one) 

U.S. Dept. of Housing and Urban Dev., U.S. Departm ent of Health 
and Human Service 

14,241 
93,914 

Fully Corrected 
Patially Corrected 
Change of Corrective Action 

Description of Status 

14.227 
93.915 

Not Corrected 
No Further Action Needed 

include corrective action planned and anticiaated completion date. if aaelicable 

The City of New O rleans has not received a final determ ination w ith regard to tile questioned costs 
from the Cognizant Agency. 

Preparer's Signature 

Phone Num ber 



SUM MA RY SCHEDULE O F PRIO R FEDERA L A UDIT FINDING S 

For the Year Ended: Decem ber 31. 1998 

Finding Title: Program Incom e 

Reference Num ber: 98-05 

Amount of Questioned Costs in Findings: $0 

Status of Questioned Costs (check one) Resolved N/A Unresolved 

nitial Year of Finding: 1998 

Page Num ber: 45 

Program Name(s) 

Federal G rantor Agency: 

CFDA Number(s) 

Com m unity Dev. Block Grant, Hom e 
Em ploym ent Training and Assistance 
Emergency Relief 

nv., Special Purpose, HOPW A, 
JTPA, Healthy Start Initiative, HI',/ 

U.S. Dept. of Housing and Urban Dev., U.S. Departm ent of Labor 
U.S. Departm ent of Health and Human Services 

14,218,14,239,14,227 
14.241, 17,246, 17.250 
93.926, 93.914, 93.915 

Status of Finding (check one) 

Fully Corrected 
Patially Corrected 
Change of Corrective Action 

Description of Status 

Not Corrected 
No Further Action Needed 

X 

date. if a 

The m anagem ent of the City of New Orleans will review and enhance the system of accounting for 
program incom e of sub-recipients. 

Preparer's Signature 

Phone Number :_4--o 



SUM M A RY SCHEDULE O F PRIO R FEDERAL AUDIT FINDING S 

For the Year Ended: Decem ber 31, 1998 

Finding Title: Davis Bacon Act 

Reference Num ber: 98-06 

Am ount of Q uestioned Costs in Findings: $0 

Status of Questioned Costs (check one) 

nitial Year of Finding: 1997 

Page Num ber: 48 

Resolved N/A Unresolved 

Program Name(s): Community Dev. Block Grant, Home Investment, Special Purpose Grants 

Federal G rantor Agency: U.S. Dept. of Housing and Urban Dev 

CFDAoNumber(s): 14.218, 14.239, 14.227 

Statu~ of Findin.q (check one) 

Fully Corrected 
Partially Corrected 
Change of Corrective Action 

Description o1 Status 

Not Corrected 
No Further Action Needed 

X 

include corrective action~anned and antici~ated completion dat~ p~ cabte): 

The City of New O rleans will ensure established procedures are adhered to 

Preparer's Signature 

Phone Num ber: 



SUM M A RY SCHED ULE O F PRIO R FEDERA L A UDIT FINDING S 

For the Year Ended: Decem ber 31, 1998 

Finding Title: Eligibility 

Reference Num ber: 98-07 

Am ount of Questioned Costs in Findings 

Status of Questioned Costs (check one) 

nitialYear of Finding: 1998 

Page Num ber; 

Program Name(s) 

$12,594 

Resolved Unresolved: x 

50 

Byrne Form ula G rant Program 

Federal G rantor Agency: U. S. Dept. of Justice 

CFDA Number(s): 16.579 

Status of Finding (check one) 

Fully Corrected 
Patially Corrected 
Change of Corrective Action 

Description ef Status 

Not Corrected 
No Further Action Needed 

nclude corrective action planned and anticipated com pletion date. if aDolicable 

X 

The City of New Orleans has not received a final determ ination with regard to the questioned costs 

Preparer's Signature 

Phone Num ber: 



SUM M A RY SCHEDULE O F PRIO R FEDERAL AUDIT FINDING S 

For the Year Ended: Decem ber 31, 1998 

Finding Title: M anagem ent Decisions 

Reference Num ber: 98-08 

Amount of Ouestioned Costs in Findings: $0 

Status of Queslioned Costs (check one) Resolved ,N/A _ __ 
Unresolved 

Initial Year of Finding: 1998 

Page Num ber: 52 

Program Name(s) 

Federal G rantor Agency: 

CFDA Number(s) 

Com munity Dev. Block Grant, Home Invest., HOPW A, Em ployment and 
Training, JTPA, Healthy Start Initiative, HIV Em ergency Relief 

14.218 
17.246 
93.914 

Status of Fin_cling (check one) 

U.S. Dept. of Housing and Urban Dev., U.S. Dept. of Health and 
Hum an Services 

14.239 
14.250 
93.215 

Fully Corrected 
PatisIly Corrected 
Change of Corrective Action 

Description of Status 

14.241 
93.926 

Not Corrected 
No Further Action Needed 

The City of New Orleans will follow established policies and procedures to ensure tim ely issuance of 
m anagem ent decisions on sub-recipient audit findings. 

Preparer's Signature 

Phone Num ber: 



SUM M A RY SCHEDULE O F PRIO R FEDERA L A UDIT FINDINGS 

For the Year Ended: Decem ber 31, 1998 

Finding Title: M atching 

Reference Num ber: 98-09 

Amount of Questioned Costs in Findings: $652,436 

Status of Questioned Costs (check one) Resolved Unresolved 

nitial Year of Finding: 1998 

Page Num ber: 55 

Program Name(s): Home Investment Partnerships 

Federal G rantor Agency: U.S. Departm ent of Housing and Urban Developm ent 

CFDA Number(s): 14.239 

Status of Finding (check one) 

Fully Corrected 
Patially Corrected 
Change of Corrective Action 

Description of Status 

Not Corrected 
No Further Action Needed 

x 

The m anagement of the City of New Orleans will review and enhance the system of accounting for 
program incom e of sub-recipients. 

Preparer's Signature 

Phone Num ber: 



SUM M A RY SC HEDULE O F PRIO R FEDERA L A UDIT FINDING S 

For the Year Ended: Decem ber 31, 1998 

Finding Title: Federal Cash M anagem ent 

Reference Num ber: 98-10 

Amount of Questioned Costs in Findings: $2,012,254 

Status of Questioned Costs (check one) Resolved X Unresolved 

nitial Year of Finding: 1998 

Page Num ber: 57 

Program Name(s): Healthy Start Initiative 

Federal Grantor Agency: U.S. Dept. of Health and Human Service 

CFDA Number(s): 93.926 

Statu~ of _F~diQng (check one) 

Fully Corrected 
Patially Corrected 
Change of Corrective Action 

Description of Status 

Not Corrected 
No Further Action Needed 

nclude corrective aclion I:)lanned and anticioared comoletion date. if aoolicable 

The m anagement of the City of New Orleans has determ ined that federal funds were not drawn down in 
excess of actual expenditures. 

~ 
Preparer's Signature 

Phone Num ber: 



SUM M A RY SCHEDULE O F PRIO R FEDERA L A UDIT FINDING S 

For the Year' Ended: Decem ber 31, 1998 

Finding Title: Equipm ent and Real Property Management 

Reference Num ber: 98-11 

Amount of Ouestioned Costs in Findings: $0 

Status of Questioned Costs (check one) Resolved N/A Unresolved 

nitial Year of Finding: 1998 

Page Num ber: 59 

Program Narne(s) 

Federal G rantor Agency: 

CFD~, Number(s) 

Com m unity Dev. Block Grant, Grants for Residential Treat, HIV Emergency 
Relief, Healthy Start Initiative 

U.S. Dept. of Housing and Urban Dev., U.S. Departm ent of Health 
and Hum an Service 

14.218, 93.101,93.914, 
93.915.93.926 

Status of Finding (check one) 

Fully Corrected 
Patislly Corrected 
Change of Corrective Action 

Description of Status 

Not Corrected 
No Further Action Needed 

I~ ble): ____  

The City of New Orleans has performed an annual inventory and has appropriately tagged and 
identified property acquired with federal funds. 

Preparer's Signature 

Phone Num ber 



SUM M A RY SCHEDULE O F' PRIO R FEDERA L A UDIT FINDING S 

For the Year Ended: Decem ber 31, 1998 

Finding "[itle: Internal Control - Risk Assessment 

Reference Num ber: 98-12 

Amount of Questioned Costs in Findings: $0 

Status of Questioned Costs (check one) Resolved N/A Llnresolved 

Initial Year of Finding: 1998 

Page Num ber: 61 

Program Name(s) 

Federal Grantor Agency 

CFDA Number(s) 

Special Purpose, HO M E, HOPW A, CDBG , Byrne Form ula, Local Law 
Enforcem ent, Em ploy. Training Assistance, W elfare W ork, JTPA, Healthy 
Start Initiative, HIM Em ergency Relief 

4.227 
4.248 
6.592 
7.250 

Status of Findinq (check one) 

U.S. Departm ent of Housing and Urban Dev., U.S. Dept. of Justice 
U.S. Dept. of Labor, U. S. Dept. of Health and Hum an Services 

14.239 
14.218 
17.246 
93.926 

Fully Corrected 
Patially Corrected 
Change of Corrective Action 

Description of Status 

14.241 
16.579 
17,253 
93.915 

X Not Corrected 
No f;urther Action Needed 

nclude corrective action planned and anticioated c.om Dletlon date. if aDolicable 

The City of New O rleans has developed procedures to perform risk assessm ent 

Preparer's Skjnature 

Phone Num ber: 



SUM MARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR FEDERAL A UDIT FINDINGS 

For the Year' Ended: Decem ber 31. 1998 

Finding Title: Period of Availability 

Reference Num ber: 98-13 

Am ount of Questioned Costs in Findings 

Status of Questioned Costs (check one) 

nitial Year of Finding: 1998 

Page Nurnber: 64 

Program Name(s): Healthy Start Initiative 

488,694 

Resolved x Unresolved 

Federal Grarltor Agency: U.S. Dept. of Health and Hum an Services 

CFDA Number(s): 93.926 

Status of Finding (check one) 

Fully Corrected 
Patially Corrected 
Chan(je of Corrective Action 

Description of Status 

Not Corrected 
No Further Action Needed 

pplicab!e ,~ ___  

The City of New Orleans has determined that no federal funds were drawn down or disbursed either 
prior to or subsequent to the period of availability. 

Preparer's Signature 

Phone Num ber: 



SUM M ARY SCHEDULE O F: PRIO R FEDERAL A UDIT FI!NDINGS 

For the Year Ended: Decem ber 31. 1998 

Finding "title: Suspension and Debarment 

Reference Num ber: M anagem ent Letter Com m ent Num ber 1 

Amount of Questioned Costs in Findings: $ O 

Status of Questioned Costs (check one) Resolved N/A Unresolved 

nitial Year of Finding: 1998 

Page Num ber: 2-M anagem ent Letter 

Program Name(s): All Federal Programs 

Federal G rantor Agency: All Federal Program s 

CFDA Number(s) 

Status of Finding (check one) 

Fully Corrected 
Patially Corrected 
Change of Corrective Action 

Description of Status 

Preparer's Signature 

Phone Num ber: 

Not Corrected 
No Further Action Needed 

nclude corrective action olanned and anticioated com oleticm dat~ if aoolicable 



SUM MARY SCHEDULE O F PRIOR FEDERAL AUDIT FINDINGS 

For the Year' Ended: Decem ber 31, 1998 

Finding "title: O M B Circular A-133 Com pliance Supplem ent 

Reference Num ber: M anagem ent Letter Com m ent Num ber 2 

Amount of Questioned Costs in Findings: $0 

Status of Questioned Costs (check one) Resolved N/A Unresolved 

nitial Year of Finding: 1998 

Page Num ber: 2-M anagem ent Letter 

Program Name(s): All Federal Programs 

Federal G rantor Agency: All Federal Program s 

CFDA Number(s) 

StatL.rS of Finding (check one) 

Fully Corrected 
Patially Corrected 
Change of Corrective Action 

Description of Status 

Preparer's Signature 

Phone Num ber 

Not Corrected 
No Further Action Needed 



SUM M A RY SCHEDULE O F' PRIO R FEDERA L A UDIT FINDING S 

For the Year Ended: Decem ber 31, 1998 

Finding ]itle: Financial Reports 

Reference Num ber: Management Letter Comm ent Num ber 3 

Amount of Questioned Costs in Findings: $0 

Status of Questioned Costs (check one) Resolved N/A Unresolved 

Initial Year of Finding: 1998 

Page Num ber: 2-M anagement Letter 

Program Name(s): All Federal Programs 

Federal Grantor Agency: All Federal Program s 

CF D,~, Number{s) 

StatUS of Fi0di_ng (check one) 

Fully Corrected 
Patially Corrected 
Change of Corrective Action 

Description of Status 

Preparer's Signature 

Phone Num ber 

Not Corrected 
No Further Action Needed 

ve 



\ 

SUM M A RY SCHEDULE O F" PRIO R FEDERA L A UDIT FINDINGS 

For the Year Ended: December 31, 1998 

Finding Title: Encum brances 

Reference Num ber: Managem ent Letter Com m ent Number 4 

Amount of Questioned Costs in Findings: $0 

Status of Questioned Costs (check one) Resolved N/A Unresolved 

initial Year of Finding: 1998 

Page Num ber: 3-Management Letter 

Program Name(s): All Federal Programs 

Federal Grantor Agency: All Federal Programs 

CFDA Number(s) 

Stat0S of Finding (check one) 

Fully Corrected 
Patially Corrected 
Change of Corrective Action 

Description of Status 

Not Corrected 
No Further Action Needed 

nclude corrective action planned and antici[~ated com oletion date. if ar)olicahle 

The m anagement of the City of New Orleans is continuing to evaluate and reconcile the encum brances 
detail. Such eva;luation and reconciliation is expected to be completed by Decem ber 31, 2000. 

Preparer's Signature 

Phone Num ber: ," f.,E ,,'2 t~ 



SUM MA RY SCHEDULE O F' PRIO R FEDERA L A UDIT FINDINGS 

For the Year' Ended: Decem ber 31. 1998 

Finding Title: Program m atic Deficiencies 

Reference Number: Management Letter Comm ent Num ber 5 

Amount of Questioned Costs in Findings: $0 

Status of Questioned Costs (check one) Resolved N/A Unresolved 

Initial Year of Finding: 1998 

Page Num ber: 3-M anagem ent Letter 

Program Name(s): Community Development Block Grant 

Federal Grantor Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

CFDA Number(s) 4.218 

StatLi~ of F
.
i_n_ding (check one) 

Fully Corrected 
Patiz, lly Corrected 
Change of Corrective Action 

Description of Status 

Preparer's Signature 

Phone Num ber 

Not Corrected 
No Further Action Needed 

nclude corrective action El8nne_ _d and a n~cipated completion date i,__if_f applicabJe~.. 

f  Lo: 



SUM MARY SCHEDULE OF: PRIOR FEDERAL A UDIT FINDINGS 

For the Year Ended: Decem ber 31. 1998 

Finding 1-itle: CASH Disbursem ent Test 

Reference Num ber: M anagem ent L.etter Com m ent Num ber 6 

Amount of Questioned Costs in Findings: $0 

Status of Questioned Costs (check one) Resolved N/A Unresolved 

nitial Year of Finding: 1998 

Page Num ber: 3-M anagem ent Letter 

Program Name(s): Community Development Block Grant 

Federal G rantor Agency: U .S. Departm ent of Housing and Urban Developm en 

CFDA Number(s): 14.218 

Status of F'iLnding. (check one) 

Fully Corrected 
Patially Corrected 
Change of Corrective Action 

Description of Status 

Preparer's Signature 

Phone Num ber 

x Not Corrected 
No Further Action Needed 



SUM M A RY SCHEDULE O F PRIO R FEDERA L A UDIT FINDINGS 

For the Year Ended: Decem ber 31, 1998 

Finding Title: Post Com pletion Physical Inspection 

Reference Num ber: M anagem ent Letter Com m ent Num ber 7 

Amount of Questioned Costs in Findings: $0 

Status of Questioned Costs (check one) Resolved N/A Unresolved 

nitial Year of Finding: 1998 

Page Num ber: 4-M anagem ent Letter 

Program Narne(s): Home Investment Partnership 

Federal Grantor Agency: U.S. Departm ent of Housing and Urban Development 

CFDA Number(s) 4.239 

StatLis of Finding (check one) 

Fully Corrected 
PatiaPly Corrected 
Change of Corrective Action 

Description of Status 

Not Corrected 
No Further Action Needed 

nclude corrective action ~lanned and anticipated com pletion date. if applicable 

3-he m anagem ent of the City of New Orleans wil 
com pletion physical inspections are perform ed. 
perform ed by Decem ber 31,2000. 

Preparer's Signsture 

Phone Num ber: 

adhere to established procedures and ensure post- 
It is anticipated that physical inspections will be 



SUM M A RY SC HEDULE O F PRIO R FEDERA L A UDIT FINDING S 

For the Year Ended: Decem ber 31, 1998 

Finding Title: Program matic Data Base 

Reference Num ber: Management Letter Comm ent Num ber 8 

Amount of C!uestioned Costs in Findings: $0 

Status of Questioned Costs (check one) Resolved N/A Unresolved 

nitial Year of Finding: 1998 

Page Num ber: 4-Management Lette5r 

Program Name(s): I-tome Investment Partnership 

Federal Grantor Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Developm ent 

CFD/~ Number(s) 14.239 

Status of Findin.g (check one) 

Fully Corrected 
Patially Corrected 
Change of Corrective Action 

Description of Status 

Not Corrected 
No Further Action Needed 

include corrective action Planned and anticioated com pletion date. if aDDlioable 

The m anagem ent of the City of New Orleans is continuing to develop procedures to establish a 
program matic database. It is anticipated that the database will be established by Decem ber 31, 2000 

Preparer's Signature 

Phone Num ber: 



\ 

SUM M A RY SCHEDULE O F PRIO R FEDERA L A UDIT FINDINGS 

For the Year Ended: December 31, 1998 

Finding Title: Lien Agreem ents/Second Mortgages 

Reference Number: Management Letter Comment Number 9 

Amount of Questioned Costs in Findings: $0 

Status of Questioned Costs (check one) Resolved N/A Unresolved 

nitial Year of Finding: 1998 

Page Num ber: 5-M anagem ent Letter Com m ent 

Program Narne(s): Home Investment Partnership 

Federal Grantor Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

CFDA Number(s) 4 239 

StatLit; of Ein_d.i_Qg (check one) 

Fully Corrected 
Patially Corrected 
Change of Corrective Action 

Description of Status 

Preparer's Signature 

Phone Num ber 

Not Corrected 
No Further Action Needed 

.b'D~  .~47~t 

Ip.#~ Jb f e~C." 



SUM M A RY SCH EDULE O F' PRIO R FEDERA L A UDIT FINDING S 

For the Year Ended: Decem ber 31, 1998 

Finding "litle: Owner Occupied Rehabilitation Program 

Reference Nunlber: M anagem ent Letter Com m ent Num ber 10 

Amount of Questioned Costs in Findings: $0 

Status of Questioned Costs (check one) Resolved N/A Unresolved 

Initial Year of Finding: 1998 

Page Num ber: 

Program Name(s): 

Federal G rantor Agency: 

CFDA Number(s) 

Status of F:indi_ng (check one) 

FoJly Corrected 
Patially Corrected 
Change of Corrective Action 

Description ef Status 

Not Corrected 
No Further Action Needed 

nc.tud~ c.~rrective action planned and anticiDated comoletion date. if aDDliCable 

The m anagem ent of the City of New O rleans is continuing the process to ensure that established 
Policies and Procedures are adhered to. It is anticipated that the process will be completed by 
Decem ber 31. 2000. 

Preparer's Signature 

Phone Num ber: 



\ 

SUM M ARY SCHEDULE O F PRIO R FEDERAL AUDIT FINDING S 

For the Year Ended: Decem ber 31, 1998 

Finding Title: First Tim e Hom e Buyer Program 

Reference Num ber: M anagem ent Letter Com m ent Num ber 11 

Amount of Questioned Costs in Findings: $0 

Status of Questioned Costs (check one) Resolved N/A Unresolved 

nitial Year of Finding: 1998 

Page Num ber: 5-Managem ent Letter 

Program Name(s): Home Investment Partnership 

Federal Grantor Agency: U,S. Department of Housing and Urban Developm ent 

CFDA Number(s) 14.239 

StatUs of Finding (check one) 

Fully Corrected 
Patially Corrected 
Change of Corrective Action 

Description of Status 

Preparer's Signature 

Phone Num ber: 

Not Couected 
No Further Action Needed 

nclude corrective action planned and anticipated c~)rnoletion date. if aDDlicable 

_  _ 



SU M MA RY SC HEDULE O F: PRIO R FEDERA L A UDIT FINDING S 

For the Year Ended: Decem ber 31, 1998 

Finding Title: Programm atic M onitoring of Departmental Federal Activities 

Reference Num ber: M anagem ent Letter Com m ent Num ber 12 

Amount of Questioned Costs in Findings: $0 

Status of Questioned Costs (check one) Resolved N/A Unresolved 

nitial Year of Finding: 1990 

Page Num ber: 6-M anagem ent Letter 

Program Name(s) 

Federal Grantor Agency: 

CFDA Number(s) 

Com m unity Development Block Grant, Section 108 Loan Program 
Bynne Form ula G rant 

U.S. Departm ent of Housing and Urban Developm ent; Departm ent of 
Justice 

14.218.14.248.16.579 

Status of F_:.i_rLd_ ing (check one) 

Fully Corrected 
Patially Corrected 
Change of Corrective Action 

Description of Status 

Not Corrected 
No Further Action Needed 

x 

le, if applicable.~: action Planned and 

The managem ent of the City of New O rleans is continuing the process of evaluating and developing 
procedures Io ensure departmental monitoring of activities is performed. It is anticipated that the 
process will be com pleted by M ay, 2001. 

Preparer's Signature 

Phone Num ber: 



SUM M A RY SC HEDULE O F PRIO R FEDERA L A uDrr FINDING S 

For the Year Ended: Decem ber 31, 1998 

Finding Title: Healthy Start Initiative 

Reference Num ber: M ana9ement Letter Com ment Num ber 13 

Amount of Questioned Costs in Findings: $0 

Status of Questioned Costs (check one) Resolved N/A UnreseNed 

nitial Year of Finding: 1998 

Page Num ber: 6-M anagem ent Letter 

Program Name(s): Healthy Start Initiative 

Federal Grantor Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Hum an Services 

CFDA Number(s) 93.926 

Status of F_indi_n~] (check one) 

Fully Corrected 
Patially Corrected 
Change of Corrective Action 

Description of Status 

Preparer's Signature 

Phone Num ber: 

Not Corrected 
No Further Action Needed 



SUM M ARY SCHEDULE O F PRIO R FEDERAL AUDIT FINDING S 

For the Year Ended: Decem ber 31, 1998 

Finding Title: Special Purpose G rants 

Reference Num ber: M anagem ent Letter Com m ent Num ber 14 

Amount of Questioned Costs in Findings: $0 

Status of Questioned Costs (check one) 

nitial Year of Finding: 1998 

Page Num ber: 6-M anagem ent Letter 

Program Name(s): Special Purpose Grants 

Resolved N/A Unresolved 

Federal G rantor Agency: U.S. Departm ent of Housing and Urban Developm ent 

CFDA Number(s) 14.227 

Statu~ of Finding (check one) 

Fully Colrected 
Partially Corrected 
Chan~e of Corrective Action 

Description of Status 

Not Corrected 
No Further Action Needed 

nclude corrective action planned and anticipated com pletion date. if applicable 

X 

The City of New Orleans will assure that the Annual Progress Perform ance Report is subm itted tim ely 

Preparer's Signature 

Phone Num ber: 



\ 

SUM M ARY SCHEDULE O F PRIO R FEDERA L AUDIT FINDING S 

For the Year Ended: Decem ber 31, 1997 

Finding litle: Federal Audits Performed by Other Independent Auditors 

Reference Num ber: 97-M anagem ent Letter-05 

Amount of Questioned Costs in Findings: $0 

Status of Questioned Costs (check one) Resolved N/A Unresolved 

Initial Year of Finding: 1997 

Page Num ber: 3 

Program Name(s): All Federal Programs 

Federal G rantor Agency: All Federal Program s 

CFDA Number(s) 

Statut~ of Finding (check one) 

Fully Corrected 
Patially Corrected 
Change of Corrective Action 

Description of Status 

Preparer's Signature 

Phone Num ber: 

X Not Corrected 
No Further Action Needed 

include corrective action olanned and ~nticinaled nc~rnoletinn date it applicable 

\ 



\ 

SUM M A RY SCHEDULE O F PRIO R FEDERA L A UDIT FINDINGS 

For the Yesr Ended: Decem ber 31, 1997 

Finding Title: Payroll and Cash Disbursem ent Transactions 

Reference Nurnber: 97 M anagem ent Letter -04 

Amount of Questioned Costs in Findings: $0 

Status of Questioned Costs (check one) Resolved N/A Unresolved 

Initial Year ef Finding: 1997 

Page Num ber: 3 

Program Name(s): Community Development Block Grant 

Federal Grantor Agency: U.S, Departrnent of Housing and Urban Developm ent 

CFDA Number(s) 4.227 

Statds of Firldinq (check one) 

Fully Corrected 
Patio~fly Corrected 
Change of Corrective Action 

Description of Status 

Preparer's Signature 

Phone Num ber 

Not Corrected 
No Further Action Needed 

inclucle corrective action planne5 and antlcioated corn[)letion date. if r~oDlicable 

oo 


